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S. 1463—TO ESTABLISH A PAROLE C03IMISSI0N

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 1973

U.S. Senate,
Committee ox Judiciary,

Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries,
Washington^ D.C.

The siibconimittee met, pursuant to notice at 10 :30 a.m.. in room 457.

Russell Senate Office Building-, Hon. Quentiii N. Burdick, chairman,

presiding.
Present : Senator Burdick.
Also Present: James G. Meeker, staff director; Christopher Erie-

wine, deputy counsel; and Judith E. Snopek, chief clerk.

Senator Burdick. I am pleased to convene this hearing before the

Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries into reorganization of the

U.S. Board of Parole
;
to change its form of organization to that of a.

Parole Commission, and to improve its capability of making the

thousands of decisions of vital concern to the public safety which it

must make annually.
]\Iucli of the substance of this legislation and the alternative execu-

tive reorganization apparently being proposed by the Department of

Justice ctoes not differ substantively. In fact, there is a broad base of

agreement.
The questions which we face this morning have to deal with whether

or not changes so sweeping in nature ought to be made without con-

gressional consideration. We must also consider whether such sweep-

ing changes made outside the usual processes might result in substan-

tial new prisoner litigation which would hamper the board, the courts,

or both.

I ask that the legislation under consideration be printed in the rec-

ord at this point.

[The bill follows :]

[S. 1463, 93d Cong., 1st sess.]

A BILL To establish a Parole Commission and for other purposes

Be it enacted hy the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States

of America in Congress assemUed, That (a) this Act may be cited as the "Parole

Commission Act of 1973".

(b) Section 4201 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as follows :

"§4201. PAROLE COMMISSION
"(a) There is hereby created as an independent agency of the Department of

Justice a United States Parole Commission (hereinafter referred to in this

chapter as the 'Commission'), the members of which shall be appointed by the

President, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate, and which shall

exercise the powers granted in the manner prescribed by this chapter. The term

(1)



of office of a member (hereinafter referred to in tliis chapter as 'Commissioner')
shall be six years, except that the term of a person appointed as a Commissioner
to fill a vacancy shall expire six years from the date upon which such personwas appointed and qualified. Upon the expiration of a term of office of any
member, such member shall continue to act until a successor has been appointed
and qualified. The President shall from time to time designate from among
the Commissioners one to serve as Chairman. The Attorney General shall from
time to time designate from among the National Commissioners one to serve
as Vice Chairman, and four to serve as National Commissioners.

"(b) The Commissioners shall meet at least twice annually, and by majority
vote shall—

"(1) consider, promulgate, and oversee a national parole policy;
"(2) promulgate such regulations, adopted in accordance with the provi-

sions of section 553 of title 5, United States Code, as are necessary to carry
out the national parole policy ;

"(3) create such regions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of
this chapter, but in no event less than five

;

"(4) ratify or deny the appointment by the Chairman of the heads of

major administrative units : and
"(5) ratify, revise, or deny any request for regular, supplemental, or

deficiency appropriations, prior to the submission of the requests to the
Office of Management and Budget by the Chairman, which requests shall
be separate from those of any other agency of the Department of .Justice.

Each Commissioner shall have equal responsibility and authority in all such
decisions and actions, shall have full access to all information relating to the

performance of such duties and responsibilities, and shall have one vote.

"(c) The Chairman shall—
"(1) preside at meetings of the Commissioners, pursuant to subsection

<b) of this section
;

"(2) appoint, fix the compensation of, assign, and supervise all personnel

employed by the Commission, except such persons who may from time to

time be employed in the immediate offices of Commissioners other than the

Chairman ;

"(3) assign duties among units of the Commission so as to balance the

workload and provide for orderly administration ;

'•(4) direct the preparation of requests for appropriations and the use

and expenditure of funds
;

"(5) provide for research which shall include—
"(A) the systematic collection of the data obtained from studies,

research, and "the empirical experience of public and private agencies

concerning the parole process and parolees ;

"(B) the dissemination of pertinent data and studies to individuals,

agencies, and organizations concerned with the parole process and

parolees ;

"(C) the publishing of data concerning parole process and parolees;

"(6) perform such administrative and other duties and responsibilities as

are necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

"(d) The National Parole Commissioners, by majority vote, shall—
"(1) have authority to accept, reject, or modify any decision of a i^y re-

gion, upon motion of any Nntional Parole Commissioner, if the eligible

persim to whom such decision applies shall have made application for

revipw:
.

"(2) have authority to review any decision of any region when tne

P'ltional well being so" requires, and to accept, reject, or modify such deci-

sion
;
and

"(3) give reasons in detail for their decision in any appropriate case

iuc-luding the review of any decision of any region.

"(e) The Vice Chairman shall—
"(1 ) preside at meetings of the National Commissioners ;

"(2) assign cases to National Commissioners so as to balance the work-

load and provide for orderly administration ;

"(3) in the absence of the Chairman, carry out the necessary functions

of that office : and
"(4) perform such othpr duties and responsibilities as are necessary to

parrv out the purposes of this chapter.
"(f) A Regitmal Parole Commissioner shall e.stablish panels which shall be

authorized to—



"(1) grant or deuy any application or recommendation to parole or

re-parole any eligible person ;

"
(2) specify reasonable conditions or any order granting parole ;

"(3) modify or revoke, pursnaut to section 4207, any order parolling any

eligible person ;

"(4) establish the maximum length of time which any person whose

parole has been revoked shall be required to serve, but in no case shall

such time, together with such time as he previously served in connection

with the offense for which he was paroled, be longer than the maximum
term for which he was sentenced in connection with such offense ;

"(5) re-parole any person whose parole has been revoked and who is not

otherwise ineligible for parole ; and
"(6) discharge any parolee from supervision or release him from one or

more of the conditions of parole at any time after the expiration of one year
after release on parole, if warranted by the conduct of the parolee and the

ends of justice; except, in those eases in which the time remaining to be

served is less than one year, in which case, such actions may be taken at

any time.

Panels shall consist of either Commissioners or Parole Examiners and decisions

shall be based upon concurrence of not less than two members of such panel. A
Regional Parole Commissioner may review the decision of any panel of ex-

aminers, and shall have such other powers as are necessary to carry out the

purposes of this chapter.

"(g) (1) The Commission shall have the power to issue subpoenas to require
the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of evidence that

directly relates to any matter with respect to which the Commission or

powered to make a determination under this chapter. Any Commissioner or

Parole Examiner may administer oaths to witnesses appearing before the Com-
mission or before a Regional Parole Panel. Subpoenas may be issued under the

signature of any Commissioner or any duty designated official of the Commission
and may be served by any person designated by the chairman or any Commis-
sioner. Witnesses summoned before the Commission or before a Regional Parole

Panel shall be paid the same fees and mileage that ai-e paid witnesses in the

courts of the United States. Such attendance of witnesses and production of

evidence may be required from any place in the United States to any designated

place.
"
(2) If a person refuses to obey such a subpoena, the Commission may petition

a court of the United States for the judicial district in which such pai-ole

proceeding is being conducted or in which such person resides or carries on

business to require such person to attend, testify, and produce evidence. The
court may issue an order requiring such person to appear before the Commis-
sion, there to produce information or a thing, if so ordered, or to give testimony

touching the matter under investigation or in question, when the court finds

such information, thing or testimony directly related to a matter with respect

to which the Commission is empowered to make a determination under this

chapter. Failure to obey such an order is punishable by such court as a contempt.
All process in such a case may be served in the judicial district in which such

person resides, does business, or may be found."

Sec. 2. Section 4202 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4202. PERSONS ELIGIBLE
"(a) A person committed pursuant to this title, other than a juvenile delin-

quent or a committed youth offender, wherever confined and serving a definite

term or terms of one year or more, may be released on parole after serving
one-third of such term or terms or after serving fifteen years of a life sentence or

of a sentence of over more than forty-five years, except to the extent otherwise

provided in section 4208 of this title. Once a person becomes eligible for parole
he must be given a parole appearance and such additional parole appearances
as are deemed necessary, but in no case shall there be less than one additional

parole appearance every two years.

"(b) If it appears from a report or recommendation by the proper institution

officers and upon application by a person eligible for release on parole, that such

person has substantially observed the rules of the institution to which he is

confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person will live and
remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion of the Com-



mission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society, the Com-
mission may authorize release of such person on parole.

"Such person shall i-emain, while on parole, in the legal custody and under the
control of the Attorney General, until the expiration of the maximum term or
terms for which he was sentenced.

"(c) In imposing conditions of parole, the Commission shall consider the

following—
"(1) there should be a reasonable relationship between the conditions im-

posed and the person's conduct and present situation ;

"(2) the conditions should provide for only such deprivations of liberty
as are necessary for the protection of the public welfare ; and

•'(3) the conditions should be sufhciently specific to serve as a guide to

supervision and conduct.

Upon release on parole, a person shall be given a certificate setting forth the
conditions of such parole.

"(d) An order of parole or release may require a parolee or a person released

pursuant to section 4164 of this title as conditions of parole or release to reside
in or participate in the program of a residential community treatment center,
or both, for all or part of the period of such parole or release : Provided, That
the Attorney General certifies that adequate treatment facilities, personnel, and
programs are available. If the Attorney General determines that the person's
residence in the center or participation in its program, or both, should be termi-

nated, because the person can derive no further significant benefits from such
residence or participation, or both, or because such residence or participation
adversely affects the rehabilitation of other residents or participants, the Attor-

ney General shall notify the Regional Parole Commissioner who shall thereupon
make such other provision with respect to the person as is deemed appropriate.
"A per.son residing in a residential community treatment center may be re-

quired to pay such costs incident to residence as the Attorney General deems
appropriate.

"(e) An order of parole or release may require a parolee, or a prisoner re-

leased pursuant to section 4164 of this title, who is an addict within the meaning
of section 4251(a) of this title, or a drug dependent person within the meaning
of section 2(q) of the Public Health Service Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 201),
as a condition of parole or release to participate in the community supervision
programs authorized by section 4255 of this title for all or part of the pei'iod of

parole : Provided, That the Attorney General certifies a suitable program is

available. If the Attorney General determines that the person's participation in

the program should be terminated, because the person can derive no further

significant benefits from participation or because his participation adversely
affects the rehabilitation of other participants, he shall so notify the Regional
Commissioner, which shall thei'eupon make such other provision with respect to

the person as is deemed appropriate."
Sec. 3. Section 4203 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4203. PAROLE INTERYIE-W PROCEDURES
"(a) Any interview of an eligible person by a Commissioner or parole ex-

aminer in connection with the consideration of an application of parole shall be
conducted in accordance with the following procedures—

"(1) an eligible person shall be given written notice of the time and place
of such interview ; and

"(2) an eligible person shall be allowed to select an advocate to aid him
in such interview. The advocate may be a member of the institutional staff,

or any other person who qualifies under the rules promulgated by the Com-
mission pursuant to this chapter.

"(b) Following notification that a parole interview i.s pending, an eligible per-
son and his advocate shall have reasonable access to progress reports and such
other materials as are prepared for the use of any Commissioner or examiner
in making any determination, except that the following materials may be ex-

cluded from inspection—
"(1) diagnostic opinions which, if made known to the eligible person,

would, in the opinion of the prison administration, lead to a serious disrup-
tion of his institutional program of rehabilitation ;

"(2) any document which contains information which was obtained by a

pledge of confidentiality ;



"(3) any part of any presentence report, except upon agreement of the

court having jurisdiction to impose sentence; or

"(4) any information that would place any person in jeopardy of life or

limb.

If any document is deemed by either the Commission or the prison administra-

tion to fall within the exclusionary provisions of this section, then it shall be-

come the duty of that agency to summarize the basic contents of the material

withheld, bearing in mind the need for confidentiality or the impact on the in-

mate, or both, and furnish such summary to the inmate and his advocate, in no

ease less than four days prior to the parole interview, except that the appro-

priate court may retain the discretion to approve any such summary of any

presentence report.

••(c) A summary of every interview shall be prepared and included in the

record of proceedings.
'•(d) An eligible person denied parole shall be given a written list of the rea-

sons for such ; and, if possible, a personal conference shall be held between the

eligible person and the Commissioners or parole examiners conducting the inter-

view. In the case of a grant of parole on other than general conditions as promul-

gated pursuant to this chapter, the eligible person shall be given a statement of

reasons for each such additional condition."

Sec. 4. Section 4204 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follow's :

"§ 4204. ALIENS
"\Mien an alien prisoner subject to deportation becomes eligible for parole, the

Parole Commission may authorize the release of such person on condition that

such person be deported and remain outside the United States.

••Such person, when his parole becomes effective, shall be delivered to the duly
authorized immigration official for deportation."

Sec. 5. Section 4205 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

'•§ 4205. RETAKING PAROLE VIOLATOR UNDER WARRANT
"(a) A warrant for the retaking of any person who is alleged to have violated

his parole may be issued by any Commissioner within the maximum term or
terms for which such person was sentenced.

"(b) (1) A person retaken upon a warrant under this section shall be accorded
the opportunity to have a preliminary hearing, as soon as possible, except as

provided in subsection (c), at a place reasonably near the location where the

alleged violation occurred, by an official designated by the Commission (herein-
after referred to as hearing officer) to determine if there is probable cause to

believe that he has violated a condition of his parole.
"(2) Such person shall be accorded the opportunity for a revocation hearing at

a place reasonably near the location where the alleged violation occurred within
sixty days of a finding of probable cause, except that such hearing may be held
at the same time and place as the hearing to determine if there is probable cause.

"
(3) The procedure for such hearings shall provide—

"(A) notice of the conditions of parole alleged to have been violated, and
the time, place, date and purposes of the scheduled hearing ;

"(B) opportunity for the parolee to appear and testify, and present wit-
nesses and documentary evidence on his own behalf

;

"(C) opportunity to be i-epresented by retained counsel, or if he is unable
to retain counsel, counsel may be provided pursuant to section 3006A of title

18, United States Code : and
"(D) opportunity for the parolee to be apprised of the evidence and if

he so requests, to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, except in
those cases wherein it is determined by the hearing officer that there is
substantial risk of harm to any person who would so testify or otherwise
be identified.

Following such hearing, a summary shall be prepared by the hearing officer, set-
ting forth in writing findings and recommendations, stating with particularity
the reasons therefor.

"(c) In the case of any parolee retaken by warrant under this section who
does not contest any allegetl violation of a condition of parole, or who has been
convicted of a new offense under any law of the United States or any state,
such person shall be accorded the opportunity for an institutional revocation



hearing within ninety clays. Such hearing will be conducted by a panel appointed
pursuant to this chapter and the parolee shall have notice of such hearing and
be allowed to appear and testify on his own behalf, and to select an advocate
to aid him in such appearance.

"(d) A person retaken pursuant to this section shall be detained pending
disposition of such warrant if, subsequent to a finding of probable cause, the

hearing officer determines that there is reason to believe that such person
will not appear for his disposition hearing, or that he constitutes a danger to

himself or to others."
Sec. 6. Section 4206 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4206. OFFICER EXECUTING WARRANT TO RETAKE PAROLE
VIOLATOR

"Any officer of any Federal penal or correctional institution, or any Federal
officer authorized to serve criminal process within the United States, to whom
a warrant for the retaking of a parole violator is dehvered, shall execute such
warrant by taking such parolee and returning him to the custody of the Attorney
General."

Sec. 7. Section 4207 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 4207. PAROLE MODIFICATION AND REVOCATION
"(a) An order of parole may be modified or revoked in the case of any parolee

convicted of a criminal offense, or where otherwise warranted by the frequency
or seriousness of the parolee's violation of the conditions of his parole

"(b) A decision to modify or revoke an order of parole may include—
"(1) a reprimand ;

"
(2) an alteration of parole conditions ;

"(3) referral to a residential community treatment center for all or part
of the remainder of the original sentence ;

"(4) formal revocation of parole or mandatory release pursuant to this

chapter ; or

"(5) any other action deemed necessary for successful rehabilitation of
the violator, and which promotes the ends of justice."

Sec. 8. Section 4208 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 4208. FIXING ELIGIBILITY FOR PAROLE AT TIME OF SENTENCING
"(a) Upon entering a judgment of conviction, the court having jurisdiction to

impose sentence, when in its opinion the ends of justice and best interests of the
public require that the defendant be sentenced to imprisonment for a term ex-
ceeding one year, may (1) designate in the sentence of imprisonment imposed
a minimum term at the expiration of which the person shall become eligible
for parole, which term may be less than but shall not be more than one-third
of the maximum sentence imposed by the court, or (2) the court may fix the
maximum sentence of imprisonment to be served in which event the court may
specify that the person may become eligible for parole at such time as the
Commission may determine.
"(b) If the court desires more detailed information as a basis for determining

the sentence to be imposed, the court may commit the defendant to the custody
of the Attorney General, which commitment shall be deemed to be for the maxi-
mum sentence of imprisonment prescribed by law, for a study as described in
subsection (c) hereof. The results of such study, together with any recommenda-
tions which the Director of the Bureau of Prisons believes would be helpful
in determining the disposition of the case, shall be furnished to the court within
three months unless the court grants time, not to exceed an additional three
months, for further study. After receiving such reports and recommendations,
the court may in its discretion—

"(1) place the person on probation as authorized by section 3651 of this
title, or

"(2) affirm the sentence of imprisonment originally imposed, or reduce
the sentence of imprisonment, and commit the offender under any applicable
provision of law. The term of the sentence shall run from date of original
commitment under this section.

"(c) Upon commitment of any person sentenced to imprisonment under any
law of the United States for a definite term or terms of one year or more, the



Director of the Bureau of Prisous, under such regulations as the Attorney Gen-
eral may prescribe, shall cause a complete study to be made of the person and
shall furnish to the Commission a summary report, together with any recom-
mendations which in the Director's opinion would be helful in determining the
suitability of the prisoner for parole, ^uch report may include, but shall not
be limited to, data regarding the prisoner's previous delinquency or criminal
experience, pertinent circumstances of his social background, his capabilities, his
mental and physical health, and such other factors as may be considered per-
tinent. The Commission may make such other investigation as it may deem
necessary. In any case involving a person with respect to whom the court has
designated a minimum term in accordance Avith subsection (a) of this section,
such report and recommendations shall be made not less than ninety days prior
to the expiration of such minimum term.

"It shall be the duty of the various probation officers and government bureaus
and agencies to furnish the Commission information concerning the person and,
whenever not incompatible with the public interest, their views and recommenda-
tions with respect to the parole disposition of liis case.

"(d) The court shall have the authority to reduce any minimum term at any
time, upon motion of the Director of the Bureau of Prisons, upon notice to the
attorney for the government."

Sec. 9. Section 5002 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5002. ADVISORY CORRECTIONS COUNCIL
"(a) There is hereby created an Advisory Corrections Council composed of

two United States judges designated by the Chief Justice of the United States
and ex officio, the Chairman of the Parole Commission, the Director of the
Bureau of Prisons, the Chief of Probation of the Administrative Oftice of the
United States Courts, the Administrator of Law Enforcement Assistance Ad-
ministration or his designee at a policy level, the Secretary of Health, Educa-
tion, and Welfare or his designee at a pulley level, the Secretary of Labor or
his designee at a policy level, the Commissioner of the Civil Service Commission
or his designee at a policy level, the Secretary of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment or his designee at a policy level, the Director of the Office of Economic
Opportunity or his designee at a policy level, and the Secretary of Defense or
his designee at a policy level. The judges first appointed to the Council shall
continue in office fur terms of three years from the date of appointment. Their
successors shall likewise be appointed for a term of three years, except that any
judge appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term
for which his predecessor was appointed shall be appointed only for the unex-
pired term of such predecessor. The Chairman shall be designated annually by
the Attorney General.

"(b) The Council shall meet quarterly and special sessions may be held from
time to time upon the call of the Chairman.

'•(c) The Council shall consider problems of treatment and correction of all

offenders against the United States and shall make such recommendations to

the Congress, the President, the Judicial Conference of the United States, and
other appropriate officials as may improve the administration of criminal justice
and assure the coordination and integration of policies of the Federal agencies,

private industry, labor, and local jurisdictions respecting the disposition, treat-

ment, and correction of all persons convicted of crime. It shall also consider
measures to promote the prevention of crime and delinquency and suggest appro-
priate studies in this connection to be undertaken by agencies both public and
private. The members of the Council shall serve without compensation but neces-

sary travel and subsistence expenses as authorized by law shall be paid from
available appropriations of the Department of Justice.

"(d) (1) The Council shall appoint an Executive Secretary or an Administra-
tive Assistant and such other personnel as may be necessary to carry out its-

functions The Executive Secretary or Adrainstrative Assistant shall supervise
the activities of persons employed by the Council and shall perform such other
duties as the Council may direct

'•(2) The Council may obtain the services of experts and consultants in ac-

cordance with section 3109 of title 5, United States Code, but at rates not tO'

exceed $100 per day
"(e) The Council is authorized to request from any department, agency, or

independent instrumentality of the Government any information or records it

deems necessary to carry out its functions, and each such department, agency^
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and instrumentality is autliorized to cooperate witli the Council and. to the
extent permitted by law, to furnish such information and records to the Council,
upon recpiest made by the Chairman or by any meml)er when acting as Chairman.

'•(f) The first meeting of the Council shall occur not later than thirty days
after the enactment of this legislation."

Sec. 10. Section 5005 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
foUoAvs :

"§ 5005. YOUTH CORRECTION DECISIONS
"The Commission may, in accordance with the provisions of chapter 311 of

this, grant or deny any application or recommendation for parole, modify or
revoke any order of parole of any person sentenced pursuant to this chapter, and
perform such other duties and responsibilities as ma.y be required by law."

Sec. 11. Section 5006 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 50013. DEFINITIONS
"As used in this chapter—

"(a) 'Bureau' means the Bureau of Prisons :

'(b) 'Director' means the Director of the Bureau ;

"(c) 'Youth offender' means a person under the age of twenty-two years
at the time of conviction ;

"(d) 'Committed youth offender' is one commited for treatment hereunder
to the custody of the Attorney General pursuant to sections 5010(b) and
5010(c) of this chapter;

"(e) 'Treatment' means corrective and preventive guidance and training
designed to protect the public by correcting the antisocial tendencies of

youth offenders ;

"(f) 'Conviction" means the .iudgment on a verdict or finding of guilty,
a plea of guilty, or a plea of nolo contendre."

Sec. 12. Section 5010 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§5010. SENTENCE
"(a) If the court is of the opinion that the youth offender does not need com-

mitment, it may suspend the imposition or execution of sentence and place the

youth offender on probation.
"(b) If the court shall find that a convicted person is a youth ofi"ender, and

the offense is punishable by imprisonment under applicable provisions of law
other than this subsecti<m, the court may, in lieu of the penalty of imprison-
ment otherwise provided by law, sentence the .vouth offender to the custody of
the Attorney General for treatment and supervision jmrsuant to this chapter
until discharged by the Commission as provided in section 5017(c) of this

chapter.
"(c) If the court .shall find that the youth oft'ender may not be able to derive

maximum benefit from treatment prior to the expiration of six years from the
date of conviction it may, in lieu of the penalty of imprisonment otherwise pro-
vided by law, sentence the youth offender to the custody of the Attorney General
for treatment and supervision pursuant to this chapter for any further period
that may be authorized by law for the offense or offenses of which he stands
convicted or until discharged by the Commission as provided in section 5017(d)
of this chapter.

"(d) If the court shall find that the youth offender will not derive benefit from
treatment under subsection (b) or (c), then the court may sentence the youth
offeiider under any other applicable penalty provision.

"(e) If the court de^slres additional information as to whether a youth offender
will derive benefit from treatment under subsection (b) or (c) it may order that
he be committed to the custody of the Attorney General for oliservation and
study at an appropriate classification center or agency. Within sixty days from
the date of the order, or such additional period as the court may grant, the
Bureau shall report to the court its findings."

Sfx'. 13. Section 5014 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"'§ 5014. CLASSIFICATION STUDIES AND REPORTS
"The Director shall provide classification centers and agencies. Every com-

mitted youth offender shall first be sent to a classification center or agency. The
classification center or agency shall make a complete .study of each committed
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youth offender, including a mental and physical examination, to ascertain his

personal traits, his capabilities, pertinent circumstances of his school, family
life, any previous delinquency or criminal experience, and any mental or physical
defect or other factor contributing to his delinquency. In the absence of excep-
tional circumstances, such study shall be completed within a period of thirty

days. The agency shall promptly foi-ward to the Director and to the Conmiission
a report of its findings with respect to the youth offender and its recommenda-
tions as to his treatment. As soon as practicable after commitment, the youth
offender shall receive a parole interview."

Sec. 14. Section 5015 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read aa
follows :

"§ 5015. POWERS OF DIRECTOR AS TO PLACEMENT OF YOUTH
OFFENDERS

"(a) On receipt of the report and recommendations from the classification

agency the Director may—•

•'(1) recommend to the Commission that the committed youth offender be
released conditionally under supervision ;

"(2) allocate and direct the transfer of the committed youth offender to»

an agency or institution for treatment ; or

"(3) order the committed youth offender confined and afforded treatment
under such conditions as he believes best designed for the protection of the
public.

"(b) The Director may transfer at any time a committed youth offender from
one agency or institution to any other agency or institution."

Sec. 15. Section 5016 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§5016. REPORTS CONCERNING OFFENDERS
"The Director shall cause periodic examinations and reexaminations to be

made of all committed youth offenders and shall report to the Commission as
to each such offender as the Commission may require. United States probation
officers and supervisory agents shall likewise report to the Commission resi>ecting

youth offenders under their supervision as the Parole Commission may direct."

Sec. 16. Section 5017 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§5017. RELEASE OF YOUTH OFFENDERS
"(a) The Commission may at any time after reasonable notice to the Director

release conditionally under supervision a committed youth offender when it

appears that such person has substantially observed the rules of the institution
to which he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such jjerson
will live and remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion
of the Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society.

When, in the judgment of the Director, a committed youth offender should be
released conditionally under supervision he shall so report and recommend to
the Commission.

"(b) The Commission may discharge a committed youth offender uncondi-

tionally at the expiration of one year from the date of conditional release.

"(c) A youthful offender committed under section 5010 (b) of this chapter
shall be released conditionally under supervision on or before the expiration of
four years from the date of his conviction and shall be discharged unconditionally
on or before six years from the date of his conviction.

"(d) A youth offender committed under section 5010 (c) of this chapter shall

be released conditionally under supervision not later than two years before the

expiration of the term imposed by the court. He may be discharged uncondition-

ally at the expiration of not less than one year from the date of his conditional
release. He shall be discharged unconditionally on or before the expiration of
the maximum sentence imposed, computed uninterruptedly from the date of
conviction.

"(e) Commutation of sentence authorized by any Act of Congi-ess shall not be

granted as a matter of right to committed youth offenders biit only in accordance
with rules prescribed by the Director with the approval of the Commission."

Seo. 17. Section 5018 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :
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"§ 501S. REVOCATION OF PAROLE COMMISSION ORDERS
"The Commission may revoke or modify any of its previous orders respecting

-a committed youth offender except an order of unconditional discliarge."
Sec. 18. Section 5019 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

•"§ 5019. SUPERVISION OF RELEASED YOUTH OFFENDERS
"Committed youth offenders permitted to remain at liberty imder supervision

'or conditionally released shall be under the supervision of United States proba-
tion officers, supervisory agents appointed by the Attorney General, and voluntary
supervisory agents approved by the Commission. The Commission is authorized
to encourage the formation of voluntary organizations composed of members who
will serve without compensation as voluntary supervisory agents and siwnsors."

Sec. 19. Section 5020 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5020. APPREHENSION OF RELEASED OFFENDERS
"If, at any time before the unconditional discharge of a committed youth

offender, the Commission is of the opinion that such youth offender will be

benefited by further treatment in an institution or other facility and member of

the Commission may direct his return to custody or if necessary may issue a
warrant for the apprehension and return to custody of such youth offender and
cause such warrant to be executed by a United States probation officer, an

appointed supervisory agent, a United States marshal, or any officer of a Federal

penal or correctional institution. The Commission may revoke parole, dismiss

or otherwise modify such warrant as provided in section 4207 of this title."

Sec. 20. Section 5021 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5021. CERTIFICATE SETTING ASIDE CONVICTION

"(a) Upon the unconditional discharge by the Commission of a committed

youth offender before the expiration of the maximum sentence imposed upon
iiim, the conviction shall be automatically set aside and the Commission shall

issue to the youth offender a certificate to that effect. This shall expunge the

record for civil purposes although nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit
consideration of this information in a subsequent criminal proceeding.

•'(b) Where a youth offender has been placed on probation by the court, the

court may thereafter, in its discretion, unconditionally discharge such youth
offender from probation prior to the expiration of the maximum period of pro-
bation theretofore fixed by the court, which discharge shall automatically set

aside the conviction, and the court shall issue to the youth offender a certificate

to that effect."

Sec. 21. Section 5037 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5037. PAROLE OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS
"A juvenile delinquent who has been committed and who, by his conduct, has

given sufficient evidence that he has reformed, may be released on parole at any
time under such conditions and regulations as the Commission deems proper if

it shall appear to the satisfaction of such Commission that there is reasonable

probability that the juvenile will remain at liberty without violating the law
when it appears that such person has substantially observed the rules of the
institution to which he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that
such person will live and remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in

the opinion of the Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare
of society."

Sec. 22. (a) The amendments made by this Act shall not be construed as affect-

ing or otherwise altering the provisions of sections 401 and 405 of the Compre-
hensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970 relating to special parole
terms.

(b) The amendment made by section 2 of this Act shall not apply to any
offense for which there is provided a mandatory penalty.

(c) The parole of any person sentenced before June 29, 1932, shall be for the
remainder of the term or terms specified in his sentence, less good time allow-
ances provided by law.

Sec. 23. Sections 5007, 5008, and 5009 of title 18, United States Code, are re-

pealed.
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Sec. 24. There is hereby authorized to be appropriated such sums as are neces-

sary to carry out the purposes of these amendments.

Sec. 25. Section 3050 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 3050. BUREAU OF PRISONS AND PAROLE COMMISSION EMPLOYEES'
POWERS

"An officer or employee of the Bureau of Prisons may make arrests without

wv^rrant for violations "of any of the provisions of section 751, 752, 1791, or 1792

of this title, if he has reasonable grounds to believe that the arrested person is

guilty of such offense, and if there is likelihood of his escaping before a warrant

can be obtained for his arrest. If the arrested person is a fugitive from custody,

he shall be returned to custody. United States Parole Commissioners and such

other employees as are designated by the Commission pursuant to section 4201

of this title, may execute any warrant issued by the Commission pursuant to

section 4205 of this title. Officers and employees of the Bureau of Prisons, Parole

Commissioners, and such employees of the Commission, may carry firearms under
such rules and regulations as the Attorney General may prescribe.

Sec. 26. (a) The foregoing amendments made by this Act shall take effect

upon the expiration of the ninety-day period following the date of the enactment
of this Act.

(b) Upon the effective date of this Act, each person holding office as a member
of the Board of Parole on the date immediately preceding such effective date
shall be deemed to be a Commissioner and shall be entitled to serve as such for

the remainder of the term for which such person was appointed as a member
of such Board of Parole.

(c) All powers, duties, and functions of the aforementioned Board of Parole

shall, on and after such effective date, be deemed to be vested in the Commission,
and shall, on and after such date, be carried out by the Commission in accordance
with the provisions of this Act, except that the Commission may make such
transitional rules as are necessary to be in effect for not to exceed one year follow-

ing the effective date.

Sec. 27. The table of sections for chapter 311 of title IS, United States Code,
is amended to read as follows :

"Sec.

"5201. Parole Commission.
"4202. Persons eligible.
"4203. Parole interview procedures.
"4204. Aliens.
"4205. Retaking parole violator under warrant.
"4206. Officer executing warrant to retake parole violator.
"4207. Parole modification and revocation.
"4208. Fixing eligibility for parole at time of sentencing.
"4200. Young adult ofl'enders.

"4210. Warrants to retake Canal Zone parole violators."

Sec. 28. The table of sections for chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code, is

amended to read as follows :

"Sec.

"5005. Youth correction decisions.
"5006. Definitions.
"5010. Sentence.
"5011. Treatment.
"5012. Certificate as to availability of facilities.
"5013. Provision of facilities.

"5014. Classification studies and reports.
"5015. Powers of Director as to placement of youth offenders.
"5016. Reports concerning offenders.
"5017. Release of youth offenders.
"501S. Revocation of Commission orders.
"5019. Supervision of released youth offenders.
"5020. Apprehension of released offenders.
"5021. Certiflo'ite setting aside conviction.
"5022. Applicable date.
"5023. Relationship to Probation and Juvenile Delinquency Acts.
"5024. Where applicable.
"5025. Applicability to the District of Columbia.
"5026. Parole of other offenders not affected."

Sec. 29. The table of sections for chapter 403 of title 18, United States Code, is

amended by deleting the item

"5037. Parole."
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and inserting in lieu thereof the item

"5037. Parole of juvenile offenders."

The Judicial Conference of the United States has approved the

concepts of S. 1463 and I am pleased to submit their report for the

hearing record.

[The Judicial Conference statement follows :]

Administrative Office of the United States Courts,
Washington, D.C., May 1, 1973.

Hon. James O. Eastland,
Chairman, Judiciary Committee,
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.G.

Dear Senator Eastland : I write in reference to the Parole Commission Act
of 1973, a draft bill by Senator Burdick which would establish a regionalized
Parole Commission as an independent agency of the Department of Justice.

This bill is a revision of S. 3993, introduced in the 92nd Congress, which was
referred to the Judicial Conference of the United States on October 19, 1972
for an expression of views.
At the meeting April 5 and 6, the Conference approved the draft bill in

principle. The Conference noted its specific approval of four basic features in

the bill, namely :

(1) Regionalization of Parole Board hearings and original actions with pro-
vision for appeal to the National Parole Commission ;

(2) That applicants for parole be allowed to select a nonlawyer advocate;
(3) That applicants for parole and their advocates shall have reasonable

access to their files with certain exceptions ;

(4) That the Parole Commission shall furnish each applicant for parole a
written statement of reasons for its actions when the application is denied.
The legislation provides that the Parole Commission may deny an applicant

for parole access to any part of the presentence investigation report. In so doing,
however, the Commission must summarize the basic content of the material
withheld and furnish such summary to the immate or his advocate. The Con-
ference recommends that section 4203(b)(4) which provides that the appro-
priate court may retain the discretion to approve any such summary of any
presentence report be followed by the words "by written direction or order."

Sincerely,
William E. Foley,

Deputy Director.

Senator Burdick. Our principal witness today is Maurice H. Sig-
ler, Chairman of the U.S. Board of Parole, accompanied by Glen
Pommerening, Assistant Attorney General for the Administrative
Division, and Mary Lawton, Deputy Assistant Attorney General,
Office of Legal Counsel.

STATEMENT OF MAURICE H. SIGLER, CHAIRMAN, U.S. BOARD OF

PAROLE, ACCOMPANIED BY GLEN POMMERENING, ASSISTANT
ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR THE ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION;
MARY LAWTON, DEPUTY ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, OF-

FICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL; JOSEPH A. BARRY, LEGAL COUNSEL,
U.S. BOARD OF PAROLE, AND PETER B. HOFFMAN, CRIMINOLO-
GIST, U.S. BOARD OF PAROLE

Mr. SiGLER. Mr. Chairman, it is indeed a pleasure to appear before

you today on the subject of S. 1468, the Parole Commission Act of
1973. I note initially that S. 1468 is quite similar to legislation upon
which I testified in detail on July 25, 1972. For this reason, I shall

express our views on the substantive provisions of the bill in the con-
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text of the initiatives which have been undertaken by the Board of

Parole since that time.

Before I proceed with my statement, however, I would like to com-
mend you, Mr. Cliairman, and the members of your stall', for the fine

work you have done in seeking ways to improve the paroling process.

This, of course, is a goal which we all share, and I am confident that

by working together we will be able to achieve our common objective.
When I appeared before you last summer, I stated that the Board

found much merit in your legislative proposal to reorganize the Board
and to revise its procedures. This is likewise true of S. 1463, and I will

address myself to many of the worthwhile changes which the legisla-
tion advocates.

You will recall that during my previous appearance, I indicated that

the Board of Parole was in the process of establishing a pilot project

designed to test both the concept of regionalization as well as new
procedures. In many respects, the chaiiges implemented in the pilot

project are similar to those suggested in your recent legislative pro-

posals. Therefore, I believe that it would be useful for me to review

in depth the organization of the project and the procedural changes
which have been adopted. In addition, I would like to bring to the

committee's attention some of the results from our first 6 months of

experience.
The pilot regionalization project went into effect in October 1972,

in the Northeast region of the United States. The region consists of

the following Federal institutions : The Federal Reformatory, Peters-

]iurg, Va.
;
the Eobert F. Kennedy Youth Center, Morgantown, W.

Va., youth institutions, and also the U.S. Penitentiary, Lewisburg,
Pa.; the Federal Reformatory for Women, Alderson, W. Va.

;
and

the Federal Correctional Institution, Danbury, Conn., adult
institutions.

For purposes of the project, parole interviews are conducted by a

panel of two hearing examiners. Their recommendations are then
forwarded to the Board in Washington, where a parole decision is

made. The decision is then communicated back to the institution.

The project is innovative in many respects. First of all, parole deci-

sions are based on explicit guidelines designed to provide fairness and
reasonable uniformity in the parole process. These guidelines were

developed in conjunction with an LEAA-funded research project
which began in 1970.

In order to establish these guidelines, three primary elements in the

parole decisionmaking process were identified. These are: (a) the

severity of the offense; (h) the parole prognosis; that is, the proba-
bility of favorable parole outcome; and (e) other relevant factors such
as institutional adjustment, community resources and the inmate's re-

lease plan.
Guidelines for parole decisionmaking have been developed which

relate these elements to a general policy regarding the time to be
served before release. Briefly, the determination of the severity of the
offense, and the parole prognosis indicate the general range of time to
be served before release. For example, an inmate who was convicted
of a low-severity offense and who has a very high probability of favoi--

ahle parole outcome will generally serve a relatively short period of
time before release; an inmate with a low-severity offense, but only

72-524—76 2
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a fair probability of favorable parole outcome will generally serve a

longer period of time, et cetera. The periods are specified for each

combination of elements.

After the range of time to be served is determined, other factors

are then considered, such as the subject's institutional behavior and

participation in institutional programing, the results of institutional

testing, community resources, and the parole plan. AVhen exceptional
factors are present, such as extremely good or poor institutional per-

formance, and a decision falling outside of the guideline range is

made, the hearing examiner must cite the reason for this exception,
" These guidelines serve two functions: One, they structure discre-

tion by providing generally consistent parole policy; and two, in

individual cases they serve to alert reviewing officers to decisions fall-

ing outside of the giiidelines so that either the unique factors in the

case may be specified or the decision may be reconsidered. It is felt

that the use of these guidelines will serve not to remove discretion but
to enable it to be exercised in a fair and rational manner.
In order that the subcommittee may better understand the use of

these decision guidelines, I would like to submit for the record copies
of the parole prognosis evaluation worksheet, the guidelines for youth
and adult offenders, and a set of general instructions for using these

forms. The guidelines were revised in April to reflect the results of the

first 6 months, and will be revised periodically as necessary.
Senator Burdick. They will be received.

[The infonnation follows :]

Form R-2— (Rev. April 1973)

Guideline Evaluation Worksheet

Case Name Register Number
Salient Factors : (Please check each correct statement) :

A. Commitment offense did not involve auto theft.

. B. Subject had one or more codefendants (whether brought to trial

with subject or not).
. _C. Subject has no prior (adult or juvenile) incarcerations.

. D. Subject has no other prior sentences (adult or juvenile) (i.e.,

probation, fine, suspended sentence ) .

E. Subject has not served more than IS consecutive months during
any prior incarceration (adult or juvenile).

F. Subject has completed the 12th grade or received his G.E.D.
. . G. Subject has never had probation or parole revoked for been com-

mitted for a new offense while on probation or parole).
. H. Subject was IS years old or older at first conviction (adult or

juvenile).
. I. Subject was 18 years old or older at first commitment (adult or

juvenile).
. J. Subject was employed, or a full time student, for a total of at least

six months during the last two years in the community.
K. Subject plans to reside with his wife and/or children after release.

Total number of correct statements = favorable factors = score.

Offense Severity: Rate the severity of the present offense by placing a check in
the appropriate category. If there is a disagreement, each examiner will initial

the category he chooses.

Low High
Low Moderate Very High
Moderate Greatest

(e.g. willful homicide, kidnapping)
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+ Prison Time (Months.

Youth
Served To Date

Adult

Total Time
Months.

Decision Recommendation
Dissenting Recommendation (if any).

Instructions fob Use of Decision Guidelines

THE DECISION GUIDELINES (Form R-3—R^) INDICATE THE AVERAGE
TOTAL NUMBER OF MONTHS SERVED BEFORE RELEASE (INCLUD-
ING JAIL TIME) FOR EACH COMBINATION OF OFFENSE SEVERITY/
SALIENT FACTOR CHARACTERISTICS. THIS IS IN THE FORM OF A
RANGE (e.g. 12-16 months) AND IS INTENDED TO SERVE AS A GUIDE-
LINE ONLY. HOWEVER, YOU ARE REQUIRED TO INDICATE THE
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS WHICH FALL OUTSIDE OF THE
GUIDELINE RANGE.

GUIDELINE EVALUATION WORKSHEET—FORM R-2 WILL BE COM-
PLETED :

A. For all initial interviews
B. For all review interviews where the previous continuance has been 30

months or more
C. For all review interviews in which a recommendation for continuance is

being considered when this continuance does not relate to institutional

misconduct or the failure to complete a specific program
SEVERITY RATING—THE HEARING PANEL WILL RATE THE SEVERITY
OF THE SUBJECTS OFFENSE BEHAVIOR. THIS IS A MATTER OF
JUDGMENT. The examples given on the Decision Guideline Chart (Form R-3)

(Adult) and R-4 (Youth) show the severity ratings customarily given to se-

lected offenses. These are meant to serve only as examples. However, the

panel's severity rating must be supported by the case summary.
Note : 1. If an offense behavior can be classified under more than one category,

the most serious applicable category is to be used. If the offense behavior involves
a series of separate offenses, a more serious category may be used.

2. If an offense is not listed, the proper category may be obtained by comparing
the severity of the offense with those of similar offen.ses listed.

SALIENT (Favorable) FACTOR SCORE—ONE POSITIVE POINT WILL BE
GIVEN FOR EACH CORRECT STATEMENT. The total number of correct
statements reflect the salient factor score.

Note : 3. When recommending a continuance, allow one month for release

program processing.

GUIDELINES FOR DECISIONMAKING-AVERAGE TOTAL TIME SERVED BEFORE RELEASE (INCLUDING JAIL TIME)

[In months]

Offense characteristics (examples)

Offender characteristics—salient (favorable)
factor score (probability of favorable

parole outcome)

(9 to 11) (6 to 8) (4 to 5) (0to3)
very high high fair low

ADULT CASES

Category A—Lew severity cffenses— Immigration law violations, walkaway,
minor theft (includes larceny and simple possession of stolen property
less than 51,0C0) 6-10 8-12 10-14 12-16

Category B— Low/troderate severity offenses—Alcohol law violations, se-

lective Service, Wlann Act (no force—commercial purposes), theft from

mail, fcrgery/fraud (less than $1,OCO), possession of marijuana (less than

5500) passing/possession of counteifeit currency (less than Jl,000) 8-12 12-16 16-20 20 25
Category C—Moderate severity offenses-Simple theft of motor vehicle

(not multiple theft or for resale), theft, forgery.fiaud (n,000 to $20,000),

possession of marijuana (i5C0 or over), possession of ether soft drugs
(less than $5,000); sale of marijuana (less than 55,000); rsle of other soft

drugs (less than $500), possession of heavy narcotics (by addict— less

than J500), receiving stolen properly with intent to resclKless than $20,-

000), embezzlement (less than $20,000), pas' ing/pcssessior of counterfeit

currency (n,000 to $20,000), interstate transportation of stolen/forged
securities (less than $20,000) 12-16 16-20 20-24 24-30



16

GUIDELINES FOR DECISIONMAKING—AVERAGE TOTAL TIME SERVED BEFORE RELEASE (INCLUDING JAIL TIME)

[In months]

Offense characteristics (examples)

Offender characteristics— salient (favorable)
factor score (probability of favorable

parole outcome)

(9 to 11)

very high

(6 to 8)

high

(4 to 5)
fair

(0 to 3)
low

ADULT CASES

Category D—High severity offenses—Theft, forge-y/fraud (over $20,000),
sale of marijuana ($5,000 or more), sale of other soft drugs ($500 to

$5,000), possession of other soft drugs (more than $5,000), sale of heavy
narcotics to support ovirn habit, receiving stolen properly ($20,000 or

over), embezzlement ($20,000 to $100,000), passing/possession of

counterfeit currency (more than $20,000), counterfeiter. Interstate trans-

portation of stolen/forged securities ($20,000 or more), possession of

heavy narcotics (by addict—$500 or more), sexual act (fear
—no Injury),

burglary (bank or post office), robbery (no viieapon or injury), organized
vehicle theft 16-20 20-26 26-32 32-38

Category E—Very high severity offenses— Extortion, assault (serious

injury), Mann Act (force), armed robbery, sexual act (force
—

Injury),
sale of soft drugs (other than marijuana

—more than $5,000), possession
of heavy narcotics (nonaddict), sale of heavy narcotics for profit 26-36 36-45 45-55 55-65

Category F—Greatest severity joffenses-Aggravated armed robbery (or
other felony)

—weapon fired or serious injury during offense, kidnap-
ping, willful homiiclde (Information not available due to limited

number of cases)
YOUTH CASES

Category A—Low severity offenses—Immigration law violations, walk-

away, minor theft (Includes larceny and simple possession of stolen prop-

erty less than $1,000) 6-10 8-12 10-14 12-15

Category B—Low/moderate severity offenses—Alcohol law violations, selec-

tive service, Mann Act (no force—commercial purposes), theft from mall,

forgery/fraud (less than $1,000), possession of marlhuana(less than $500),

passing/possession ofcounterfeitcurrency (less than $1,000) 8-12 12-16 16-20 20-25

Category C—Moderate severity offenses—Simple theft of motor vehicle (not

multiple theft or for resale), theft, forgery/fraud ($1,000 to $20,000), pos-
session of marihuana ($500 or over), possession of other soft drugs (less
than $5,000), sale of marihuana (less than $5,000), sale of other soft drugs
(less than $500), possession of heavy narcotics (by addict—less than $500),

receiving stolen property with intent to resell (less than $20,000), embez-
zlement (less than $20,000), passing/possession of counterfeit currency
($1,000 to $20,000), Interstate transportation of stolen/forged securities

(less than $20,000) 9-13 13-17 17-21 21-26

Category D—High severity offenses—Theft, forgery/fraud (over $20,000),
sale of marihuana ($5,000 or more), sale of other soft drugs ($500 to

$5,000), possession of other soft drugs (more than $5,000), sale of heavy
narcotics to support own habit, receiving stolen property ($20,000 or over),
embezzlement ($20,000 to $100,000), passing/possession of counterfeit

currency (more than $20,000), counterfeiter, Interstate transportation of

stolen/forged securities ($20,000 or more), possession of heavy narcotics

(by addict—$500 or more), sexual act (fear—no injury), burglary (bank
or post office), robbery (no weapon or injury), organized vehicle theft 12-16 16-20 20-24 24-28

Category E—Very high severity offenses— Extortion, assault (serious injury),
Mann Act (force), armed robbery, sexual act (force

—
injury), sale of soft

drugs (other than marihuana—more than $5,000), possession of heavy
narcotics(nonaddlct),saleof heavy narcotics for profit 20-27 27-32 32-36 36-42

Category F—Greatest severity offenses—Aggravated armed robbery (or
other felony)

—weapon fired or serious injury during offense, kidnapping,
willful homicide (Information not available due to limited

number of cases)

NOTES

1. If an offense behavior can be classified under more than 1 category, the most serious applicable category is to be
used. If an offense behavior involved multiple separate offenses, the severity level may be increased.

2. If an offense is not listed above, the proper category may be obtained by comparing the severity of th eoffense with
those of similar offenses listed.

3. If a continuance Is to be recommended, allow 30 days (1 mo) for release program provision.

For purposes of the pilot project, an inmate is also permitted to

have a representative or advocate present with him at the parole inter-

view. The function of the representative is to assist the inmate in

summarizinor the positive features of his case. This aspect has been
well received by the inmates and has proved to be especially helpful in
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cases where an inmate has had difficulties expressing himself. For the
first 6 months of the project, representatives appeared at over 40 per-
cent of tlie interviews.

I would like to point out here that up to this point in the project
inmates have not been permitted to be represented by legal counsel. It

appears, though, that there is no need to preclude an attorney from
appearing as an inmate's representative simply because he is an

attorney, as long as he realizes that parole release determinations do
])ot, and should not, involve an adversary presentation of issues of law
or fact.

Starting this month, therefore, inmates will be permitted to appear
at the initial interview Avith a representative who may be an attorney.
I wish to emphasize, however, that the Board will take the necessary
measures to assure that the representative, be he a lawyer or not, under-
stands his limited, nonadversary role in parole-release determinations.

Senator BuROirK. Is there any thought by anybody to provide an

attorney at that point? Suppose the inmate is without funds? Is there

any thought given to the Government providing an attorney?
^Ir. SiGLER. This has been thought of and it is the opinion of the

De])artment of Justice that this will not, that this will be a nonindigent
thing: that is, if you have the money you may. It is not a matter of
must, because a lawyer is not serving as a legal representative merely
as an advocate.

Senator Burdtck. I see. Continue.
]Mr. SiGLER. Another objective of the pilot project is to render

sr.oedier parole decisions. One of the frequent criticisuis leveled at the
Board, and justifiably so, is that the decisionmaking process has been
too cumbersome and slow. This is in large part due to the fact that
some 17,000 parole-related decisions must be made during the course
of a year, yet the administratiA'e framework is far from perfect.

AVe established a goal in the project of notifvnng the institution of
tlie Board's decision within a A'ery short pei'iod of time. Despite the
awkward system that had to be devised for transmitting interview
summnries and recommendations from the institutions to the Board
as well as the Board's decisions back to the institutions, I can report
that 99.5 percent of all decisions were made known to the inmates
within 5 working days. This, of course, is a very significant accomplish-
ment, as it tends to minimize the anxiety which the inmates under-
standably face during the waiting period.

I would also like to bring to the subcommittee's attention the fact
that the inmates are provided with written reasons in cases when pa-
role is denied. Again, the providing of reasons has been a frequent
suggestion from those who have studied the parole process. We be-
lieve that the suggestion is sound, and this belief has been reinforced

by the results of the project. Inmates who are advised of the reasons
for parole denial are better able to understand what steps they must
take to improve their chances. In addition, the cloak of secrecy is re-
moved from the decisionmaking process when the reasons for the deci-
sion are communicated to the inmate.
The pilot project also involves a new review/appeal mechanism.

Briefly, under this procedure inmates are permitted to file for review
30 days after a parole decision has been rendered. The request for re-
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view may be based on either new and significant information which
was available at the time of the interview, but not considered, or an

assertion that the written reasons provided to the inmate do not sup-

port the order of the Board.
The petition by the inmate is considered by a Kegional Board mem-

ber, who then has several options available. The decision may be af-

firmed; a review hearing may be granted in Washington, D.C., at

which the inmate may be represented ; a reinterview may be granted
at the institution

;
or the original decision may be modified. During

the first 6 months, 104 requests for review were acted upon. The deci-

sion was affirmed in approximately 70 percent of the cases.

If the inmate is not satisfied with the action taken upon review, he

may then appeal the decision to the Board after a 90-day waiting-

period. If a member of the Board determines that the appeal should be

considered, he and two otlier members render a final decision.

This then is a general description of our pilot regionalization proj-
ect. As I have already indicated, the results after 6 months have been

very encouraging. We intend to continue the project and make appro-
priate improvements until such time as it is absorbed into a general
parole reorganization.

Before proceeding, I would like to offer for inclusion in the record
some additional statistics which may be of interest to the subcommittee

concerning the project's first half year.
Senator Burdick. They will be received.

U.S. Board of Parole

PILOT REGIONALIZATION PROJECT—THE FIRST SIX MONTHS

This report describes some statistical highlights of the first six months of the
U.S. Board of Parole Regionalization Project. The format of this report is de-

signed for illustrative rather than analytical purposes. For further information,
the six monthly research reports (from which these figures have been abstracted)
may be consulted.

Table No. J—Number of interviews

All institutions
Initial 962
Review 613
Early review 28
Violation 65
Re-interview 11

Table No. 1 shows the total number of the types of interviews conducted dur-
ing the six month period from October 1972-March 1973.

TABLE 2.—REPRESENTATION AT INTERVIEWS
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TaUe No. 3—Nmnher of violation interviews with Attorney/witness present

None ^^

Attorney/Witness(es) 4

Attorney only 12

Witness (es) only 2

Table No. 3 shows the number of violation interviews and the number of times

an alleged violator was represented by an attorney and/or had witness (es)

present. It may be seen that at this point attorneys and witnesses are present at

only a minority of the violation interviews held.

TaUc No. 4—Notification of decisions—percent of eases notified of decision

witliin 5 working days

All institutions *99.5%

*One case was delayed due to mechanical failure ; two cases were delayed due to split

decisions ; six cases were continued to Washington for en banc consideration.

Table No. 4 shows the percent of cases notified of their decision within five

working days. In all but nine cases, the goal of speedier decision-making was
fulfilled in that the inmates were notified of the decision of the Board within

five days of their interview.

TABLE 5.—INITIAL INTERVIEWS, GUIDELINE USAGE
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tor would consider appeals from the case decisions of the hearing
examiner panels within his region, and his decision could then be

appealed to the three national directors sitting as a National Appel-
late Board. The decisions of the National Appellate Board would be

final. In essence, the procedural details would be similar to those of

the pilot project discussed previously.
In addition, original jurisdiction in certain cases, sucli as tliose that

are especially sensitive or notorious, would be retained by the National

Appellate Board. Also, the regional and national directors would
meet as the U.S. Board of Parole at regular intervals to develop,

modify, and promulgate Board procedures, rules, and policies.

Each regional director would be responsible for the management
and general operation of his regional ofHce, the career development
and fraining of personnel, and the decisions made within his region.
In addition to parole granting and revocation decisions, other case

decisions, such as the modification of supervision conditions, early
release from parole, or warrant issuance, presently made by the Board
members in Washington, D.C., would be made at the regional level.

This then basically describes the reorganization plan as presently
envisioned. We think that implementing the plan would achieve the

following major goals :

One : The ability to provide timely, well-reasoned decisions based

upon personal interviews of inmates by a professionally trained hear-

ing panel. Both the lack of timely decisions and the geographic dis-

tance between parole applicants and decisionmakers have resulted

in considerable criticism.

Two : The development and implementation of an explicit general

paroling policy to provide greater consistency and equity in decision-

making. The lack of explicit policy, precedents, and decision con-

sistency has been a subject of major criticism.

Three: An efficient, efl'ective, and legal method of aflording, sub-

stantive review of case decisions, the lack of which also has been

severely criticized.

Four: A more effective and responsive liaison with the institution,
courts and related personnel, as well as with persons under the super-
vision of the Board.
As I mentioned previously, there has been some discussion concern-

ing the issue of delegating the authority to make parole determina-
tions to hearing examiners. The position of the Department of Justice

is that this delegation may be accomplished administratively, without

legislation. In this respect, this position is consistent with that of the
American Law Division of the Library of Congress. I would be happy
to supply a copy of this analysis for the record.

Senator Buedick. If you supply a copy it will be inserted.

[The Library of Congress matter follows :]

The Library of Congress,
Congressional Research Service.

Washington, B.C., March 27,1978.

To : Senate Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries Attention : Mr. Chris
Erlewine.

From : American Law Division.

Subject : Delegation of Decision-Making Functions of Parole Board Members
by Executive Reorganization.

This is in response to your request for comments on a Subcommittee memoran-
dum concerning the validity of transferring certain functions of the Parole
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Board to hearing examiners by executive reorganization. You also inquire
whether (1) a reorganization plan could transfer the functions of the Board
to the Attorney General with authority to delegate those functions in turn to
hearing examiners; (2) the Attorney General could accomplish such a transfer
of functions without a reorganization plan under his powers of internal reorgani-
zation; (3) the Parole Board, under its present statutory authority, may delegate
decisionmaking functions to hearing examiners, subject to discretionary review :

and (4) the Board, under its present statutory authority, may authorize final
decisions to be made by panels consisting of less than the full membership of
the Board or may assign Board members specific areas of jurisdictional authority,
e.g., over parole matters emanating from defined geographic areas.
The Subcommittee memorandum concludes that a reorganization plan con-

taining a provision allowing delegation of the Board's decisionmaking function
in parole matters to hearing examiners would be violative of 5 U.S.C. 9u5(a) (4).
It is argued that .since the statutory provision establishing the Parole Board
(18 TT.S.C. 4203) vests the decision-making power in the members of the Board
and contains no explicit authority for delegation of that power, such a reorgani-
zation would involve a transfer of ''a function which is not expressly authorized
by law."

It would appear that the limitation of the Reorganization Act is being read
too broadly. Although obviously it would be necessary to review the precise
language of any proposed plan, it would appear that such a plan could either
authorize the delegation of decision-making functions currently performed by
the Parole Board to hearing examiners or transfer these functions to other
governmental authorities, including the Attorney General, who could then dele-

gate them to examiners.
Section 905(a) (4) of title 5 states :

Limitations on powers— (a) A reorganization plan may not provide for,
and a reorganization under this chapter may not have the effect of—

(4) Authorizing an agency to exercise a function which is not expressly
authorized by law at the time the plan is transmitted to Congress; . . .

Plainly, this provision precludes only the vesting by reorganization of a new
substantive function in an agency. Stated differently, reorganization plans may
not be utilized to authorize the delegation of a function which the delegator did
not have or to transfer a function which does not exist.

In the instant situation, the Parole Board already has plenary statutory
authority in parole matters. Thus allowing the Board to delegate some part of

that authority to hearing examiners in no way adds to its substantive functions
nor does it conflict with any express limitations in the statute. Indeed, since

an apparent purpose of the proposed reorganization is to increase the efficiency
of Board operations, such a plan would be totally consonant with the design of

the Reorganization Act :

Section 901. Purposes— (a) The President shall from time to time examine
the organization of all agencies and shall determine what changes therein

are necessary to accomplish the following purposes :

(1) to promote the better execution of the laws, the more effective

management of the executive branch, and of its agencies and functions,

and the expeditious administration of the puldic business ; . . .

(3l to increase the efficiency of the operations of the Government to

the fullest extent practicable.

Similarly, a transfer by reorganization i^lan of the Parole Board's functions

to tlie Attorney General would seem lawful since it would not involve the

"exercise of a "function which is not expressly authorized by law at the time

the plan is transmitted to Congress." This would appear to be true notwith-

standing the provision 28 U.S.C. 509(4) which vests in the Attorney General

the functions of all officers, agencies and employees of the Department of .Tustice

except, among others, the Parole Board. That provision itself is derived from

an executive reoraanization plan (Reorganization Plan No. 2 of 1950. sec. 1,

64 Stat 1261) and appears in the T'nited States Code as a result of codification

action bv Congress In 1966. P.L. 89-554, sec. 4(c), 80 Stat. 612. Thus it is not a

substantive congressional prohibition but, rather, a part of the executive organi-

zational scheme.
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Finally, by the same token, the Attorney General could not, because of section
509(4), elfect a transfer of functions within the Board on his own without a
further reorganization which vests him with the functions of the Board. To this
extent section 501)14) serves as a limitation on the Attorney General's admin-
istrative authority.
The subject memorandum cites in support of its contrary conclusion the exam-

ple of the rejection of Reorganization I'lan No. 2 of 1961 which involved, among
other things, the transfer, with authority to delegate, of powers vested with
certain member.s of the Federal Communications Commission to other Commis-
sion employees and hearing officers. But as the Report of the Senate Committee
on Commerce (S. Rept. No. 576) clearly indicates, the rejected plan would have
amended certain basic substantive provisions of the Communications Act. It was
-also objected to on the ground tliat it would concentrate too mucli power in the
Chairman of tlie Commission. (Extracts from the Report are attached.) Thus the
FCC rejection would not appear applicable to the instant situation.
On the other hand, several reorganization plans authorizing the delegation of

decision-malting functions from similar commissions and boards to hearing
examiners have been approved by Congress, e.g.. Reorganization Plan No. 3 of
1961 (Civil Aeronautics Board) : Reorganization Plan No. 4 of 1961 (P'ederal
Trade Commission) ; Reorganization Plan No. 7 of 1961 (Federal Maritime Com-
mission). (Copies attached.) In each instance the underlying statute had no
prohibitory provision.

Wirh regard to your further inquiry as to whether less than the full member-
ship of the Board may exercise the decision-making authority of the Board, the
courts have held that in light of the broad discretion vested by Congress in the
Board it has the inherent authority to establish procedures to accomplish its

purposes and functions, including delegation of authority to determine parole
juatters by a panel of members. Tims in Earnest v. Mosclcy, 426 F. 2d 406, 469

(10th Cir. 1970), the court stated :

The apr>ellant's next contention is that the Board of Parole may not

delegate two members of the Board the authority to determine whether or
not parole or conditional release should be revoked. We disagree.

Title IS U.S.C. sec. 4207 provides for a revocation hearing before the

Board, a memlier of the Board, "or an examiner designated by the Board."
It then provides :

"The Board may then, or at any time in its discretion, revoke the order
of parole and terminate such parole or modify the terms and conditions
thereof."
We see notliing in this language which would compel the conclusion that

the entire Board must decide on every parole revocation. The creation of the
Board and Congress' vesting in it a very broad discretion carries with it

an inherent authority to establish such procedures as will best effectuate

Congress' purpose in estal)lishing the Board and the parole system. The
Court in Hiiscr v. Reed. 115 U.S. App. D.C. 254. 818 F. 2d 225, 242 n. 14,

noted that for the fiscal year 1960 the Parole Board held 12,640 hearings of

all types and issued 1,016 warrants for the arrest of parole violators and 670
warrants for the arrest of mandatory release violators. To too narrowly
circumscribe the authority of the Board to establish its own internal pro-
cedures and effectively distribute its work load would impose an undue
burden on the Board and, indeed, the entire parole system. As this court

said in Christianson v. Zerhst, 89 F. 2d 40 (10th Cir.), the proceedings of the

Board in revoking the parole or conditional release are presumptively cor-

rect. Unless it is clearly shown that the procedures established by the Board
are clearly discriminatory or so lacking in fundamental fairness as to

deprive the parolee or releasee of due process, or that those procedures are

clearly contrary to the statutes creating and regulating the Board, the

Court will not attempt to substitute its judgment for that of the Board.
Under the court's rationale, it would also appear proper for the Board in

tipportioning its workload to assign specific jurisdictional areas to individual

members.
Tour final inquiry, as to whether the Board currently has authority to delegate

certain decision-making functions to hearing examiners, presents a closer legal

question. There is no express authority under the present statute regarding
delegations of the Board's functions. The absence of such explicit authority,

however, obviously does not make all delegations impermissible. As Earnest v.
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Moseley, supra, holds, final determinations in parole revocation proceedings may
be made by two members of the Board. And in French v. Ciccone, 308 F. Siipp.

256 (U.S.D.C.W.D. Mo. 1969), the court upheld the Board's practice (see 28
C.F.R. 2.15) of having hearing officers conduct parole proceedings against a claim
that a prisoner has a right to a hearing "before a voting member" of the Board.

(It may be noted that the examiners may submit recommendations along with
their report to the Board.) Both cases turned on the broad discretion vested

in the Board.
However, in a leading case in this area, Cudahy Packing Co. v. Holland, 315

U.S. 357 (1942), the Supreme Court held a delegation of subpoena issuing power,
without specific statutory authority, to be unlawful. At issue was the question
whether the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the Department
of Labor could delegate his power to sign and issue a subpoena duces tecum.
The Administrator argued that his delegation authority stemmed from section

4(c) of the Fair Labor Standards Act and by implication from the structure
of the Act and the nature of the duties imposed upon him. Section 4(c) provided :

"The principal office of the Administrator shall be in the District of Columbia,
but he or his duly authorized representative may exei'cise any or all his powers
in anv place." The Court rejected the contention, stating (315 LT.S. at pp.

361-362) :

If, as the Administrator contends, the section is to be read as authorizing
delegation of the subpoena power, that authority is without limitation. He
may confer the power on any employee appointed under §4(b), whom "he
deems necessary to carry out his functions and duties," or even on those
who render the voluntary and uncompensated service which he may accept
under that section. Moreover, if so read § 4(c) likewise gives the Adminis-
trator unrestricted authority to delegate every other power which he pos-

sesses, and would render meaningless and unnecessary the provisions of

§ 11 authorizing the Administrator to delegate his power of investigation
to designated representatives.

If such is the meaning of the Act, he could delegate at will his duty to

report periodically to Congress (§4(d)), to appoint industry committees
and their chairmen, to fix their compensation and prescribe their procedure
(§5), to approve or disapprove their reports by orders whose findings of

fact, if supported by substantial evidence, are conclusive (§10), to define

certain terms used in the Act (§ 13), to provide by regulations or orders for

the employment of learners and handicapped workers (§ 14), as well as other
duties. A construction of the Act which would thus permit the Administrator
to delegate all his duties, including those involving administrative judgment
and discretion which the Act has in terms given only to him, can hardly be

accepted unless plainly required by its words.
The Administrator seeks to meet this difficulty by construing §4(c) as

authorizing the delegation of some but not all of liis administrative func-
tions. But we cannot read "any or all" as meaning "some." And in any case
if only some functions can be delegated, we are aftorded no legislative guide
for determining which may and which may not be delegated. We think tliat

the words of the section, read in their statutory setting, make it reasonably
plain that its only function is to provide that the Administrator and his rep-
resentatives may exercise either within or without the District of Columbia
such powers as each possesses. This construction is fully supported by the
legislative history of § 4(c).'

The Court also noted that specific authority to delegate the subpoena power
contained in measures passed by both Houses was eliminated in conference.
More recent decisions appear to have modified CudaJiy, however. In N.L.R.B. v.

Duval Jewelry Co., 357 U.S. 1 (1958), the Court held proper the Board's delega-
tion of authority to hearing officers to make preliminary rulings on motions to
revoke subpoenas since the Board reserved to itself the right of final decision :

Tlie limited nature of the delegated authority distinguishes the case from
Cudahy Paekinfj Co. v. Holland. 315 U.S. 357. and Flemfny v. Mohau-k Wreck-
ing Co., 331 U.S. Ill, where the person endowed with the power to issue sub-
poenas delegated the function to another. While there is delegation here, the
ultimate decision on a motion to revoke is reserved to the Board, not to a
subordinate. All that the Board has delegated is the preliminary ruling on
the motion to revoke. It retains the final decision on the merits. One who is
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aggrieved by the ruling of tlie regional director or hearing officer can get the

Board's ruling. The fact that special permission of the Board is required for

the appeal" is not important. Motion for leave to appeal is the method of

.showing that a .substantial question is raised concerning the validity of the

subordinate's ruling. If the Board denies leave, it has decided that no sub-

stantial question is presented. We think that no more is required of it under
the statutory system embodied in § 11. No matter how strict or stubborn the

statutory requirement may be, the law does not "preclude practicable
administrative procedure in obtaining the aid of assistants in the depart-
ment." See Morgan v. United 8tate>i, 298, U.S. 468, 481; Eagles v. Samuels,
329 U.S. 304, 315, 316. It is not of help to .say that on some matters the Board
has original jurisdiction, on others appellate jurisdiction. We are dealing
with a matter on which the Board has the final say. As in the case of many
other matters coming before hearing examiners, it merely delegates the

right to make a preliminary ruling. Much of the work of the Board neces-

sarily has to be done through agents.
Similarly, in Wirtz v. Atlantic States Construction Co., 357 F. 2d 442, 445 (5th

Cir. 1966), the court remarked :

Unless, as in Cudahy, the statatory agent is hemmed in, the "administra-
tive flexibility necessary for prompt and expeditious action orr a multitude of

fronts." Fleming v. Mohawk Wrecking & Liuuber Co., supra, 331 U.S. at 122,
67 S.Ct. at 1135. 91 L.Ed, at 1385, points in the direction of allowing more,
not less, delegation. To argue for nondelegability in those situations in which
Congress has not spoken explicitly and thereby insist upon personal per-
formance by the Executive or the Chief Statutory Administrative Office

envisages many unsatisfactory results. It will mean less, not greater, atten-
tion to the intrinsic merits of each situation requiring action. It will make
governmental bureaucracy more, not less, formidable and frustrating.

If the foregoing cases represent a true modification of Cwdahy, then a clearly
circumscribed delegation of decision-making authority to hearing examiners,
which plainly maintains a "final say" with the Board, may be permissible since
there appears to be no legislative history evincing a congressional intent to the

contrary: the Board is presently vested with the broadest possible discretion in

parole matters; and the current workload of the Board is sufficiently large to
admit of reasonable administrative solutions for the sake of efficiency, effective-
ness and economy in carrying out the congressional purpose. But in view of the
absence of such express authority, and particularly taking into account that
Congress could have made provision for such delegation, the safest course would
appear to be application for new legislation by the Congress or revision of the
Board's administrative powers by executive reorganization.

Morton Rosenberg,
Legislative Atto<mcy.

Mr. SiGLER. Even if it be assumed that the delegation can be ef-

fected administratively, it still remains to be decided if this is the
best approach. Onr view is that administrative changes would have
the advantage of much greater flexibility and permit us to continue ex-

primentation until the best parole process can be achieved. We are

dealing Avith an inexact science and should be in a position to make
additional changes, necessitated by experience, mistake, or advances
in tlie state of the art. Legislation might not provide this flexibility,
and we strongly recommend that the subcommittee defer further con-
sideration of legislation until the Board has had the opportunity to
see the results from our proposed reorganization.
As I mentioned before, the subcommittee has been of great assistance

in helping the Board to focus on the issues and w^e would wish to con-
tinue our close cooperation.

Senator Burdick. Thank you, JNIr. Sigler, for a very interesting
statement. I can see we are on the same wavelength, that the legisla-
tion and your presentation coincide almost in very way. The onl}^

problem that we are faced with that I can see is the legal probleni,
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whether or not this outline that you provided can be done witliout

legislation. That is the only question I can see facing us right now.
We have some other questions that I am going to ask you. But I

was curious about that opinion from tlie Law Division of the Library
of Congress, We have one dated June 7 which is to the contrary. What
is the date of your opinion ?

Mr, SiGLER. March 27, this year.
Senator Burdick. I am surprised that tlie Law Division of the

Library of Congress has two positions. Let me read to you what they
said in the opinion they gave to the committee.

It is concluded, therefore, that the two-tiered panel system, "that is the 5
regional people and the 3 national people"' would effect a major substantive
change in and departure from tlie legislative scheme established by Congress and
it would substantially alter the ix)wers of individual members of the Board. In
this sense legislation or authorization of the Congress would appear advisable.

We all w*tt^t the same things. The Library of Congress says they
raise some questions about whether this two-tiered system can be
created by reorganization. It makes no difference to the chairman
which way we do it, but we want to do it right. How can you resolve
this difference ?

Miss Lawton. I think one of the difficulties. Senator, is that tlie

structure on which the American Law Division's conclusions are based
is not entirely the structure that is under consideration.
For example, the American Law Division's June opinion refers to

the difficulty that while parole denials would be appealable to a mem-
ber and then to the three-member panel, the national appellate level,

parole grants by a hearing examiner panel would not be.

This is not what we are contemplating at the present time. All of
this is in a state of flux and study but we recognize this problem our-
selves and suggest that both the grant and the denial should be re-

viewable by a parole board member, and not stop with the liearing
examiner level. So that the problem that is referred to there wIupIi
we agree is a real problem does not exist in the present contemplation
for changes.
Another matter that the American Law Division relied on or makes

some reference to here is that there would be in effect first- and second-
class board members. That the naticmal appellate level in Washington
would have the real power and the members of the board who are out
in the field as regional directors, there is a question whether they will
at any time sit as national directors. AVell, of course, it is contemplated
that the}' will meet periodically as national directors together as a

board, establishing the guidelines, policies and procedures. They M'ill

serve as national directors. So I think that the premises, factual ])re-
mises are not entirely accurate and, of course, we think the conclusions
not either.

Senator Buedick, Well, whether the denial or tlie granting of the

parole is a matter for appeal would have nothing to do with the struc-
ture of the two-tier parole system itself, would it '^

Miss T^AWTON. No ; what it has to do with is whether this is too much
of a delegation, in fact an abdication of certain authorities by the
Board of Parole. That doesn't exist.

Senator Burdick. That is one question. Setting up the structure
itself seems to me the key question. The theory is here you have two
tiers now and you didn't have two tiers before. You have national
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board members, but you still have reo-ional members dowu below and

an appellate board above. You have two structures.

Miss Lawton. But as I understand it that exists to an extent now
where you have two-member panels and a possibility of an en banc

review by the full Board which is in a sense a two-tier approach.
Senator Burdick. I understand the Board has approved a specific

plan of the reorganization which has been submitted to the Depart-
ment of Justice. Have you criven a copy of this to the subcommittee ?

]\Ir. SiGLER. No, sir, Mr. Chainnan, we have not. This has not been

approved yet. That is Avhy we didn't—I have a copy here. But it has

not been acted on by the officials of the Department of Justice and so

I can't tell you that it has been accepted. It has been submitted.

Senator Burdigk. When that point comes we will have a copy of

it as soon as it is available?

Mr. SiGLER. Yes, sir.

Senator Btjrdick. Could you give the subcommittee an example of

how the proposed reorganization plan would work—in a typical case ?

Mr. SiGLER. An ordinary case where the two examiners would
hear the case and if they arrived at a unanimous decision, then that

would be it, unless the inmate appealed. However, the regional director

at any time has the privilege, the authority, if that is a better word
to use, of taking any decision that a panel of board members might
make, review it, make his recommendation on it, and submit it to the

appeal board members for a final review^ in the event he wants to

completely reverse it. That might be in the interest, for example, of

the general public rather than the inmate.

Senator Burdick. Suppose the examiner is authorizing parole and
the administration of the institution believes it should not be granted,
who takes the appeal ?

Mr. SiGLER. In that case, of course, if that was done, if any action

at all was taken, it would begin with the regional director. Under nor-

mal conditions unless there was some kind of a complaint made there

probably would be no action taken.

Senator Burdick. Suppose there is a decision that is unfavorable
to the warden of the penitentiary, that this fellow is granted parole,
and the hearing examiners both agree he should have it, who would be
the one to appeal ?

Mr. SiGLER. In all instances the first appeal would be initiated with
the regional director.

Senator Burdick. Would he do it himself on his own volition?
]Mr. SiGLER. He can. That is written into our new regulations, that

you will get a copy of.

Sonator Burdick. What happens when the hearing examiners are
divided?

]\fr. SiGLER. Then it must be submitted to the regional director for
another vote by another examiner because it takes two concurring
votes either to deny or affirm a parole.

Senator Burdick. I see.

Mr. SiGLER. I might say, sir, in our project we have had a few of
those and they have been submitted.

Senator Burdick. I suppose it would be a rare case where it would
be granted and it would be appealed from ?
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Mr, SiGLER. "Where the administration would appeal? I think it

would be a rare occasion, frankly, but we have written that into our

i-egulations because we believe that protection needs to be there, but
we think it would be rare.

Senator Burdick, Under your plan that you outlined this morning,
how would you decide, or who would decide, which members are

regional directors and which members are national directors?

Mr, SiGLER, The way it is written into the regulations the Chairman
of the Board will do this after consultation with the Attorney General,

Senator Bitrdick, In other words, there's eight men here and the

Chairman of the Board would say five of you go out in the hinterlands
and three of you stay here ?

Mr, SiGLER, Right, This is the way it has been submitted.

Senator Bitrdick, After consulting with the Attorney General ?

Mr. SiGLER, With the Attorney General,
Senator Btjrdick. How is the chairman selected?

Mr. SiGLER. By the Attorney General, And serves at the pleasure of
the Attorney General.

Senator Burdigk. Do you have a suggestion now where the five

directors might be located, the regional directors?

]\f r. SiGLER. We have a suggestion that T can mention to you. I have
doubts that it will stay this way. The eight members of our Board at

this point feel that one should be in California, possibly in the Los

Angeles area. One at Atlanta. One in the South-Central region. Right
now we have Oklahoma City, but I think the regional area might be

changed from there. Another would be in the North-lNIidwest which
at the present time Ave have specified as Indianapolis, and another in

this area which at the present time we have specified as Baltimore.
AVe arrive at our decisions on a population situation from the stand-

point of the prisoners.
Senator Burdick. Prison population?
Mr. SiGLER. Prison population and also, insofar as the best locations

concerned for travel of the examiners.
Senator Burdick. How will the various requirements of the Youth

Corrections Act be carried out in the proposed I'eorganization ?

]Mr. SiGLER. That is written this way. That there will be a designated
chairman for the Youth Corrections Act and that every member of
the Board will be a member of the Youth Corrections Board so that
the Regional Director can function.

Senator Burdick. Would it be the same Chairman ?

Mr. SiGLER. No
;
it would not be the same Chairman.

Senator Burdick. It would be a member of tlie eight ?

Mr. SiGLER. It would be a member of the eight and probably- 1 would
tliink a member of the three that are based in Washington.

Senator Burdick. How will the requirements of the Labor-Manage-
ment Reporting and Disclosure Act of 1959 be carried out under the

proposed reorganization ?

INIr. Siglp:r. In exactly the same manner as it is today. In other

words, our legal counsel would liave this thing prepared from our

standpoint after an examiner has handled the request for help in the
field someplace and then a decision would be made at a regular meeting
of the entire Board. All Board members would act on all of those
cases.
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Senator Bup.dick. I understand that from tiine to time the Bureau

of Prisons comes u])on a special situation—an individual in some un-

usual circumstances Vvdio deserves parole consideration but who has

not vet served the minimum time before he may be considered. Once

the iSD-dav period durina: which a judge has jurisdiction to modify
£1 senteiice" has expired, the only avenue left is executive clemency.

Since S. 1463 provides a remedy for this situation, what do you pro-

pose the Board do in these situations if there is no new legislation?

]Mr. SiGLER. I am going- to ask jNIr. Barry, our counsel, to answer

that. .

:SIr. Barry. I understand that we do have a similar provision m the

l^roposed regulations where the Bureau of Prisons at their initiative

could bringlhis before the Board for a special consideration. This is

after the initial period lias been set. You couldn't without statutory

authorization bring them up before the three, or if it were t\vo

examiners, you would have to reach statutory eligibility first. ^Ve

don't have that.

]Mr. SiGLER. Frankly, as an unlearned person in the law I would

think the statute would have to be changed before this could be done

iit all. We can do only what the law calls for in giving a parole.

Senator Burdick. You have to have some provision in the law.

]Mr. Barry. If you want to bring him up before the eligibility date

some provision would have to be made in the statute.

Senator Burdick. Another thing we have talked about in the past is

lettino" an inmate know where he stands in the parole system, to force

him to accept responsibility for his behavior, and for his future. What
are your feelings about letting the inmate have this information ;

where

it is appropriate ?

Mr. SiGLER. Would you restate that, please?

Senator Burdick. One of the things we have talked about in the past
is letting the inmate know where he stands in the parole system, to

force him to accept responsibility for his behavior, and for liis future.

What are your feelings about letting the inmate have this information,
where it is appropriate?

Mr. SiGLER. I agree with it. I think the best way possible to get what
vou want done from a person that you have control over is to let him
know what you want and so I would say this would be good.

Senator Burdick. What about letting him know how he is getting

along, I presume, in the interim between appearances ?

Mr. SiGLER. This is, of course, an admirable thing and a good thing.
I don't know exactly how you would do that from our standpoint. I

would think that would be the responsibility of the institutional

authority.
Mr. ^NIeeker. Y^ou talked in considerable detail in your earlier testi-

mony. Y^our current plan as much as has been revealed doesn't mention
disclosure of the files.

Mr. SiGLER. The status is that the Department has—they made a

decision. We have a memorandum from former Attorney General

Ivleindienst to that effect and that is we are not giving access to tb.e

files. This has been a question that has been talked about and studied

and debated in tlie Department of Justice for a considerable time. Tlie

decision was made. T think, because of this. No. 1. we don't own the

72-524—76 3
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files. The Criminal Division of the Department of Justice places con-

fidential information in these files. The Bureau of Prisons owns these

files. If they were our files, we could make a decision about everything^
that was in there. This would be one thing, but now there are three peo-

ple, w?]l there are four, because the courts also have the presentence in-

vestigation report in these files. I can understand why the decision was
made. But to answer your question specifically and I know that is what

you want me to do. I still believe that a man is entitled to know wliat

we make our decisions on, and so personally, if all these other things
could 1)0 corrected, it would be my judgment that disclosure would be

right and fair. But I can understand very well why this decision had
to he made as it was.

Senator Burdick. In your statement you refer to "Explicit guide-
lines promulgated by the Board" as necessary for the parole examiners.

Will these guidelines be published as regulations, with the opportunity
for interested parties to comment on them, as is done in other agencies

making extensive use of hearing examiners?
Mr. SiGLER. This has been done, you know, as a demonstration thing-

and the answer is, yes, they should be part of the published
regulations.

Senator Burdick. If hearing examiners decide parole on a case

which is in the parole guidelines, would this decision be reviewed by
a Parole Board member, or would the findings of the two hearing
examiners be completely final at that time ?

Mr. SiGLER. I can think of no instance why it would be. It could
be reviewed, but why it would be changed if it is made within the

guidelines I can't answer.
Senator Burdick. As we discussed a few^ minutes ago the possibility

of an appeal from that decision still remains by the Board or someone

representing the administration.

Mr. SiGLER. This is correct, sir.

Senator Burdick. If a decision by the hearing examiner to grant
parole is not reviewed by a member of the Parole Board—doesn't
this violate the holding of the Duval case, which would require the
Board to reserve the power to make final decisions ?

Mr. SiGLER. We are into a law question and I would ask Miss Law-
ton or Mr. Barry to answer that question.

Miss La^vton". The point is the power is reserved to the Board so-

it always has the choice of exercising it. "^^^lat the Board does by
nonactions is to ratify the hearing examiner's opinion, so it is the
Board's opinion. By refusing to alter it in any way the Parole Board
acceptsit, so I think there is no problem here. If there was a total

delegation where the Board had no power to review or change, then
there would be a serious question.

Senator Burdick. They have the power and they don't exercise the-

power, they in effect agree ?

Miss Lawt^on. It is a negative ratification ; yes.
Senator Burdick. Getting back to my original question. The two-

tier appeal system you plan would appear to place three members
of the Board in a permanently superior position to the other five mem-
bers. Plow does this square with the present law^, which clearly con-
templates eight equal members ?
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Mr SiGLM^. Mi\ thairman, I can't see that it does this simply be-

cause all policy is made by allei^ht members. All policy
mi^t

be made

by ei-ht members. In our new regulations you will see that
^e

have

statecf that the Board will meet at least four times yearly and toi

this purpose. There is nothing in the regulations that say that people

cannot be transferred from one area of responsibility to another.

Senator Burdick. This is true. But the three Board members in

the top supreme court here, if you want to call it that for purposes

of clarification, can review any one of the administrative Directors.

How does that make them all equal ?
^ i ^ .^f

Miss Lawton. I would say that the functions are different, but not

necessarily unequal. ,, i • i t «
Senator Burdick. Well, I can see if I am m Washington and i can

upset your decision I am a little more equal than you are.

Miss Lawtox. Even today the decision of a few Board members

can be upset by the whole.

Senator Burdick. But it is not being upset by the whole. The whole

is eight that is upsetting now. Now the upsetting will be done by
three and they can upsetV all of the other five. Does that make them

equal ?

Miss Lawtox. Xot all of the other five collectively. One of the other

five.

Senator Bukdick. I understand.

Miss Lawtox. Well, if there is a split between the two, I believe

a third Board member is added who can tip the balance there. I don'^t

think the assigning of different functions necessarily makes some
Board members unequal. It simply really provides the inmate with a

greater chance because the appeals will be undoubtedly primarily the

inmate's or almost exclusively.
Mr. SiGLER. The regional member involved has a vote in all of these

cases.

Senator Burdick. And have you considered the administrative and

legal consequences of the court ruling that your plan for two classes

of parole board members was illegal because it would effect a major
substantial change in and departure from the legislative scheme estab-

lished by Congress ?

Miss Lawtox. I think there will be court decisions. It should be

noted, however, that the present legislation, of course, is singularly
silent on how the Board is to function. It says there is a Board of
Parole. In the Youth Corrections Act section it does refer to the e:?-

istence of examiners. It doesn't in the main parole structure, and yet
they have been used traditionally and the challenges were resolved
in our favor some time ago.
Senator Burdick. I can't quite understand, to be perfectly frank

with you. You want something to be done. We agree it is a good ap-
proach. Complete harmony. What is the objection to making sure
that we set the machinery up legally and properly, do it by legislative
enactment? What is the argument against tliat ?

Mr. SiGLER. As far as the Board is concerned it is our judgment
and feeling we should go with this now. We think that, as I said in

my statement, that we will have a better chance of con-ecting any
errors we might make. We don't say here tliat we object to legislation,
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but we do say that we would like to liave you take a look at what
we are doing to see if it is right, and to make any changes that you
might think we need to make, of course, later on, we want to make
certain we get the kinks ironed out of this thing before we put it into

legislation. That is why we ask you to defer it.

Senator Buedick. Then you aren't sure entirely of when.
Mr. SiGLER. We say in our statement we are not absolutely positive

we are right. I wouldn't know how to be that way in this business.

Senator Burdick. If you recall your testimony before this subcom-
mittee last July, you specifically asked that we defer consideration of

parole legislation while you study the matter. Is it not correct that the

delay is of your making, and not ours ? A year has gone by now.
]Mr. SiGLER. Yes; I am suggesting now that we go with the thing

because we think it is good, that we don't defer it longer.
Senator Burdick. The only question you want to defer now is

whether or not the Board, the two-tier S3'stem is construed to be

legally constituted i

Mr. SiGLER. This would be a legal question and I am not capable of

making a decision or discussing it with you because I don't know the
law.

Senator Burdick. Has the Department of Justice given an opinion
on this question?
Miss Lawtox. Yes, sir, well, I can't speak for the Department. These

draft regulations, the proposals of the Board have been circulated

throughout the Department for comment on both the procedural and
the structural aspects and various components of the Dej^artment have

expressed their views both on procedure and on structure. My own
ofiice has on the legal issues, not so much on the procedural. Other com-

ponents of the Department have expressed their views so that whether
there is a single departmental opinion, I couldn't say, but there are a
number.

Senator Burdick. The only question is the structure.

Miss Lawtox. This is the question to which we addressed ourselves

and this was the opinion that Chairman Sigler referred to earlier,

furnishing to the committee.
ilr. Meeker. Excuse me, ]Miss Lawton. The only document the Sub-

committee has been supplied is a memorandum of April 18 of Mr.
Dixon to ]\Ir. Ponnnerening which does not address this question of

the two classes of Board members.
]Miss Lawtox'. That was the opinion I was referring to, on the

authority of the Board to restructure itself as a general opinion. That
is the only one that our office has,

Mr, ]Meeker, And it doesn't address this question that Senator Bur-
dick has raised this morning '?

Miss Lawtox'. No; not specifically. At the time that was wiitten we
did not have any proposed specific structure in front of us. That was
a general opinion on the legality of the Board taking such action gen-

erally, making structural changes, making procedural changes on its

own initiative, and that was the onl}^ question before us at the time.

We have no specific v\-ritten opinion on the details of the regulations.
Senator Burdick. If this reorganization plan that you are propos-

ing is accepted, what is to prevent the Department of Justice from

implementing a further reorganization that would give one man the
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authorit}' to enter the final parole decision in every case. You do it

with three. Vvliy couldn't you do it with one ?

Mr. SiGLER. i suppose, again, from the standpoint of operation, if

they said do this you could do that. I don't believe that would ever be

done because we in the Board of Parole, want support. People that

work in this business like support.
Senator Burdick. AVouldn't you have sort of a comfortable feeling

if you knew Congress gave the blessing to this two-tier system and it

was put in concrete, so to speak? Maybe that is what you don't want.
Mr. SiGLER. No

;
I would like that. I wisli everybody—I hope every-

body approves of it, but we would like to make sure that we abso-

lutely know we are right.
Senator Burdick. "We think the approach is fine. We are all for it

We don't want you to have any trouble along the way, that is all.

Mr. SiGLER. Of course we don't want that either.

Senator Burdick. Thank you very much. Is there any way we can.

resolve the two different opinions from the Library of Congress that

you know of ?

Miss Lawton. Well, as I said before, I think that the structure the

Library of Congress was looking at was not the structure that is

presently in contemplation. I think some of the problems that they see

simply are not there any longer. We recognized there were problems
and corrected them. I would suppose if the Library of Congress had a

transcript of this with a description of the arrangement as it is now
contemplated, that they might take another look at it. I don't know. I
notice it is tlie same attorney who wrote both opinions and I don't
know really, whether there would be a change.

Senator Burdick. The staff tells me that the first opinion was
rendered before your statement came to light with this present plan
and that the opinion itself which I haven't read, indicates that it does
not deal with the same structure. That the current opinion was based,

upon the testimony you have given today. That may shed some light
on it or not, I am not sure.

Miss Lawtox. I think there are only the two areas where misunder-

standings exist. First ; whether or not a favorable parole decision by
an examiner panel could nevertheless be overturned by a regional di-

rector. The opinion suggested it could not. As I indicated, we think
it could and in fact tlie regulations so provide.

Senator Burdick. That is not structure.

Miss Lawton. No
;
but that is a problem raised in the opinion which

does not now exist. The other is on the two-tier approach. It suggests
that the regional parole board members would never sit in Washington
and make decisions as part of the whole Board and that is not true.

They would on guideline decisions. Individual parole decisions is an-
other matter, but I think that needs to be clarified. The opinion may re-

main the same even after they have seen the clarifications, but I think
there is some misunderstanding there on both the tier structure and on
the review structure.

Senator Burdick. As a matter of fact, the district directors can be-
come national directors by order of the Chairman at any time.
Miss Lawtox. Yes.
Senator Burdick. They can be shuffled any way he wishes ?

Miss Lawton. Yes.
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S. nator Bitrdick. Maybe we can get some more light from them.
Thank yon very much for yonr contribution this morning.
Tlie second opinion will also be made a part of the record.

[The second Library of Congress opinion follows :]

The Library of Congress,
Congressional Research Seevice,

Washiiigfon, B.C., June 7, 1913.

To : .Senate National Penitentiaries Subcommittee.
From : American Law Division.

Subject : Reorganization of tlie Parole Board.

In a prepared statement to the Subcommittee, the Chairman of Board of
Parole has outlined a plan for internal reorganization of the Board. You request
an analysis of that proposal, with particular emphasis on whether the con-
templated changes would be compatible with existing law governing the povv-ers
and functions of the Board.

Tlie proposed oi'ganizational changes, which are to be accomplished b.v internal
reorganization rather than through amendatory legislation or reorganization
plan (5 U.S.C. 903) may be summarized as follows : The nation would be divided
into five parole regions, each headed by a "Regional Board Member"' who will
Mve the title of Regional Director. Eacli regional office would be responsible for
all partde functions within the designated region. Regional Directors would con-
aider appeals from decisions of two-man hearing examiner panels which would
be delegated original decision-making authority. In addition, three Board Mem-
bers, to be known as National Directors, would sit permanently in Washington,
D.C. as a National Appellate Board and hear appeals from decisions of tlie

Regional Directors. Decisions of the National Appellate Board would be final.
The Appellate Board would also retain original jurisdiction over sensitive or
notorious or other such special eases. Finally, the Regional and National Direc-
tors would meet periodically to develop, modify, and promulgate Board pro-
cedures, rules and policies.

Several significant (piestions appear to be raised by the proposal: (1) May the
Board delegate original decision-making authority to hearing examinersV (2)
May Board members be assigned to specific areas of jurisdictional authority?
(3) May certain Board members be assigned permanent final appellate authority
over other members?

1. Delegation of decision-making authority to panels of hearing examiners.
As was indicated to you in our memorandum of March 27. 1973, it would appear
that judicial authority would support a clearly circumscribed delegation of deci-

sion-umking authority to hearing examiners which plainly maintains a "final

say" with the Board. As was pointed out then, such delegation seems supportable
under current judicial standards since there appears to lie no legislative history
evincing a congressional intent to the contrary ;

the Board is presently vested
with the broadest possible discretion in parole matters; and the current work-
load of the Board is sufficiently large to admit of reasonable administrative
soluti<ms for the sake of efficiency, effectiveness and economy in carrying out
the Congressional purpose. N.L.R.B. v. Duval Jewelry Co., 357 U.S. 1 (19.58) ;

Wirtz v. Atlantic States Construction Co., 357 F. 2d. -±42. 445 (5th Cir. 1966) ;

French v. CiCGone, 308 F. Supp. 256 (U.S.D.C. W.D. Mo. 1969). Cf Jay v. Boijd,
351 U.S. 345 (1956).'
One aspect of the proposed delegation raises a question, however. It appears

that under the contemplated procedure only immates are permitted to file for
review of a decision. Thus a decision to free on parole becomes final even if

prison authorities would be in strong disagreement. In such cases it is believed
that the failure to maintain a minimal review authority in a Board member
may be an unlawful delegation of the Board's statutorv authoritv. Cudahy
Paeking Co. v. Holland 315 U. S. 357 (1942).

1 Indeed, the legislative history of the 1970 amondments to tlie Youth Corrections Act.
IS U.S.C. 5005 et seq., which authorized examiners to conduct lienrinjrs under sections 5014
and 5024 of title 18, implicitly approved the longstanding practice of the Board of having
examiners interview aduit offenders. House Report No. 91-1239, 91st Congress, 2d Sess.,
1970. "A consistent administrative interpretation of a statute, shown clearly to have been
brought to the attention of Congress and not changed by it. is almost conclusive evidence
that the internretation has Congressional approval." Knii v. F.C.C., 443 F. 2d 638, 646-647
(D.C. Cir. 1970) ; Udall v. Tollman 380 U.S. 1, 17-13 (19C5).
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2. Delegation of Specific Areas of Jurisdictional Authority to Board Members.

Again referring to our memorandum of March 27, judicial autliority would sup-

port the assignment of specific jurisdictional areas to Individual members in

order to effectively apportion the Board's workload. See Earnest v. 3Iosely, 42a

F 2d 466. 469 (lOtli Cir. 1970).
3. Validity of two-tier appellate procedure. As indicated, the Board proposes

to establish" a two-tier appellate procedure in which final decision-making au-

thority is to be vested in three members of the Board ("National Director's")

"Who reside i>ermanently in Washington, D. C. There is no indication in the plan

that the five members of the Board who will become Regional Directors will

>ever, at any time during their tenures, sit as National Directors. That is, there

is no provision for rotation amongst the members so that each member at some

time will sit on the National Appellate Board. Rather the Regional Directors

appear permanently slotted in their respective regions.

Under these circumstances the proposal would seem contrary to the intent of

18 U. S. C. 4201. That section states that "There is hereby created in the Depart-
ment of Justice a Board of Parole to consist of eight members to be appointed

by the President, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate." Each mem-
l)er serves a six year term. One member is selected to serve as chairman by the

Attorney General but the chairman's additional duties and responsibilities are

purely administrative. Thus it would appear that Congress intended to create

one Parole Board consisting of eight equal members.' The reference to "« Board
of Parole," the requirement of Senate confirmation of each Board member, and

the lack of any differentiation in the current legislative scheme between mem-
Lers in terms of their respective powers and functions, argues strongly, if not

conclusively, against an administrative establishment of a scheme that would
make some Board members substantively inferior to others.

It is concluded, therefore, that the two-tiered appellate system that is being

proposed would effect a major substantive change in, and departure from, the

legislative scheme established by Congress in that it would substantially alter

the powers and functions of individual members of the Board. In these circum-

stances legislative authorization from the Congress would appear advisable.
Morton Rosenbekg

Legislative Attorney.
Memorandum

April 18. 1973.

To : Mr. Glen E. Pommerening, Acting, Assistant Attorney General for Adminis-
tration.

Trom : Robert G. Dixon, Assistant Attorney General, Office of Legal Counsel.

Suliject : Authority of the Board of Parole to Delegate Decisionmaking Powers to

Hearing Examiners.

This is in response to your request for our views on the question whether the

Board of Parole can, under existing statutes, delegate to hearing examiners the

aurbority to determine wliether to grant, deny or revoke parole. Presently, the

power to make parole determinations is exercised by members of the Board. For
tlie reasons that follow, we have concluded that parole determination can be

legally delegated to hearing examiners, particularly where an appeal of the ex-

.aminer's decision to the Board or a member thereof is available to an offender.

Four statutes vest the decision-making powers with respect to parole deter-
minations in the Board of Parole or the Youth Correction Division of the Board.
Section 4203, Title 18, United States Code, provides that the Board of Parole
shall review the record of an adult offender eligible for release on i)arole—and
if in the opinion of the Board such release is not incompatible with the welfare
of society, the Board may in its discretion authorize the release of such prisoner
•on parole.

- The above-cited iuriicial approval of the Board's practice of sittinsr In two member
panels (Enrtieftt v. Mni^eJeji. .lunm) does not detract from this conclusion. Tender the present
scheme (which of course the Moseley court had reference to) there remains the possibility
of en hnnc review. .\lso. it is presently possible, and probable, that each member will sit
on all types of cases, including "sensitive and notorious" ones. Finally, at present no
Board is precluded from participating in a truly final decision.
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Section 5017 similarly vests the Youth Correction Division with discretion to

release youth offenders. Section 4207 governs the revocation of parole of an adult

offender and provides that the parolee upon being retaken upon a warrant—
Shall be given an opportunity to appear before the Board, a member there-

of, or an examiner designated by the Board.
The Board may ... in its discretion revoke the order of parole ... or

modify the terms and conditions thereof.

To the same effect is Section 5020 which vests the decision to revoke parole of

a youth oft"ender in the Youth Division.

Read literally, each statute indicates that the parole determinati(m is vi^sted

in the Board or Youth Division simpliciter. Indeed, sections 4207 and 5020, both

of which initially provide that the offender may appear before a single member
or an examiner, but subsequently omit any reference to a member or examiner
in providing that the Board or Division shall make the determination, suggest
that only the entire Board or Division has the authority to make such a de-

termination.^

However, responsibilities imposed upon particular officers by statute can often

be delegated notwithstanding the absence of specific statutory authority em-

powering the delegation and, indeed, even in the face of statutory language lit-

erally read otherwise. For example, in Jay v. Boyd, 351 U.S. 345 (1956). the

Supreme Court found that the section in the Immigration Act which provides that
the Attorney General "may, in his discretion" suspend deportation of a deport-
able alien did not mean that the Attorney General could not delegate his power
to special inquiry officers. (Emphasis added.) Thus, even though the reference
to "his" discretion does not literally mean the discretion of subordinates, the
Court found that it could not be expected that "the Attorney General . . . exercise
his discretion in siispension cases personally." Id. at 351, n. 8.

In the absence of a legislative intent on the issue of delegation—as is the case
here—the question whether a delegation is lawful or unlawful seems to depend
on both the degree of administrative discretion conferred on the delegator, see

Jay V. Boyd, supra ; Wirts v. Atlantic States Construction Co.. 357 F.2d 442, 445
(1966) and the exigencies of the function for which the delegator is responsible.
U.S. Health Chth. Inc. v. Major, 292 F.2d 665, 667 (3rd Cir. 1961) ; Papagianukis
V. The Samos, 186 F.2d 257, 259 (4th Cir. 1950) .

Both of these points were considered in Earnest v. Mosclcy, 426 F.2d 466
(10th Cir. 1970), in which the Court held permissible the Board's delegation of
the authority to determine whether or not parole shoidd be revoked to two
members of the Board. The Court rejected the theory that, in Section 4207
referred to earlier, the omission of the words "member of the Board or . . .

examiner designated by the Board" from the provision in the same section

granting the authority to revoke parole "compel [led] the conclusion that the
entire Board must decide on every parole revocation." 426 F.2d at 469. The
court's refusal to strictly construe Section 4207 was based on the broad discretion
conferred on the Board and on the necessity to delegate decision-making power :

The creation of the Board and Congress' vesting in it a very broad discre-
tion carries with it an inherent authority to establish such procedures as
will best effectuate Congress' purpose in establishing the Board and the

parole system. The Court in Hyscr v. Reed, 115 U.S. App. D.C. 254, 31S F.2d
225, 242 n. 14, noted that for the fiscal year 1960 the Parole Board held

12,640 hearings of all types and issued 1,016 warrants for the arrest of

parole violators and 670 warrants for the arrest of mandatory release
Aiolators. To too narrowly circumscribe the authority of the Board to

establish its own internal procedures and effectively distribute its work load
would impose an undue burden on the Board and, indeed, the entire parole
system. 426 F.2d at 469.

The same considerations, in our view, provide the premise upon which the

authority to delegate to hearing examiners is based. As the court said in Wart.z v.

Atlantic States Constriietion Co., 357 F.2d 442. 445 (5th Cir. 1966), "the ad-
ministrative flexibility necessary for prompt and expeditious action on a multi-
tude of fronts, . . . [citation omitted] . . . points in the direction of allowing

1 In Earnest v. Moseleij, 42G F.2d 466 (10th Cir. inTO). the court did not Intprpret this
statute strictly. It found that the entire Board need not nialfe every determination on
parole Tpyocatiop. contrary to the literal lansuajre of the statute. Instead it held that the
authority to determine whether parole should be revoked could be delegated to two members
of the Board. See p. S, infra.



more, not less, delegation." In the year of 1970, the eight members of the Board
of Parole considered and decided over 17,000 cases. Of eonrse, the members of

the Board were unable to conduct all of the hearings. Many of the hearings
were conducted by hearing examiners who recommended decisions to the Board.^

Because of the sheer number of cases, Board members were compelled to rely

heavily on the judgment of the hearing examiners in making the formal parole
determination. Delegation of the authority to render decisions on parole matters

with review of the decision by a Board member available to an offender would
be but a recognition of the current practice.

This is not to say that an administrative practice can operate to change the

law. Rather, the exigencies of a situation can warrant the delegation of author-

ity where the delegation is not clearly contrary to the relevant statutory pro-

visions. For example, in PapagianaMs v. The Samos, 186 F.2d 257, 259 (4th Cir.

1950), the court held that even though a statute imposed a duty upon the "im-

migration oflScer in charge," that otficer could delegate the duty to immigration

inspectors because the delegation was "essential to the proper transaction of

business." See also U.S. Health Cluh, Inc. v. Major, 292 F.2d 665, 667 (3rd
Cir. 1969). As the court said in Wirts v. AtlantiG States Construction Co., 357

F. 2d 442, 445 (5th Cir. 1966), in upholding the authority of the Secretary of

Labor to delegate the power to ins'titute suits under the Fair Labor Standards
Act of 1938 to the Solicitor of the Labor Department who, in turn, delegated
this power to regional attorneys :

To argue for non-delegability in those situations in which Congress has
not spoken explicitly and thereby insist upon personal performance by the

Executive . . . envisages many unsatisfactory results. It will mean less, not

greater, attention to the intrinsic merits of each situation requiring action.

It will make governmental bureaucracy more, not less, formidable and
frustrating.^

In this instance, the decision whether to grant, deny or revoke parole would
be made by the hearing examiner who would have the opportunity to personally
interview the offender, observe his demeanor, question him about points that

would arise in the examiner's mind and generally make the decision regarding
the individual's liberty on the basis of personal contact rather than on paper
alone. To insist that the parole determination be made by a Board member or

pnnel will, very concretel.v, mean less, not greater, attention to the offender.

The second touchstone of the delegation cases—broad discretion and inherent

authority to establish procedures that will achieve the legislative purpose in

establishing the decision-making body—-is also applicable in this instance as the

decision in Earnest v. Moselcy. supra, indicated. Speaking of the broad authority
of the Board of Parole, the court in Hiatt v. Compagne, 178 F. 2d 42, 45 (5th
Cir. 1949), said:

As respects parole, the original statutes as well as the revision . . . bristle

with discretion given the Board. ... It is very evident that the whole mat-
ter of paroles is left to the informed discretion of the Board.

Because the Board is vested with the broadest possible discretion in parole
matters it is authorized to institute procedures necessary to effectively carry out
Its statutorily imposed responsibility. The test to determine whether the pro-
cedures adopted by the Board are lawful was articulated in Earnest v. Mosely.

-supra:
As this court said in Christianson v. Zerbst. 89 F. 2d 40 (10th Cir.), the

proceedings of the Board in revoking the parole or conditional release are

presumptively correct. Unless it is clearly shown that the procedures estab-

lished by the Board are clearly discriminatory or so lacking in fundamental
fairness as to deprive the parolee or releasee of due process, or that those

procedures are clearly contrary to the statutes creating and regulating the

Board, the court will not attempt to substitute its judgment for that of the

Board. 426 F. 2d at 469.

Thus, in our view, the delegation of decision-making power to hearing examin-
ers is authorized for the following reasons : the workload of the Board of Parole

= In Ott V. Cicrone. ?.26 F. Siinp. 609 CW.D. ^ro. 1070), the court IipIcI tlmt the hparinff
need not he roncTucted by a member of the Board of Parole, but inf?tead could be conducted
by in examiner.

s In Wirts, the court pointed to the fact that the Office of the Solicitor instituted 1,4.32
cases under the FLSA as evidence that it was administratively necessary to delecrate the
authority to file the legal actions. Here, eight members of the Board of Parole determine
some 17,000 cases.
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requires au administrative solutiou that will make the parole system more-
efficient and effective

;
the delegation of decision-making power meets this need

and effectuates Congress' purpose in establishing the parole system ;
and the

delegation is not clearly contrary to the statutes creating the Board.

II.

It is our understanding that under the reorganization proposal now being con-
sidered by both the Board of Parole and the Administrative Division the parole
determinations of the examiners can be reviewed under a two-level appellate sys-
tem. Fresumably, the offender could appeal the determination first to a Board
member and, if the determination was not reversed or modified, he could ttien

appeal to a panel of the Board or the entire Board. We believe that this feature

greatly strengthens the legal propriety of delegating decision-making power tO'

examiners. In N.L.R.B. v. Duval Jewelry Co., 357 U.y. 1, 7 (1958), the Supreme
Court upheld the N.L.R.B.'s delegation of authority to hearing officers to make
preliminary rulings on motions to revoke subpoenas because the Board reserved,
to itself the right to make the final decision :

While there is delegation here, the ultimate decision on a motion to I'evoke

is reserved to the Board, not to a subordinate. All that the Board has dele-

gated is the preliminary ruling on the motion to revoke. It retains the final

decision on the merits. One who is aggrieved by the ruling of the regional
director or hearing officer can get the Board's ruling. The fact that special
permission of the Board is required for the appeal is not important. Motion,
for leave to appeal is the method of showing that a substantial question i&

raised concerning the validity of the subordinate's ruling. If the Board de-

nies leave, it has decided that no substantial question is pi'esented. We think,

that no more is requii-ed of it under the statutory system. . . .

Accordingly, the retention by the Board of Parole of the authority to render
the ultimate decision strengthens the case for delegation. The fact that the-

Board or Board member may not conduct a de novo review but instead may
deny the petition for review will not, according to the decision in Duval Jeirclri/

Co., detract from the position that the Board reserves for itself the final decision.

Thus, to strengthen the legal position, if the Board chooses not to conduct a
de novo review in each instance, the draftsmen of the reorganization proposal
may wish to draft a procedure under which the Board or Board member retains

a discretionary right to review either upon its own initiative or upon petition of

a party or both. In the case of a petition, the Board may wish to retain the-

authority for the Board or Board member to deny a petition for review unless-

the applicant seeking review makes a reasonable showing that certain errors or

misjudgments were committed, c. g. a material fact upon the initial decision was
based is erroneous ; the guidelines under which the examiner operates were not

adhered to
;
or an exercise of discretion or decision on law or policy is important

and should be reviewed by the Board. For the foregoing reasons, we believe that

such a delegation of decision-making authority to hearing examiners is legally

permissible.

Senator Burdick. The hearing is adjourned.

[Whereitpon, at 11 a.m., the hearing was adjourned]
United States Department of Justice.

United States Board of Parole,
Washington, D. C, July 11, 1973.

Re : Hearing held June 13, 1973, on S.-1463 befoi-e Subcommittee on National

Penitentiaries, Committee of the Judiciary.

Hon. Quentin N. Burdick,
Chairman, Suhcommittec on 'National Penitentiaries,

U.S. fienafe, Waslrington, D.C.

Dear Senator Burdick : For the consideration of your Subcommittee. I would

like to submit the following additional explication concerning a point raised

at the hearings on June 13, 1973, with respect to the proposed reorganization

of the United"states Board of Parole. I refer to the suggestion of the American

Law Division of the Library of Congress Research Service that the reorganiza-

tion might appear to provide for two distinct classes of Board Members.
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The Board does not view the setting up of an appellate .seotion consisting of
three Board Members at the national headquarters as establishing any sub-
stantive difference in the nature of the work performed as between this group
and that of the regional board members. Although the terminology of appellate
review and jurisdiction is employed, nothing really new in the nature of such
reviews is intended or contemplated: thus I should point out that under long
established Board rules and practice, as set out in 28 C.F.R. § 2.22, we have
provided for "Washington Review hearings in which two Members review the
decision of an original panel concerning parole. This constitutes a vote of two
Members (or three to break a tie) potentially changing the vote of two other

equal Members. Any available Members are used for Washington Review hear-

ings. It is true that under current practice some rotation occurs in the personnel
of the reviewing panels ; however, in our three Member Youth Division we are
frequently restricted as to Members who act as reviewers.

Also, as mentioned at the hearing, our regulations indicate that the Chairman
would from time to time designate regional Members to act as Members of the

appellate group. I would contemplate that inter-change of duties of personnel
as between the regions and appellate group would be used to the fullest extent
since such flexibility in the duties of the Members would be the best possible
means of achieving insight and on-going experience for all eight Members, for

use in their primary duties of setting guidelines for all Parole Board functions,
in particular, for the parole and parole revocation processes. The unitary nature
of the Board's work is also illustrated in the Board's en hanc procedures under
which in quarterly meetings the Board will continue to sit as a group for appel-
late review of cases meeting en hanc criteria. As you know the statutes creating
the Board, as well as their consistent judicial and administrative interpretation,
have established the broadest discretion for the Board's discharge of its quasi-

judicial functions, in particular for its apportionment of its work load which
includes revieAV procedures.

Finally, as brought out at the hearing, policies and procedures used ))y the

appellate iMembers would be set by the entire eight 3Iember Board, and the

appellate Members, like the regional Members, would be acting under criteria

established by the entire Board ; consideration of the cases would thus be

structured to constitute execution of Board policy. Obviously since the regional
Members would ontnumber the appellate Membei-s, they would constitute a ma-

jority voice in setting rules for appellate review and all other Board policy.

In view of the contemplated structuring and functioning of the regionalized

Board, as described above, it is the judgment of the Board that there is no legal

impediment to the proposed interim reorganization. I would reiterate tliat. fol-

lowing a period of regional operation to permit evaluation of all alternatives for

structuring the Board's functions, the Board would be desirous of pi-esenting to

the Committee its recommendations, incorporating this experience, for the Com-
mittee's consideration in finalizing legislation on the subject.

Sincerely,
Maurice II. Sigler.

Chairman, U.S. Board of Parole-





S, 1463—TO ESTABLISH A PAROLE COMMISSION
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WEDNESDAY, MAECH 20, 1974

U. S. Senate,
Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries of the

Committee on the Judiciary,Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 :45 a.m., in room

6202, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Quentin X. Burdick

presiding.
Present : Senators Burdick and Cook.
Also Present: James G. Meeker, staff director; Christopher Erie-

wine, deputy counsel; and Slianda Askland, secretary.
Senator Burdick. Today's hearing marks the final step in the study

and consideration which the Senate Subcommittee on Penitentiaries

has given to the subject of the Federal parole system. We have before

us today legislation which preserves the fundamental outline of re-

form and reorganization of Federal parole that was first considered

b}' this subcommittee on July 1972. In the intervening time, the U.S.

Board of Parole has operated under a regional plan in one area of

the country on an experimental basis and has concluded that this

format outlined more than 20 months ago will bring fundamental

improvement to the Federal paroling system.
In the intervening months, the subcommittee and its staff, working

together with the Board of Parole and its staff', has carefully refined

this original proposal. It is my hope that from today we can move

very quickly to full nationwide implementation of this reorganization
and change in the paroling authority.
There are many changes that will be brought by passage and im-

plementation of the legislation before us today. These are the basic

changes :

One : The Parole Board needs resources for better decisionmaking.
The present Board of Parole has been faced with approximately
17,000 decisions per year on the different types of cases which come
before it. With its limited resources, this has been an overwhelming
caseload. This legislation authorizes additional resources in the form
of a series of Kegional Parole Commissioners with hearing examiners,
and a National Appeals Board. The Regional Commissioners are

responsible for tlie administration of parole in one section of the

country. They could become more familiar with the institutional pro-

grams, the commiuiity resources, and the individual cases of pj:isonei*s
within their region.

^41)
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Two: A system of administrative appeals would be established. A
system of appeals to a National Appeals Board provides not only that

parole will be administered equitably across the United States under a

regionalized structure, it would also provide an administrative remedy
which is available to prison inmates in lieu of the flood of prisoner
suits and petitions which hampers the work of our courts.

Three : The inmate will know his chances for being granted parole.
Prison inmates who have little idea as to where they stand in the parole
system have the opportunity to escape from reality and raise false

hopes. This is a deterrent to realistic planning for the future, for such

things as jobs. Under the revised system, the inmate will have guide-
Tines as to the length of sentence he can expect to serve, based on his
offense and personal situation. He will be given reasons wlien parole
is denied. These are important factors in encouraging prison inmates
to take greater responsibility for their own plans and their own
behavior.
Four : Parole would have the appearance of fairness. The individ-

uals who are eligible for parole would be given access to the back-

ground information which the Parole Board uses in making its

decision, providing this information would not place any other person
in jeopardy. The individual is also able to select a friend or member of
his family to assist him in preparing for his session with the Parole
Board. He miglit select a person such as his wife, his minister, an-
other member of his family, or a prospective employer. This, together
with the appeals system, will give parole an appearance of fairness

and rationality to the inmates, which will go a long ways toward re-

ducing tensions within the prison institutions.

I would like to take a moment before we begin, if I may, to express
my appreciation to our witness this morning for the work which he
has contributed to this legislation. He has been for many years a pro-
fessional in the files of corrections and has contributed genei'ously of
his knowledge and experience in the development of this legislation.

If there is no objection. I ask that the committee print amendment
in the nature of a substitute to S. 1463 be placed at this point in the
record.

[The committee print follows:]

[S. 1463, 93d Cong., 2d sess.]

AJIKKDIMENT Intended to be proposed by Mr. to S. 1463, n bill to amend
title IS, United States Code, relating to parole, and for other purposes, vis: Strike out
all after the enactina: clause, and insert in lieu thereof the following : That this Act
may be cited as the T'arole Commission Act".

Sec. 2. Chapter 311 of title 18, United States Code is amended to read as follows :

"Chapter 311—Parole

"Sec.
"4201. Definitions.
"4202. Parole Commission created.

"4303. rowers and duties of the Chairman.
"4204. Persons eligible.

'

"420."). Release on parole.
"4206. Conditions of parole.
"4207. Parole interview procedures.
"420S. Aliens.
"4200. Retaking parole violator under warrant.
"4210. Officer executing warrant to retake parole violator.

"4211. Parole modification and revocation.
"4212. Appeals.
"421. Applicability of Administrative Procedure Act.

"421. Young adult offenders.
"421. Warrants to retake Canal Zone parole violators.
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•"§ 4201. Definitions

"As used in this chapter—
"(1) 'Commission' means tlie United States Parole Commission;
"(2) 'Commissioner' means any member oil the United States Parole

Commission :

"(3) 'Director means the Director of the Bureau of Prisons ;

"(4) 'eligible person' means any Federal prisoner wlio is eligible for

parole pursuant to this title or any other law including any Federal prisoner
whose parole has been revolved and who is not otherwise ineligible for

parole ;

''(5) 'parolee' means any eligible person who has been released on parole
or deemed as if released on parole under section 4164 of this title ; and

••(G) •rules and regulations' means rules and regulations promulgated l)y

tlie ('(unmission pursuant to section 553 of title 5, United States Code.

*'§ 4202. Parole Commission created

'•(a) There is hereby established as an independent agency of the Department
of Justice a United States Parole Commission which shall be comprised of nine
members appointed by the President, by and with the advice and consent of the
Senate. Tlie Attorney General shall designate from among the Commissioners
one to serve as Chairman. The term of office of a Commissioner shall be six years,
«xcept that the term of a person appointed as a Commissioner to fill a vacancy
.shall expire six years from the date upon wliieh such perstm was appointed and
Qualified. Upon tlie expiration of a term of office of any member such member
i-hall continue to act until a successor has been appointed and (jualified. Commis-
.sioners shall be compensated at the highest rate now or hereafter prescribed for

grade 17 of the General Schedule pay I'ates (5 U.S.C. 5332).
"(b) The Commission shall meet at least quarterly, and by majority vote

shall—
"(1) promulgate rules and regulations establishing guidelines for parole

release decisions and such other rules and regulations as are necessary to

carry out a national parole policy and the purposes of this chapter :

•(2) create such regions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of

this chapter, but in no event less than five ;

"(3) ratify, revise, or deny any recpiest for regular, supplemental, or

deficiency appropriations, prior to the submission of the requests to the

(Jffice of Management and Budget by the Chairman, which requests shall be

separate from those of any other agency of the Department of .Justice.

Each Commissioner shall have equal responsibility and authority in all sucli

decisions and actions, shall have full access to all information relating to the

performance of such duties and responsibilities, and shall have one vote. A record
of the final vote of each Commissioner on any action pursuant to this subsection

shall l)e maintained and made available for public inspection.

"(c) The Commission shall, under rules and regulations promulgated under
this chapter, have the power to—

'•(1) grant or deny any application or recommendation to parole any
eligible person ;

"(2) impose reasonable conditions on any order granting parole;
"(3) modify or revoke any order paroling any eligible person;
"(4) establish the maximum length of time which any person whose parole

or parole discharge has been revoked shall be required to serve, but in no
case shall such time, together with such time as he previously served in

connection with the offense for which he was paroled, be longer than the

maximum term for which he was sentenced in connection with such offense;
and where such revocation is based upon a subsequent conviction of the

parolee under any Federal or State law for an offense committed subsequent
to his release on parole, the Commission shall determine whether all or any
part of such sentence imposed for such subsequent offense shall run con-

currently or consecutively with the unexpired term being served at time of

such parole ;

•'(5) accept voluntary and uncompensated services ; and
'•(6) utilize, on a cost-reimbursal)le basis, the services of officers and/or

employees of the executive or judicial branches of Federal or State govern-

ment, for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of section 4209 of this

chapter.
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"(d) The Commission, pursuant to rules and regulations, may delegate to anjr
Commissioner or panel of hearing examiners all or any of its powers it may deem
appropriate except such powers enumerated in subsection (b) of this section and
section 4212. Decisions of any panel of hearing examiners shall be based upon,
concurrence of not less than two members of such panel.

"§ 4203. Powers and duties of the Chairman
"The Chairman shall—

"(1) convene and preside at meetings of the Commission pursuant to sec-
tion 4202(b) and such additional meetings of the Commission as the Chair-
man may call or as may be requested in writing by at least three-
Commissioners

;

"(2) appoint, fix the compensation of, assign, and supervise all personnel
employed by the Commission :

"(8) assign duties among officers and employees of the Commission, in-

cludhig Commissioners, so as to balance the workload and provide for

orderly administration
;

"(4) designate three Commissioners to serve on the National Appeals
Board of whom one shall be so designated to serve as "Vice Chairman, and
designate, for each such region established pursuant to section 4202(b) (2),
one Commissioner to serve as regional commissioner in each such region ;.

"(5) direct the preparation of requests for appropriations and the use
and expenditure of funds

;

"(G) make reports ou the position and policies of the Commission to the
Attorney General, the Administrative Oflfice of the United States Courts, and
the Congress :

"(7) provide for research and training including, but not limited to—
"(A) collecting data obtained from studies, research, and the em-

pirical experience of public and private agencies concerning the parole-
proc';*ss and parolees :

"(B) disseminating pertinent data and studies, to individuals, agen-
cies, and organizations concerned with the parole process and parolees :

"(C) publishing data concerning the parole process and parolees; and
"(D) conducting seminars, workshops, and training programs ou

ujethcds of parole f Jr parole personnel and other persons connected with,
the parole process ; ai'd

"(S) perform such administrative and other duties and responsibilities as
may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

"§ 4204. Persons eligible

"(a) An eligible i>erson, other than a juvenile delinquent or committeed youth
offender, wherever confined and serving a definite term or terms of more than
one year, may be released on parole after serving one-third of such term or terms
or after serving fifteen years of a life sentence or of a sentence in excess of forty-
five years, except to the extent otherwise provided by law.

"(b) Upon entering a judgment of conviction, the court having jurisdiction to

impose sentence, when in its opinion the ends of justice and best interests of the-

pubJic require that the defendant be sentenced to imprisonment f(»r a term exceed-
ing one year, may (1) designate in the sentence of imprisonment imposed a
minimum term at the expiration of wliich the person shall become eligible for

parole, which term may be less than liut shall not be more than one-third of the
maximum sentence imposed by the court, or (2) the court may fix the maximum
sentence of imprisonment to be served in which event the court may specify that
the person may be released on parole at such time as the Commission may
determine.

"(c) If the court desires more detailed information as a basis for determining
the sentence to be imposed, the court may. for purposes of study, cttmmit the-

defendant to the custody of the Attorney General, which commitment shall be
deemed to be for the maximum sentence of imprisonment prescril)ed by law. The
results of such study, together with any recommendations which the Director
believes would be helpful in determining the disposition of the case, shall be
furnished to tlie court within sixty days, or such additional period as the court
may grant. After receiving such reports and i-ecommendations, the court may ia
its discretion—

"(1) place the person on probation as authorized by section 3G51 of this
title : or
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"(2) affirm the sentence of imprisonment originally imposed, or reduce-

the .sentence of imprisonment, and commit the offender under any applicable

provision of law. The term of the sentence shall run from date of original

commitment under this section.

"<d) Any person sentenced to imprisonment for a term or terms of one year
or less, who after one hundred and eighty days has not served his term or terms

less .good time deductions, shall be released as if on parole, notwitlistanding the

provisions of section 4164 of this title, unless the court, which imposed sentence,

shall, at the time of sentencing find that such release is not in accord with the

ends of justice and the best interests of the public and sets another time for such.

release. This subsection shall not prevent delivery of any person released on

parole to the authorities of any State otherwise entitled to his custody.

"(e) Upon notice to the attorney for the Government, the court v.hich imposed
sentence shall have jurisdiction, upon motion of the Director (concui-rcd in by
the Commission), to reduce any minimum term at any time for any meritorious

or unusual factor that could not have been reasonably forseen at the time of

sentencing.
'(f) Except to the extent otherwise herein specifically provided, nothing in

this section shall be construed to affect or otherwise alter, amend, modify, or

repeal any provision of law relating to eligibility for release on parole, or any
other provision of law which empowers the court to susi>eud the imposition or

execution of any sentence, to place any person on probation, or to correct, reduce,

or otherwise modify any sentence.

"§ 4205. Release on parole

"(a) If it appears from a report or recommendation by the proi^er institution

officers or upon application by a person eligible for release on parole, that such

per.son has substantially observed the rules of the institution to which he is

confined, that there is reasonable probability that such ijerson will live and re-

main at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion of the Commis-
sion such release is not incompatible with tlie welfare of society, the Commission

may authorize I'elease of such person on parole.

"(b) Upon commitment of any person sentenced to imprisonment under any
law for a definite term or terms of more than one year, the Director, under
such regulations as the Attorney General may prescribe, shall cause a complete
study to be made of the person and shall furnish to the Commission a summary
report, together with any recommendations which in the Director's opinion would
be helpful in determining the suitability of the prisoner for parole. Such report

may include, but shall not be limited to, data regarding tlie eligible person's

previous delincpiency or criminal experience, pertinent circumstances of his

social background, his capabilities, his mental and physical health, and such
other factors as may be considered pertinent. The Commission may make such
other investigation as it may deem necessary. Such report and recommendations
shall be made not less than ninety days prior to the date upon which such person
becomes eligible for parole, except where such person may become eligible for

parole less than one hundred and twenty days following commitment the Di-

rector shall have not less than thirty days to make such report and
recommendations.

"(c) Upon request of the Commission, it shall be the duty of the various

probation officers and government bureaus and agencies to furnish the Com-
mission information available to such officer, bureau or agency, concerning
any eligible person or parolee and whenever not incompatible with the public
interest, their views and recommendation with respect to any matter w'ithin the

jurisdiction of the Commission.

§ 4208. Conditions of parole

"(a) A parolee sliall remain in the legal custody and under the control of the

Attorne.v General, until the expiration of the maximum term or terms for which
such parolee was sentenced.

"(b) In every case, the Commission shall impose as a condition of parole that

the parolee not commit any criminal offense during his parole. In imposing any
other conditions or conditions of parole the Commission shall consider the

following :

"(1) there should be a reasonable relationship between the conditions

imposed and tlie person's conduct and present situation ;

72-524—76 4
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"(2) the conditions may provide for such deprivations of liberty as are
reasonably necessary for the protection of the public welfare ; and

•'(3) the conditions should be sufficiently specific to serve as a guide to
supervision and conduct.

Upon release on parole, a parolee shall be given a certificate setting forth the
conditions of such parole.

'•(c) An order of parole or release as if on parole may as a condition of such
order require—

"(1) a parolee to reside in or participate in the program of a residential
cnmmunity treatment center, or both, for all or part of the period of such
parole or release. A person residing in a community treatment center may
he required to pay such costs incident to residence as the Attorney General
deems appropriate :

"(2) a parolee, who is an addict within the meaning of section 42rjl(a)
of title 18, United states Code, or a drug dependent person within the mean-
ing of section 2(q) of the Public Health Service Act, as amended (42 U.S.C
201). to participate in the comnuuiity supervision programs authorized by
section 4255 of title 18, United States Code, for all or part of the period
of parole.

"(d) The Commission may discharge any parolee from parole supervision or
release him from one or more conditions of parole at any time after release on
parole. In addition, the Commission shall—

"(1) review, at least annually, the status of any parolee who has had two
years of continuous parole supervision, to determine the need for continued
parole supervision ; and

"(2) discharge from parole supervision any parolee who has had five

years of continuous parole supervision unless it is determined, after a
hearing, that he should not be so discharged because there is a likelihood that
he will either engage in conduct violating any criminal law or would jeop-
ardize the public welfare. In any case in which parole supervision is con-
tinued pursuant to this subpart, the parolee may request a hearing annually
and shall receive a hearing at least biennially for the purpose of determin-
ing need for further pari)le supervision. Any hearing Iield pursuant to this

subpart shall be in accordance with tlie procedures set out in section 4209
(b) (2) at a time and location determined by the Conunission.

Any order of discharge pursuant to this subsection may be revoked by the
Commission, in accordance with the procedures set out in section 4209(c) (3),

provided that such person so discharged has i»een convicted of an offense subse-

quent to discharge and sentenced to a term or terms of imprisonment of more
than one year. In the case of any person whose parole discliarge is revoked,
the Connnission may take any action permitted under section 4211.

"§ 4207. Parole interview procedures

"(a) Any person eligible for i)arole shall promptly he given a parole inter-
view and such additional parole interviews as the Commission deems necessary,
l»ut in no case sliall there be less than one additional parole interview every
two years, except tliat an eligilile person may waive any interview.

"(b) Any interview of an elegible person by the Commission in connection
with the consideration of a parole application or recommendation shall be con-
ducted in accordance with the following procedure—

"(1) an eligil)le person shall be given written notice of the time and
place of such interview ; and

"(2) an eligible j)erson shall be allowed to select an advocate to aid him
in such interview. The advocate may be any person who qualifies under rules
and regulations promulgated by the Commission. Such rules shall not ex-
clude attorneys as a class.

"(c) Following notification that a parole interview is pending, an eligible

person shall have reasonable access to progress reports and such other materials
as are prepared by and for the use of the Commission in making any determi-

nation, except that tlie following materials may be excluded from inspection—
"(1) diagnostic opinions which, if made known to the eligible person,

would, in the oi)inion of the prison administration, lead to a serious dis-

ruption of his institutional program of rehabilitation :

"(2) any document which contains information which was obtained on
the basis of a pledge of confidentiality made by or in liehalf of a public
official in the performance of his official duties if such official has substan-
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tial reason to believe that such information would place any person in

jeopardy of life or limb,
"(3) any other information that would place any person in jeopardy of

life or limb, or

'•(4) any part of any presentence report, except upon agreement of the
court having jurisdiction to impose sentence.

If any document is deemed by either the Commission or the prison administra-
tion to fall within the exclusionary provisions of subparts 1, '2. or 3 of this sub-

section, then it shall tiecome the duty of such Commission or administration, as
the case may lie. to summarize the basic contents of the material withheld,

bearing in mind the need for contidentiality or the impact on the inmate, or botli,

and furnish such summary to the inmate.

"(d) A full and complete record of every interview shall be retained by the

Commission. For good cause shown, the Commission may make a transcript of

such i-ecord availalde to any eligible person.
"(e) Not later than fifteen working days after the date of the interview, the

Commission shall notify the eligible person in writing of its determination. In

any case in which parole release is denied or parole condition.s are imposed other
than those commonly imposed, the Commission shall include a narrative of the

reasons for such determination, and if possible a personal conference to explain
such reasons shall be held between the eligible person and the Commissioners
or examiners conducting the interview.

"'§ 4208. Aliens

"When an alien prisoner subject to deportation becomes eligible for parole,
the Commission may authorize the release of such person on condition that such

person be deported and remain outside the United States.

"Such person, wlien his parole becomes effective, .shall be delivered to the

duly authorized immigration official for deportation.

"§ 4209. Retaking parole violator under warrant

"(a) A warrant for the taking of any person who is alleged to have violated

liis parole may be issued by the Commission within the maximum term or terms
for which such person was sentenced.

"(b)(1) Except as provided in subsection (c), any alleged parole violator

retaken upon a warrant under this section shall be accorded the opportunity
to have—

(A) a preliminary hearing at or reasonably near the place of the alleged

parole violation or arrest, as promptly as possible after such arrest, to deter-

mine if there is probable cause or reasonable grounds to believe that he has
violated a condition of his parole ; a dige.st shall be prepared \>y the Commis-
sion setting forth in writing the factors considered and the reasons for the

decision, a copy of which shall be given to the parolee ;

"(B) upon a finding of probable cause or reasonable grounds under sub-

part (I) (A), a revocation hearing at or reasonably near the place of the

alleged parole violation or arrest within sixty days of such determination of

probable cause or reasonable grounds, except that a revocation hearing may
be held at the time and place set for the preliminary hearing.

"(2) Hearings held pursuant to subpart (1) of this subsection shall be con-

•ducted by the Commission in accordance with the following procedures :

"(A) notice to the parolee of the conditions of parole alleged to have lieen

violated, and the time, place, date, and purposes of the scheduled hearing;
"(B) opportunity for the parolee to appear and testify, and present wit-

nesses and documentary evidence on his own behalf ;

"(C) opportunity to be represented by retained counsel, or if he is unable
to retain counsel, counsel may be provided pursuant to section 3006A of

title 18. United States Code ; and
"(D) opportunity for the parolee to be apprised of the evidence against

liim and, if he so requests, to confi'ont and cross-examine adverse witnesses,

except in those cases wherein it is determined by the Commission that there
is substantial risk of harm to any person who would so testify or otherwise
be identified, or that the rights of any party in any pending criminal prose-
cution would be jeopardized. Pitrsuant to subpart (2) (D), the Commission
may subpoena witnesses and evidence, and pay witness fees as established
for the courts of the United States. If a person refuses to obey such a sub-

peona, the Commission may petition a court of the United States for the



: 48

judicial district in which such parole proceeding is being conducted, in wliich

such person resides or carries on business, or in which such person may be

found, to request such person to attend, testify, and produce evidence. The
court may issue an order requiring such person to appear before the Com-
mission, when the court tiuds such information, thing, or testimony directly

related to a matter with respect to which the Commission is empowered tO'

make a determination under this section. Failure to obey such an order is

punishable by such court as a contempt. All process in such a case may be

served in the judicial district in which such a parole proceeding is being
conducted, in which such person resides, carries on business, or may be

found.

"(c) (1) Any parolee convicted under any State or Federal law for an offense

committed subsequent to his release on parole and sentenced to a term or terms

of imprisonment of more than ninety days who has a detainer for a warrant
issued under this section placed against him shall receive an institutional revo-

cation hearing within ninety days of such placement, except that such period
may be extended for not to exceed an additional sixty days if such parolee is-

imprisoned in other than a Federal institution.

"(2) Any alleged parole violator, who waives his right to any hearing under
subsection (b), shall receive an institutional revocation hearing within ninety
days of the date of retaking.

"(3) Hearings held pursuant to subparts (1) and (2) of this subsection shall

be conducted by the Commission. The alleged parole violator shall have notice of

such hearing and be allowed to appear and testify on his own behalf, and to

select an advocate, in accordance with the procedures of section 4207(b) (2), to

aid him in such appearance.
"(d) Following any revocation hearing held pursuant to this section, the Com-

mission may dismiss the warrant or take any action i)rovided imder section 4211 :

Provided, however. That in any case in which parole is modified or revoked, a

digest shall be prepared l)y the Commission setting forth in writing the factors

considered and the reasons for such action, a copy of which shall be given to the

l)arollee.

"(e) The Commission, under rules and regulations, may delegate authority to

conduct hearings held pursuant to this section to any ofiicer and/or employee of

the executive or judicial branches of Federal or State Government.

"§ 4210. OfRcer executing warrant to retake parole violator

"Any ofiicer of any Federal penal or correctional institution, or any Federal
officer authorized to serve criminal process within the United States, to whom a

warrant for the retaking of a parole violator is delivered, shall execute such war-
rant by taking such parolee and returning him to the custody of the Attorney
General.

"§ 4211. Parole modification and revocation

"When a warrant has been executed pursuant to section 4209, and such war-
rant is not dismissed, the decision of the Commission may include—

"(1) a reprimand ;

"
(2) an alteration of parole conditions ;

"(3) referral to a residential community treatment center for all or part
of the remainder of the original sentence ;

"(4) formal revocation of parole or release as if on parole pursuant to

this title ; or

"(5) any other action deemed necessary for successful rehabilitation of
the violator, or which promotes the ends of justice.

The Commission may take any action pursuant to this section as it deems ap-
propriate taking into consideration whether or not the parolee has been con-
victed of a criminal ofl'ense subsequent to his release on parole or whether such
action is warranted by the frequency or seriousness of the parolee's violation of
any other condition or conditions of his parole.

"§4212. Appeals

"(a) Whenever parole release is denied under section 4205, parole conditions
are imposed other than those commonly imposed or parole discharge is denied or
revoked under section 420G, or parole is modified or revoked under section 4211,
the individual to whom any such decision applies may appeal such decision liy

submitting a written notice of appeal to the regional commissioner not later than
thirty days following the date on whicli such decision is rendered. The regional

I



49

commissioner shall decide the appeal within sixty days after receipt of the ap-

pellant's appeal papers and shall inform the appellant in writing of the decision

and the reasons therefor.

"(b) Any decision made pursuant to subsection (a) of this section, which is

adverse to the appellant, may be appealed by such appellant to the National

Appeals Board by submitting a written notice of appeal not later than thirty days
following the date on which such decision is rendered. Such appeal shall be
decided by a majority vote of the three Commissioners on the National Appeals
Board within sixty days after receipt of the appellant's papers.

•(c) The rules and regulations of the Commission shall provide that:

"(1) any regional commissioner may review any decision of any panel of

hearing examiners assigned to his region ;

''(2) the National Appeals Board may review any decision of any regional
commissioner; and

"(3) in any case in which original jurisdiction is retained by the Com-
mission, the initial decision shall be made by a panel of five commissoners.
The decision of such panel shall be final except that, upon motion of any
member of such panel, all nine members of the Commission shall make final

review of such decision.

"(d) Except as provided in subsection (c)(3) of this section, no Commis-
sioner shall consider any appeal made pursuant to this section if he participated
in making such decision either initially or on appeal.

"§ 4213. Applicability of the Administrative Procedure Act

"(a) For the purposes of section 4201(6) of this chapter, section 553(b) (3) (A)
of title 5, relating to rulemaking, shall be deemed not to include the phrase 'gen-
eral statements of policy'.

'(b) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the provisions of sections
551 through 559 and sections 701 through 706 of title 5, United States Code, shall
not apply to the making of any order, notice, or decision made pursuant to this

chapter or any other law."
Sec. 3. Sections 4209 and 4210 of title 18, United States Code, are renumbered

to appear as sections 4214 and 4215 of such title.

Sec. 4. Section 5002 of title IS, United States Code, is repealed.
Sec. 5. Section 5005 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5005. Youth correction decisions

'"The Commission and, where appropriate, its authorized representative as
provided in sections 4202(d) and 4209(d) of this title, may grant or deny any
application or recommendation for conditional release, or modify or revoke any
order of conditional release, of any person sentenced pursuant to this chapter, and
perform such other duties and responsibilities as may be required by law. Except
as otherwise provided, decisions of the Commission shall be made in accordance
with the procedures set out in chapter 311 of this title."

Sec. 6. Section 5006 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5006. Definitions

•As used in this chapter—"
(a) 'Commission' means the United States Parole Commission

;

"(b) 'Bureau' means the Bureau of Prisons
;

"(c) 'Director' means the Director of the Bureau of Prisons :

"(d) 'Youth offender' means a person under the age of twenty-two years
at the time of conviction :

"(e) 'committed youth offender' is one committed for treatment here-
under to the custody of the Attorney General pursuant to sections 5010(b)
and 5010(c) of this chapter;

"(f) 'treatment' means corrective and preventive guidance and training
designed to protect the public by correcting the antisocial tendencies of youth
offenders ; and

"(g) 'conviction' means the judgment on a verdict or finding of guilty, a
plea of guilty, or a plea of nolo contendere."

Sec. 7. Sections 5007, 5008, and 5009 of title IS, United States Code, are re-
pealed.
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Sec. S. Section 5014 of title IS, Uuited States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5014. Classification studies and reports

"The Director shall provide classification centers and agencies. Every com-
mitted youth offender shall first be sent to a classification center or agency. The
classification center or agency shall make a complete study of each committed
youth offender, including a mental and physical examination, to ascertain his

personal traits, his capabilities, pertinent circumstances of his school, family life,

any previous delinquency or criminal experience, and any mental or physical
defect or other factor contributing to his delinquency. In the absence of ex-

ceptional circumstances, such study shall be completed within a jieriod of thirty

days. The agency shall promptly forward to the Director and to the Commission
a report of its findings with respect to the youth offender and its recommenda-
tions as to his treatment. As soon as practicable after commitment, the youth
offender shall receive a parole interview."

Sec. 9. Section 5017(a) of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"(a) The Commission may at any time after reasonable notice to the Director
release conditionally under supervision a committed youth offender when it ap-
pears that such person has substantially observed the rules of the institution

to which he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person
will live and remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion
of the Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society.

"When, in the .iudgment of the Director, a committed youth offender should I»e

released conditionally under supervision he shall so report and recommend to

the Commission."
Sec. 10. Section 5020 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5020. Apprehension of released offenders

"If, at any time before the unconditional discharge of a committed youth
offender, the Commission is of the opinion that such youth offender will be
benefited by further treatment in an institution or other facility the Commis.sion

may direct his return to custody or if necessary may issue a warrant for the

apprehension and return to ciistody of such youth offender and cause such
warrant to be executed by a United States probation officer, an appointed super-
visory agent, a United States marshal, or any officer of a Federal penal or cor-

rectional institution. Upon return to custody, such youth offender shall be given
a revocation hearing by the Commission."

Sec. 11. Chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code, is amended by deleting
the term "division" whenever it appears therein and inserting in lieu thereof the
word "Commission".

Sec. 12. The table of sections for chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code,
is amended to read as follows :

"fiPC.

".oOO.j. Youth correction decisions.
".oOOfi. Definitions.
"5010. Sentence.
".5011. Treatment.
"5012. Certificate as to availability of facilities.
"5013. Provision of facilities.
"5014. Classification studies and reports.
"5015. Powers of Director as to placement of youth offenders.
"5017. Release of youth offenders.
"5018. Revocation of Commission orders.
"5019. Supervision of released youth offenders.
"5020. Apprehension for released offenders.
"5021. Certificate setting aside conviction.
"5022. Applicable date.
"502.3. Relationship to Probation and Juvenile Delinquency Acts.
"5024. Where applicable.
"5025. -Applicability to the District of Columbia.
"5026. Parole of other offenders not affected."

Sec. 13. Section 5037 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5037. Parole

•'A juvenile delinquent who has been committed and who. by his conduct, has

given sufficient evidence that he has reformed, may be released on parole at any
time under such conditions and regulations as the Uuited States Parole Com-
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mission deems proper if it shall appear to the satisfaction of such Commission
that the juvenile has substantially observed the rules of the institution to wliicli

he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person will live

and remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion of the
Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society."

Sec. 14. Whenever in any of the laws of the United States or the District of
Columbia the term "United States Parole Board", or any other term referring
thereto, is used, such term or terms, on and after the expiration of the one-year
period following the date of the enactment of this Act, shall be deemed to refer
to the United States Parole Commission as established by the amendments made
by this Act.

Sec. 15. The parole of any person sentenced before June 29, 1932, shall be for
the remainder of the term or terms specified in his sentence, less good time
allowances provided by law.

Sec. 16. Section 510S(c) (7) of title 5, United States Code, is amended to read
as follows :

"(7) the Attorney General, without regard to any other provision of this

section, may place a total of ten positions of warden in the Bureau of

Prisons ;".

Sec. 17. There is hereby authorized to be appropriated such sums as are neces-

sary to carry out the purpose of the amendments made by this Act.

Sec. is. (a) The foregoing amendments made by this Act shall take effect upon
the expiration of the ninety-day period following the date of the enactment of
this Act.

(b) Upon the effective date of the amendments made by this Act, each person
holding office as a member of the Board of Parole on the date immediately pre-

ceding such effective date shall be deemed to be a Commissioner and shall be
entitled to serve as such for the remainder of the term for which such person
was appointed as a member of such Board of Parole.

(c) All powers, duties, and functions of the aforementioned Board of Parole

shall, on and after such effective date, be deemed to be vested in the Commission,
and shall, on and after such date, be carried out by the Commission in accord-

ance with the provisions of applicable law, except that the Commission may
make such transitional rules as are necessary to be in effect for not to exceed one

year following such effective date.

Section by Section Analysis of S. 1463

Sec. 1. Short title—The Parole Commission Act.

Sec 2. Chapter 311 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as fol-

lows :

§ 4201. Definitions

As used in this chapter—
(1) 'Commission" means the U.S. Parole Commission created by this Act.

(2) 'Commissioner' is any one of the nine members of the U.S. Parole Com-
mission.

(3) 'Director' means the Director of the Bureau of Prisons.

(4) 'Eligible person' means any Federal prisoner in the custod.v of the Attor-

ney General who is by law eligible for parole, including any individual whose
parole has been previously revoked.

(5) 'Parolee' means an.v eligible person who has been released on parole or
deemed to have been released on parole under sections 4164 and 4204(d) of

title 18, U.S. Code, which provide for release as if on parole.

(6) 'Rules and regulations' means the rules and i-egulations made by the Com-
mission

;
notice is required in the Federal Register and interested parties shall

have an opportunity to comment.

§ 4202.

(a) Establishes a nine member U.S. Parole Commission as an independent
agency of the Department of Justice. The Commission is attached to the Depart-
ment for administrative reasons but its decision making machinery is independ-
ent so as to guard against influence in case decisions. Commissioners serve a
term of six years under Presidential appointment, by and with the advice and
consent of the Senate; the Chairman is appointed by the Attorney General. The-

terms are staggered with the Commission members continuing to serve until
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their successors have been qualified. The rale of pay for a member of the Com-
juissicm shall be the highest step of G.S. level 17.

(b) All nine members of the Parole Commission will meet periodically as a

policy making group to: (1) establish procedural rules and guidelines for parole
•determinations so that the administration of parole throughout the Federal sys-
tem \VT.1I be uniform: (2) set boundaries for the nation's five parole regions to

insure equal distribution of the parole workload; and (3) act upon budget
Tecommendations, which will be separate from other agencies of the Department
of Justice.

Each Commissioner shall have an equal voice in these policy making functions
and the policies established will be published in the Federal Register. Records of
the final vote of the Commissioners on these policy making actions will also be
available for public insi>ection. This publication requirement will not apply to

votes by the Commission or any member thereof on individual parole decisions.

(c) The Commission has authority to: (1) grant or deny parole to any Fed-
eral prisoner who is eligible for parole; (2) impose conditions under which any
prisoner would be released on parole; (3) modify or reA^oke the parole of any
individual who violated the conditions of his release; (4) decide on the period
of reimprisonment for any individual whose parole or parole discharge has l)een

revoked, except that the length of such reimprisonment together with the time
.served for the offense before parole "u-as granted cannot be longer than the maxi-
mum length of the sentence; where such revocation is based on a conviction for
a new crime the Commission may also determine whether all or any part of the

remaining Federal time shall run concurrently or consecutively with the new
sentence; (5) accept voluntary and uncompensated services of volunteers who
assist in counseling and supervision of individuals who have been released on

parole; and (6) utilize, on a cost re-imbursable basis, Federal or State oflicials

lor certain parole revocation proceedings.
(d) Establishes the framework imder which the powers of the Commission

may be exercised by individual Commissioners or panels of hearing examiners
within the regulations and statements of policy adopted by the Commission with
the following exceptions : policy making responsibilities of the full Commission
may not be delegated and decisions on review or appeal of Commission actions
on individual parole decisions are reserved for the Commission members with
the initial decisions by Regional Commissioners and final decisions by a panel
of three Commissioners sitting as a National Appeals Board.

§ 4203.

The Chairman, who functions as the chief executive officer of the Commis-
sion, is authorized to : (1) preside at the regular meetings of tlie full Commission
as well as special meetings that are called upon by his own request or that of any
Commissioners; (2) make all personnel decisions ; (3) delegate work among the
Commissioners and the various units and employees of the Commission; (4)

•designate three Commissioners to serve on a National Appellate Board, one of

which will also serve as Vice Chairman, and designate one Commissioner to

serve in each of the parole regions as Regional Commissioner; (5) carry out
fiscal responsibilities including preparation of appropriation requests and over-

sight of Commission expenditures; (6) serve as spokesman for the Commission
and make reports to the Congress, the courts, and the Attorney General; (7)

provide for a research and training component in the Commission which will

provide studies and information to the public and private agencies concerning
the parole process; and (8) perform other necessary duties.

§ 4204.

'a) Sets out the statutory basis for eligibility for parole of all Federal

prisoners except for those sentenced under some special sentencing statute. A
Federal prisoner is eligible for parole after serving one-third of his maximum
term or after serving fifteen years and there is no change in this from present
language of title 18.

Cb) Reenacts the existing provisions of law which enables the court to: (1)

direct that the prisoner be eligible for parole at any time up to one-third of

his maximum sentence, or (2) specify that the Commission shall decide when
the prisoner shall be considered for parole.

(c) Amends existing provisions of law which give the judge an opportunity to

request that the Bureau of Prisons conduct a study of the individual by reducing
the time period allowed for such study from 90 to 60 days.
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(d) This subsection reenacts in part and amends in part the present law on

eligibility for parole of offenders with maximum sentences of one year or less.

For individuals whose maximum term or terms is six months or less, there is no

change from present law, under which the sentencing judge may set any release

date, including a split sentence under 18 U.S.C. 3C51, of up to six months
incarceration and five years probation. For individuals sentenced to a maximum
term or terms of more than six months, but not more than one year, the sentenc-

ing judge sets the date for release of the offender as if on parole, except if the

judge sets no release date, the individual would be released after having served

six months. Present law concerning good time reductions and surrender of

prisoners to other authorities is unchanged.
(e) This sul)section provides a means by which the minimum term of any

Federal prisoner may be reduced for appropriate reasons, making the individual

eligible for parole consideration. A motion, to reduce any minimum term must
be concurred in by the Commission and by the Director of the Bureau of Prisons.

The court which "imposed sentence would have jurisdiction to consider any such
motion and the appropriate U.S. Attorney would have an opportunity to resist

such motion. A meritorious or unusual factor that could not have been reasonably
foreseen at the time of sentencing would include any situation which could not

have normally been considered at the time of sentencing, such as the develop-
ment of some severe health problem or an extraordinary change in the inmate's

behavior or family situation.

(f) Present law and practice relating to existing powers of the sentencing
court and certain special provisions relating to eligibility for parole are carefully

preserved.

§ 4205.

(a) Restates the present statutory criteria utilized by the Federal parole
authorities in making their decision as to whether or not to grant parole. To
achieve parole, an individual who is eligible for parole must have substantially
observed the rules of the institution in which he is confined, there must be a

reasonable probability that he will not violate the law on release, and the

Commission must decide that his release is compatible v,'ith the general welfare
of society.

(b) When an individual is about to become eligible for consideration for

parole, the Bureau of Prisons prepares a progress report which includes a

stimmary of his criminal and social backgrotind, his mental and physical health,
his behavior in the institution and his participation in institution programs.
The Commission is authorized to make such other investigations as it may deem
appropriate.

(c) The Commission is authorized to seek information from other government
agencies such as the U.S. Probation Service and the Federal Bureau of Investiga-
tion. Upon request, these agencies will furnish available information, and. where
appropriate, their views and recommendations with respect to Commission
matters.

§4206.

(a) An individual released on parole remains in the legal custody of the

Attorney General but time spent on parole is not automatically credited toward
service of the maximum sentence.

(b) Every parolee shall have as a parole condition that he cannot commit
any criminal offense during his parole. In imposing any other condition or

eonditi(ms of parole the Commission shall consider the following guidelines :

(1) there should be a reasonable relationship between the standards of behavior

required and the individual circumstances: (2) deprivations of liberty which
are necessary for the protection of the public welfare may be imposed; (.''>) the
conditions must be specific and not vague so that they can serve as a guide to

behavior. In addition, the parolee is given a statement of his conditions.

(c) As provided under present law, the conditions af parole may require that

an individual reside in or participate in the program of a community treatment
center of an addict treatment program.

(d) Sets up an orderly procedure under M'hich the Commission may suspend
parole supervision of parolees who no longer need it. (1) Systematic evaluation
for parole discharge l>egins after an individtial has been under parole stipervi.^ion

for two years, but discharge remains entirely in the discretion of the Commission.

(2) After five years an individual shall receive a hearing to decide whether or
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3iot such supervision shall be terminated. Similar consideration will be accorded

;at least every two years thereafter.

An individual discharged from supervision under this subsection will be

returned either to supervision status or to serve the remainder of his term in

prison if, subsequent to his discharge, he is convicted of an offense and sentenced

to more than one year in prison. Pai'ole discharge under this section is not the

same as unconditional discharge provided for youth offenders under the Federal

Youth Corrections Act, Chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code, The Youth
Act provides a procedui-e for certain conditionally released youth offenders who
achieve the status of unconditional discharge within a specific time period to

earn a set aside of their conviction.

§ 4207.

(a) Once an individual becomes eligible for parole he is entitled to a hear-

ing and additional rehearings at least once every two years except he can waive

:any such hearing.
(b) When a Commissioner or panel of hearing examiners conducts an inter-

view of any individual who is eligible for parole, that individual will receive

written notice of the time of the interview and will be allowed to select an
advocate to assist him both before and during the interview. The Commission
is authorized to promulgate rules and regulations as to who an advocate may
be. "Advocate" is a term of art in the corrections field and includes such persons
as members of the immediate family, common-law relationships included, other

relatives, friends, ministers or prospective employers. The phrase. "Such rules

shall not exclude attorneys as a class," means that inmates may utilize retained

counsel as advocates but that any other provisions for legal assistance is within

.the discretion of the Commission. See, for example, Kessler v Cirpp, 3 Prison L.

Eptr. 14 (Ore. 1973) Fn. 5.

(c) An eligible Federal prisoner shall have reasonable access to certain

documents which are utilized by the Commission to determine parole eligibility.

However four categories of documents may be excluded : (1) diagnostic opinions
such as psychological or psychiatric reports which if revealed to the individual

might cause a serious disruption in his program of rehabilitation ; (2) documents
•which contain information obtained on the basis of a pledge of confidentiality

by or on behalf of any public otficial who has substantial reason to believe that

revealing the information would jeopardize the life or limb of any person; (3)

finy other information which if revealed would jeopardize the life or limb of

;any person ; or (4) presentence reports prepared for the sentencing judge, unless

the court agrees to i-elease of the information. The Commission and the Bureau
of Prisons would be responsible for preparing summaries of documents excluded
TUider subparts (1), (2) or (3) of this subsection.

(d) The Commission is required to retain a record of all parole interviews.

Where an individual is denied parole or granted parole under conditions other

than those commonly imposed, he can obtain a copy of the transcript of the

interview record if he can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Commission
that it is necessary for purposes of administrative appeal. Plowever, in any
-case in which the Commission has transcribed the interview record for the pur-

poses of any appellate determination, the inmate, if he so requests, should be

provided with a copy of such transcript.
(e) The Commission has 1.5 working days in which to notify the individual

in writing of the initial parole decision. Individuals denied parole or granted
parole under conditions other than those commonly imposed will receive a writ-

ten statement which spells oiit clearly the reasons for this adverse action.

Congress does not wish to tie the hands of the Parole Commission by specifying
a particular format for such statement of reasons. However, while a formal

^judicial fact-finding is not required, the inmate must receive an understandable

explanation of his parole status. For example, under the recently published
rules of the U.S. Board of Parole, 38 OFR 184 (Sept. 24. 1974). the Board
utili?:es a set of guidelines for parole release determinations. This subsection

would operate in the following manner in relation to such a guideline system.
When a prisoner is not within the guidelines and is subsequently denied parole,
he should receive a statement explaining how such a determination utilizing the

giiidelines was reached. When a prisoner is eligible for parole under the guide-
lines but is denied parole he shall receive a specific explanation of the factors

•which cause them to reach a determination outside the guidelines.
The phrase, "parole conditions other than those commonly imposed", refers

to any condition imposed by the Commission on any order of parole release
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liberty is unwarranted. Typically imposed proscriptions relating to violations

of law, use of narcotics, excessive use of alcohol, etc., would not tit this category.

§ 4208.

Existing law with respect to delivery of convicted aliens for deportation is

recodified under a new section number.

§ 4209.

This section, with certain modifications, codifies the recent Supreme Court

•decision, Morrisey v. Brewer, 408 U.S. 471 (1972) and Chignon v. HcarpGlU, 411

r.S. 788 (1973), relating to the revocation of parole under circumstances in which

there may be a need to ascertain facts concerning an alleged violation of the

conditions of such release on parole.

(a) Provides for issuing a warrant for the arrest of a parolee alleged to

have violated a condition of parole before the expiration of his maximum

(b)(1) This subsection provides revocation procedures for any alleged parole

violator who wishes to contest the revocation and whose revocation is not based

on a conviction for a new offense for which he was sentenced to more than 3

months of imprisonment. (A) Such parolee is entitled to an immediate heaiing.

near where the violation is alleged to have occurred or where the parolee was
arrested, to determine if there is probable cause or reasonable grounds to beheve

"that he has violated his parole conditions. The Commission shall make a written

summary of the hearing which states the reasons for the decision and the

factors considered in the hearing. ( B ) Upon a finding of probable cause or reason-

able grounds under subpart (A) of this subsection, the alleged parole violator

is entitled to a revocation hearing which also takes place reasonably near the

place where the alleged violation occurred or where the parolee was arrested.

In the words of Chief Justice Burger, "this hearing must be the basis for more
than determining probable cause; it must lead to a final evaluation of any

contested relevant facts and consideration of whether the facts as determined

warrant revocation. The parolee must have an opportunity to be heard and to

show, if he can, that he did not violate the conditions, or, if he did, that circum-

stances in mitigation suggest the violation does not warrant revocation." 471

U.S. 488 (1972). While the revocation hearing must be held within sixty days
of the preliminary hearing held pursuant to subpart (A), it may be held at the

same time.

(2) In any hearing held pursuant to subpart (1) (A) or (B) of this subsec-

tion, the alleged parole violator is entitled to the following procedures: (A) no-

tice of the violations of parole and the time, place, date and purposes of the

scheduled hearings; (B) the right to appear and testify and to present witnesses

and documentary evidence on his own behalf; (C) the right to be represented

l)y retained counsel or if he is unable to retain counsel, counsel may be provided

pursuant to the Criminal Justice Act (18 U.S.C. 3000 (A) and (D) the right to

he apprised of evidence against him and the qualified right to confront and
cross-examine adverse witnesses. Under subpart 2(D), an inmate who so re-

quests, may confront and cross-examine adverse withnesses unless the hearing
officer designated by the Commission makes a determination that there is either

a substantial risk of harm to any person or that the rights of any person in a

pending criminal prosecution would be endangered. This determination requires
the hearing officer to balance the parolee's need to confront his accusers in view
of the particular facts and circumstances of his case against the probability and

severity of either the risk of harm to the informant or the danger that the

rights of someone in any pending criminal prosecution would be jeopardized. The
Commission, where appropriate, may subpoena adverse witnesses pursuant to

subpart 2(D) of this subsection.

(c) (1) Whenever a parolee, who has been convicted of a new ci-ime committed
Vi'hile on parole and sentenced to a term of imprisonment of more than 90 days
in any Federal. State or local correctional institution, has a detainer for a

parole warrant issued under this section lodged against him at such institution,

he shall receive an institutional revocation hearing within 90 days of the place-
ment of such detainer In recognition of potential administrative problems, if

the parolee is serving the new sentence in a State or local institution, an addi-
tional 60 days extension is provided.

(2) Any alleged parole violator, who waives any of his hearing rights under
subsection (b), shall receive an institutional revocation hearing within 90 days
-of recommitment.
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(3) Hearings held under this subsection shall be conducted by the Commis-

sion. The alleged parole violator will have notice of the hearing and be allowed

to appear and testify in his own behalf and to select an advocate as provided in

section 4207(b) (2), to aid him in his appearance.
(d) The Commission, after any revocation hearing held under this section, may

dismiss the warrant or take any other action which it deems appropriate in

accordance with the provisions of section 4211 of this chapter. However, in any
case in which parole is modified or revoked pursuant to a hearing under this

section, the Commission shall provide a written summary of the hearing which

states the reasons for the adverse action and indicates the evidence considered

and relied upon. It is important to remember that this is not a formal judicial

determination. In Morrissey the Court observed, "no interest would be served

by formalism in this process ; informality will not lessen the utility of this in-

quiry in reducing the risk of error." 408 U.S.C. 487 (1972). The alleged violator

shall receive a copy of this document.
(e) To facilitate speedy parole revocation determinations, the Commission

may delegate authority to State or Federal officials to conduct hearings pursuant
to this section. The Commission would promulgate regulations setting out appro-
priate categories of government officials to be used in this capacity such as U.S.

magistrates, administrative law judges, and officials of State parole authorities,
etc.

§4210.

Existing law with respect to the enumeration of individuals entitled to serve

parole revocation warrants is recodified under a new section number.

§4211
If the parole revocation warrant is not dismissed, the range of possible I'e-

sponses by the Commission to a parolee who has been found to have violated the
conditions of his parole include : (1) a reprimand ; (2) an alteration of parole con-

ditions ; (3) referral to a half-way house or other residential facility for all

or part of the remainder of the original sentence; (4) formal revocation of

parole or release as if on parole ; (5) any other action deemed necessary for the

purposes of successful rehabilitation of the parole violator, or which promotes
the ends of justice.
In taking any action under this section, the Commission shall take into con-

sideration whether or not the parolee has been convicted of a new criminal offense
or whether such action is warranted by either the frequency or seriousness of the

parolee's violation of any other condition or conditions of his parole.

§ 4212.

(a) Initial decisions involving a grant or denial of parole, modification or

revocation of pnrole, or denial or revocation of parole discharge, are made i)y a

panel of hearing examiners except under special circumstances in which the Com-
mission or any Commissioner retains original jurisdiction. The eligible person or

parolee adversely affected by these decisions is entitled to appeal the decision

within .30 days to one member of the Commission who will be the Regional Com-
missioner assigned to the region in which this adverse decision is made. The
Regional Commissioner, subject to rules and regulations, will then have 00 days
to act upon the appeal and shall notify the appellant in writing of the decision

and reasons therefore.

(b) If the decision is affirmed by the Regional Commissioner, the appellant,
within 30 days, may take his case to the three member national appeals board.

This final administrative appeal will be decided by the majority vote of the three

members of the National Appeals Board within (^0 days.
(c) ITnder subpart (1), in accordance with riiles and regulations promulgated

by the Commission, Regional Commissioners may review decisions made by panels
of hearing examiners in their regions. Subpart (2) sets out the review procedure
for parole determinations in which original jurisdiction is retained by the

Commission.
(d) No Commissioner shall act upon any appeal to the National Appeals Board

if he has previously taken part in the parole decision involved.

§ 4213.

(a) Provides that the rule making procedures of !?ection 553 of title 5. U.S.

Code, apply to any general statements and policies issued by the United States

Parole Commission.
(b) Except where this statute provides for the application of section 553 of
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title 5, United States Code, the provisions of tlie Administrative Procedure Act
shall not apply to the making of any order, notice, or decision of the United States
Parole Commission.

.Sec. 3. Section 4209, relating to the application of the Federal Youth Correc-
tions Act. and Section 4210, relating to Canal Zone warrants, are reenacted under
new section numbers.

Sec. 4. Section 5002 of title 18, United States Code, is repealed.
Sec. 5. Section 5005 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to make proce-

dures for consideration of indiviauals sentenced under the Youth Corrections
Act an integral part of the Commission's responsibilities. Decisions regarding
parole of youthful offenders will be made in the manner prescribed for all other
eligible offenders, with the exception of certaiii provisions relating to uncondi-
tional discharge of youth offenders.

Sec. H. Section 5006 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to reflect the
change in name from Youth Division to U.S. Parole Commission.

Sec. 7. Sections 5007, 5008, 5009 of title 17, U.S. Code, which conflict with the
provisions of Chapter oil of title 18, relating to the organization and operation
of the U.S. Parole Commission, are repealed.

Sec. S. Section 5014 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to provide that
parole interviews for youth offenders are conducted in the same manner as
prescrilted for other eligible offenders.

Sec. 9. Section 5017(a) of title IS, United States Code, is amended to provide
for parallel parole release criteria for all offenders.

Sec. 10. Section 5020 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to provide
that parole revocations for youth offenders are conducted in the same manner
as prescribed for other pai'olees.

Sec, 11. Chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to reflect the
change in name from Youth Division to U.S. Parole Commission,

S!:c. 12. Amends the Table of Section of Chapter 402 of title IS, United States
Code.

Sec. 13. Section 5037 of title 18, United States code, is amended to provide
for parallel parole release criteria for all offenders.

Sec. 14. This section provides that wherever the term United States Parole
Board is used in any law it shall be replaced with the term U.S. Parole
Commission.

Sec. 15, Protects the eligibility of the one prisoner remaining in the Federal
system who was sentenced prior to June 29, 1932, in order to preserve the possi-
bility that he may be released under applicable provisions of law.

S::c. 16. Section 5108(c) (7) of title 5, United States Code, is amended to delete
from the control of the Attorne.v (leneral the salary of members of the U.S. Parole
Commission which shall be set by the Congress under the provisions of Section
4202(a) of title 18. United States Code.

Sec. 17. Authorized the appropriation of such sums as are necessary to carry
out the purposes of this Act.

Sec. 18. (a) This legislation would take effect ninety days following enactment.
( !)) All members of the Board of Parole on the effective date of this legislation

would become Commissioners, entitled to serve for the remainder of the terms for
whicli they were appointed as members of the Board of Parole.

(c) All powers, duties and functions of the Board of Parole would be trans-
ferred to the U.S. Parole Commission on or after the effective date. The U.S.
Parole Commission may make such transitional rules as are necessary for a
period of one year following the effective date.

Senator Burdick. Mr. Sigler, we are liappy to have yon again this

morning and you may proceed.

STATEMENT OF MAURICE H. SIGLEE, CHAIRMAN,
BOARD OF PAROLE

]\Ir. SiGLER. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, T have a rather short prepared statement and I

thank you for this opportunity to appear before you once more on tlie

subject of S. 1463, the proposed "Parole Commission Act of 1974."
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We appreciate the continued interest of this subcommittee in parole-

procedures, and in the efforts of the U.S. Board of Parole.

It is evident, Mr. Chairman, from our discussions in the past, that

we seek the same objectives
—the most effective and efficient means of

administering a program of parole in our criminal justice system.
Earlier hearings on 8. 1463, and our conversations with your statf.

have also made it evident that we are in agreement as to many of the

changes which have been needed in this area.

xVs you know, in the past it was our position that administrative

changes are legally acceptable and preferable for the flexibility Avhich

they afford. However, the major substantive provisions of S. 1463, as

recentl}' redrafted, are not objectionable to us. A number of the pro-
visions are already incorporated in our procedures

—some under the

recent reorganization of the Board, which was anticipated when I

met with you in June of last year, and others through our response to

either judical decisions or to our experience over the years.

Turning now to the provisions of S. 1463, as we have testified before,
and as we have demonstrated through our Board reorganization, we
endorse the concept of regionalization. The concejDts of appeal and the

granting of the opportunity to the parolee to have representation con-

tained in the legislation are concepts incorporated in current Board
procedure.
The subject of informing a prisoner of the reasons for denial of

parole has been one of much discussion over the past years both in this

country and others. The rules and regulations of the Board provide
that reasons for any parole denial shall be given to prisoners, in writ-

ing, following initial hearings. We are continuously striving to develop
means whereby the reasons given for denial w^ill be constructive as

well as informative.
As in the past, however, we object to a statutory requirement that

reasons always be given in narrative form. This manner of informing
an inmate is not always more informative and would be a tremendous
task considering the caseload of the Board.
The instant bill would require that the reasons for denial be pro-

vided the prisoner within 15 days after the interview. This would
merely codify present practice.

Section 4207(c) of S. 1463 presently provides tliat a prisoner shall

have access to progress reports and other materials prepared for use

by the Parole Commission in making a release determination. This
section purports to provide safeguards for maintaining the confiden-

tiality of those documents which are obtained under a pledge of con-

fidentialitv and those whose release could jeopardize the well-being of
individuals or disrupt prison administration.
However, the final paragraph of subsection 4207(c) imposes a duty

upon the Commission or the prison administration to summarize the
basic contents of information excluded from examination by the

prisoner. AVhile w^e can appreciate the reasons for including this pro-
vision in the lull, it presents some real difficulties.

First, confidential sources of valualile informntion could l)e in-

hibited bv the possibility of any sort of disclosure. Second, summaries
of potentially injurious information could be of greater detriment to
the inpiate thnn would access to the complete re]:)ort.

Section J^207(b) (2) provides that an inmate shall l)e permitted to-

have an advocate to assist him in parole interviews. We prefer that
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the concept of representation, rather than advocacy, be provided, as

contained in the present rules and reguhitions. The use of tlie term

advocate implies an adversary proceeding, which, in our estimation, is

neither appropriate for a parole interview, nor do w^e have the

resources to adjudicate tlie more than 17,000 cases each year on an

adversarial basis.

I understand that two provisions of the bill relating to appeals
have been changed, which obviates objections in the printed statement.

The progress that has been made in developing this legislation is

most gratifying. Again, I'd like to express our appreciation for your
interest and your el'orts in this area. If we may be further assistance

to you or your staff, we are anxious to do so.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my prepared statement but I would

be willing to try to answer any questions you have.

Senator Burdick. Thank you very nnich.

The bill provides an inmate denied parole should be given a narra-

tive of the reasons why. What does this language mean to you, and
how do you intend to implement it if it becomes law ?

Mr. SiGLER. It means just about that. We do have a dictation guide.,

a notice of action proposal that I will submit to you now for your
study if you want that. We think that might do what you believe needs

to be done and we think it will do a good job. We would like to have

you look at it.

Senator Burdick. Is it in narrative form ?

Mr. Sigler. Yes, it is in narrative form ?

Senator Burdick. And you think that would work out all right?
Mr. Sigler. We think it will.

Senator Burdick. The Bureau of Prisons now prepares summaries
of file material in the form of progress reports, which are given to

inmates. Is it your position that this practice should be stopped i

Mr. Sigler. No, sir, it is not my position. I think to be consistent

with wdiat I have said here in the past, I would have to say to you
I believe that is not my position.

Senator Burdick. This procedure is going on at the present time ?

Mr. Sigler. The Bureau of Prisons procedure ? Yes, it is.

Senator Burdick. And there are no adverse reactions to it ?

Mr. Sigler. Not any to my knowledge, none.

Senator Burdick. The bill provides for an advocate—and I notice

that is the word you used in your statement—^to aid the inmate in the

parole interview process. Is the Commission satisfied with this provi-

sion, which allows the inmate to have an attorney advocate if he pays
the fee but strictly limits any other provision for legal assistance to

the discretion of the Commission ^

Mr. Sigler. We certainly are, and that is why we say we believe the

word representative is better than advocate. We think the lawyer
shouldn't be—well, I guess I should say it this way. We think the

lawyers should be allowed to represent the prisoners in the same man-
ner as anyone else but in no other way.

Senator Burdick. But what ?

Mr. Sigler. But in no other way, I said. We don't think he should
be allowed to take an adversary position here, in other words, make
his own statement on behalf of the prisoner.

Senator Burdick. Then you are recommending that we change the
advocate to representative ?
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Mr. SiGLER. That is all.

Senator Burdick. That is all ?

]SIr. SiGLER. Yes, sir.

Senator Burdick. And you think it ^YOuldn't change the process at

all?

]Mr. SiGLER. Well, that is our feeling. It wouldn't chang-e the process.

and we think it might leave the connotation of an adversary hearing-
out of the legislation.

]Mr. Meeker. Mr. Sigler, if I may interject there ?

Senator Burdick. Yes.

]Mr. Meeker. The term advocate has become a term of art in the

field of corrections, and I am looking for a particular recent case in

which the advocate was defined by the court. In the case of Kessler vs.

Cujypt 3 Prison L. Kptr. 14 (Oreg. 1973) F.N. 5 was a case in which
the word advocate was defined. This M^as a prison disciplinary pro-

ceeding, but, nonetheless, the language was useful, and the ailvocate

was defined in the same terms in which I believe your parole deter-

mination hearings are set.

Wouldn't it be preferable to have a term in the statute with a de-

fined meaning rather than one in which we would have to go back and
establish a meaning ?

Mr. SiGLER. That is an Oregon case ?

]Mr. 3Ieeker, Yes.

Mr. Sigler. That could very well be true. I am not a lawyer. I just
want to be certain that—actually, we just want to be certain, the Board
wants to be certain that we don't have any connotation of an adversary
hearing being a part of the legislation here. That is our concerji. and if

the advocate definition—or the court takes care of it, it is no big thing
with us.

Senator Burdick. Mr. Sigler, do you feel that the organizational
structure provided in the bill provides a necessary means to get the

work accomplished wdiile still preserving opportunities for the entire

Board to act on major policy decisions ?

Mr. Sigler. That is the way the Federal Register is set up; yes.
There have been some chaiiges made in tlie autlu^ritv of the Chairman,
and we, although it is not unanimous with our Board, the percentage
of the Board in favor of it is very high. And as the CFR points out,
we must meet at least four times a year as a full board to establish

policy. We see no problem there at all.

Senator Burdick. The legislature makes no changes in the criteria

for parole, which shifts to the sentencing judge the responsibility for

the release decision when the maximum sentence is 1 year or less. Do
you think this is a good change ?

jMr. Sigler. This was ours, and I would have to say it to you, we
have not discussed this. AYe think this is a good change because we
don't think any court sentences one man to 1 year for rehabilitative

reasons. We think he is there because the judge thinks he needs to be
there maybe for example purposes or for punishment. And most peo-
ple who get a year don't go there for rehabilitative reasons anyway.
They don't need it. And it takes just as much time for the Board of
Parole to hear a case that is for a man doing a year as it does for a case
for a man that is doing a lot of time, and it presents a lot of problems.
We believe it makes good sense for the courts to tell this man that,



61

you are going to serve so much time in a year's sentence and the rest

in the community without parole intervention whatsover.

Senator Buedick. Do you feel the language in the bill which estab-

lishes the criteria for parole decisions is workable ?

Mr. SiGLER. We think so. We have spent much time on our projects
in the last 18 months, and we have made some changes, not too many,
but we don't see any problems from the standpoint of workability.

Senator Burdick. They are practical and not theoretical?

Mr. SiGLER. That is the point. I hope there is nothing theoretical

there where decisionmaking is concerned.

Senator Burdick. This bill would establish in effect two classes of

parole revocation cases. In case of a technical violation of parole con-

ditions, the parolee may ask for all of the procedural steps outlined

in the Morrissey case. If there is a new criminal conviction the hearing
is primarily to determine how much time remains to be served.

Do you feel this is a workable procedure and is the Commission

going to be able to meet the time deadline for hearings in deciding
these cases ?

Mr. SiGLER. To answer the last part of your question first, I think
that is the only difficulty we have, the time. We may have to come back
and ask for more help from the standpoint of examiners later on. I
don't think anybody could answer that part of your question.

I think the answer to your other question, the first part of your ques-
tion, is "Yes." The Morrissey case says if a man has not admitted to

the violation and if he has not been convicted of a new crime, we
must give him a local hearing and there is nothing we can do about
that. That is now the law, Senator. And we don't see any problem with
the other because it is a matter of, he has gone through the court or
he has admitted that he is guilty. So we do think there are two dis-

tinctions there to consider and, in fact, MoiTissey says so.

Senator BimDiCK. Well, if we aren't entirely sure about the time

deadlines, we are sort of in a dilemma?
Mr. Sioi.ER. As we said, we are not absolutely sure of that and the

amount of help we may need.

Senator Burdick. Would you be in favor of giving some discretion

and latitude there instead of having fixed dates?

Mr. SiGLER. Of course that would be better for us. We have not
made any recommendations to change that, but it would be better

for us.

Senator Burdick. I see. Well, maybe we can answer that through
trial and error and find out.

Mr. SiGLER. Yes.

Senator Burdick. The whole theory, of course, behind this is to

speed up the decisions.

Mr. SiGLER. And to see that everybody gets a fair shake.

Sentor Burdick. That is right, and everybody knows about it and

gets the results.

INIr. SiGLER. But if Ave have some flexibility, Mr. Chairman, then
that obviously would be helpful to us.

Senator Burdick. Do you feel that you may be able to utilize

magistrates, administrative law^ j^idges and others experienced in

hearing procedures to help you meet the revocation caseload?

72-524—76 5
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Mr. SiGLER. I tliink we can utilize tliem, but they don't want to be

utilized. I think they would prefer to stay out of this.

Senator Burdi(;k. The bill provides a means for reduction of mini-

mum sentences to make a prisoner eligible for parole consideration for

circumstances that could not be foreseen at time of sentencing. Do
you feel this is a necessary safety valve ?

Mr. SiGLER. I think this is a good thing because if a parole means

anything, one of the things it means is fairness. And an adjustment of

that kind, I think would bring about another element of fairness that

is not available at this time. So, w^e would be in favor of that.

Senator Burdick. The bill provides that parolees who would be

under supervision for long periods of time, they could be discharged
from supervision. Do you think this is wise ?

Mr. SiGLER. I think this is appropriate.
Senator Burdick. And do you think it is reasonable to place the

burden of proving a need for supervision longer than 5 years on the

Government ?

Mr. SiGLER. I surely do. I think that if a man has been under super-
vision 5 years, and we decide that we need to keep him there, I think it

is up to us to show why he needs to be under supervision.
Senator Buiidick. Mr. Sigier, the prepared statement says only tliat

there is no objection to enactment of this legislation. What is the

parole board's feeling about this ?

]\Ir. SiGLER. My personal opinion, it's good and not only do I have
no objections, I think it is a good bill.

Senator Burdick. In other words, you recommend its passage?
Mr. SiGLER. I recommend its passage.
Senator Burdick. Thank you very much.
Senator ?

Senator Cook. You recommend its passage even though on page 3

you do have some question relative to the last paragraph of section

4207(c) relative to the procedures for parole interview? You don't

have such a hard way to go, in other words, with that language on a

summary of matters and records that you would have any serious ob-

jection to that language staying in the bill ?

Mr. SiGLER. We think, sir, we have the answer to that right here.

And if you don't accept this, why, of course, we will accept yours.
Senator Cook. May I ask what the proposal is that you make ?

Senator Burdick. Would you send that up to the desk and let's all

see it ? This is what he intends, Senator, as a manner in which he can
handle it and handle it well.

Mr. SiGLER. Oh, you are talking about disclosures here now? Sen-

ator, you are speaking of disclosure, I see ?

Senator Cook. Yes.
Mr. SiGLER. This is a controversial thing.
Senator Cook. Well, the first thing I don't understand is that once a

man is in an institution, once his case has been concluded, once all the
material has been exhibited to either his benefit or his detriment at the

trial of the case, once witnesses have appeared and testified against
him, once that record has been made and has been established and once
it is a matter of record, now give me, if you can, some particular cases

or circumstances under which a summary of a man's record and a sum-

mary of even confidential material in that record is so confidential, as
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it applies to you and the institution, that someone who either repre-

sents the prisoner in question, that is the proposed parolee or the

parolee, could not have a summary of that information ?

Mr. SiGLER. Well, take the instance of organized crime.

Senator Cook. All right.
Mr. SiGLER. These are violent people and sometimes they talk.

Otherwise we don't have a conviction.

Senator Butrmck. Is that going to appear in his prison record ?

Mr. SiGLER. Oh, yes. In the presentence interview, yes, it does.

Senator Cook. All right.
Mr. SiGLER. And then you have a domestic situation. And this hap-

pens, I am sure you know, frequently that

Senator Cook. May I interrupt to say this to you, Mr. Chairman?
If there is anybody aware of a domestic situation it is the guy that is

there, the guy under consideration for parole.
Mr. SiGLER. The point is, we do not want him to kill his wife.

Maybe she has put something in there.

Senator Cook. Well, isn't that well within the confines of how you
come up with a summary of that information ?

JNIr. SiGLER. It would be, but I don't know whether everyone we
have in our organization is capable of making a summary that would

say it in such a way that this could be hidden from the man as far

as to the source of the information.
Senator Cook. I just hope in my own mind that is all you want to

keep from him.
Mr. SiGLER. I Avill have to give you my own philosopliy, I guess. I

don't want to keep anything. Senator. I believe in an open book my-
self. But I think maybe I have been convinced that there are some

dangers here. I have run a prison for many years in the State system
and we gave complete disclosure in the State system. I never had any-
body killed, but in these Federal cases there are instances where we
have organized crime material in the files. And we don't own the files,

Senator. The Bureau of Prisons owns the files.

Senator Cook. All I have to tell you is this. If he doesn't have some

knowledge when you turn him loose, it is going to take him about 25
or 30 minutes after he gets back home to the neighborhood until he
finds out.

Mr. SiGLER. You will find in the Federal judges' opinions that there
is a lot of opposition to this. I know this because I have been meeting
with these judges for a long time. There are some of these judges who
wall tell you to give him anything we have, but there are judges vio-

lently opposed to this for the reasons I just gave you.
Senator Cook. Well, I make a distinction in reading this section

here. And may I say in all fairness, when you talk about judges
violently opposed, what do you mean within the context of the phrase
judges ? Are you talking about the trial judge ?

Mr. SiGLER. The trial judge, yes. I am saying the information that

goes into this presentence investigation. And I have letters to this

effect. I have seen letters.

Senator Cook. Yes, but the presentence investigation file is not
turned over. Is that presentence investigation file, is all of that turned
over to you ?
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Mi\ SiGLER. Oh, yes. We have all of the files. We have every pre-
.sentence that is made. We have the entire thing in the files.

We have a complete copy, as it is composed by the probation officer,

Avhich comes to ns with the exception of one State.

Senator Cook. What State is that ?

jNIr. SiGLER. South Carolina. We have one judge down there that

does not like to send presentence investigations to the prison record.

Senator Cook. All right. Go ahead.

Senator BrnmcK. The staff just called my attention to subsection 4,
to page 15 of the bill, where it says, "any part of any presentence
report except upon agreement of the court having jurisdiction to im-

pose the sentence" and so on and so on.

In other words, he may exclude it if he wishes.

Mv. SiGLER. He may, but we have 647 judges in our system.
Senator Cook. Well, I can see that that is a problem.
Mi: SiGLER. Yes.

Senator Cook. In the first place, because what you are talking about
then is a prolonged preparation for a parole hearing, which would
require a request that presentence material be authorized, and then

you would have to lay it over for another time purely and simply
because you would have to make a written request of the judge to

authorize the disclosure of such information and then j'ou M'ould
have to reset the case. I know the situation you are under now where

you send somebody to a particular area to hear a number of cases,
and if he can't hear a case on that particular occasion, then the appli-
cant has to wait until the next time around.

Mv. SiGLER. Eight.
Senator Cook. Then I am wondering if we couldn't really work on

that. What you really want to do is tighten it down more. What I am
really trying to figure out is how a summary of that information could
be made. And I can see really under item 4 it is conceivable tliat we
could delay an applicant's processing of a hearing for a parole and
we wouldn't want to do that. What we are really doing with item 4
is, we are not expediting the matter at all

;
we are really prolonging

the matter. That is something I think we ought to treat very carefully.
Mv. Erlewine. Senator, the bill provides that there is no require-

ment for a summary of subsection 4 at all, only for the first three
subsections.

Senator Cook. Yes, but the point of it is that if a request is made,
unfortunately under item 4 then the guy says, "well, forget it, then
T won't even get it if it is going to hold up his parole." Do you see ?

And that is wdiat I am trying to say, that somehow or other we ought
to do something about that.

Mr. Meeker. The Judicial Conference has before it a proposal to

change the rules of criminal procedure to provide that all presentence
reports are made available to the defendant at the time of sentenc-

ing, which of course would take care of this problem if the Judicial
Conference makes that change. It has been pending there for several

years, but there are strong supporters for it in the Conference and
some strong opposition.

Senator Cook. You know, we are going in just the opposite direc-
tion in our juvenile court bill, as you are well aware, where they can
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only be scrutinized b}^ the presiding judge at tlie time of a juvenile
oli'ender's incarceration or whatever the case may be.

Well, I must say in all fairness that I don't want to restrict him
from any information, but I also don't want to put him in a position

where, if he wishes something in that particular report
—and suppose

he knows of his own knowledge that it is a particularly good one—
it would be a terrible shame to have to prolong that parole hearing.
But then again. I am not quite sure that I am delighted that judges
are incensed about the fact that they can show a particular indi-

vidual a presentence report on an individual.

Because certainly if that has a great deal to do with the determina-
tion a judge makes in relation to the sentence, then I have a notion
that the individual that receives an extremely harsh sentence as a re-

sult of that would like to see that, and I am not quite sure that we
should deny him the right to know why he has received the particular
sentence that he has received.

Mr. SiGLER. I do not disagree with that.

Senator Burdick. What would you think of deleting subsection 4,
or would you like to retain it ?

Mr. SiGLER. I would like to think about it. I am thinking now for
the whole Board, and we have gone over this together. I think probably
from the standpoint of disclosure, that I have the most liberal attitude
of any man or woman on our Board.
So my own personal opinion, Senator, may not carry.
Senator Cook. Let me ask you this. How long a period prior to the

time of a hearing does an individual make application for that

hearing ?

Mr. SiGLER. I think the latest is 30 days.
Senator Cook. 30 days ?

Mr. SiGLER. Yes, sir.

Senator Cook. Is there any reason why an individual cannot request
some information that is in a pre-sentence file at the time that he makes
application, and can that situation be resolved in that 30-day period so

that there would be no need to prolong or to lay over a proposed hear-

ing as a result of such a request ?

Mr. SiGLER. Senator Cook, this is an administrative thing. I do not
know how much time it would take at that particular time. I do not
know whether it would take more help or not, so I cannot answer that

question honestly.
Senator Cook. Well, help does not bother me. I am concerned about

the rights of an individual who is subject to a hearing for a parole.
I would rather give you the money so the situation could be resolved,
rather than think somehow or another we are denying an individual

some particular element of a file pertaining to him.
We have got too many files in the United States that nobody knows

about, and that somebody ought to know about. And there are a lot of

them that we ought to get rid of.

But somehow or other, I just have a hard time thinking tliat judges
are going to be really incensed about the fact that some information
in pretrial files should absolutely be denied to the individual who is

subject to a sentence, as the result of the information in that file.
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Mr. SiGLER. If you have money to liire help, you can do anything
from the standpoint of getting this thing resolved. There is no way
I could tell you that cannot be done.

Senator Cook. Well, let us work on the language. It seems to me that

you raise a point that I am not sure I am happy with, come to think

of it.

Senator Burdick. May I ask this question ? The oO-day notice, is it

possible that as soon as you get the request for a hearing, you send a

formal notice to the presiding judge at the time this man was sentenced

asking him if he has any objection at that time, so that you will not

lose any time ?

Mr. SiGLER. Well, I do not think 30 days would do it.

Senator Burdick. Well, I am just trying to take care of the time

factor that the Senator has referred to if we retain the section.

Mr, SiGLER. Well, I think if you adopt it, we are going to have to

contact every judge, because I think the judge has the right to say
Avhat material he has submitted to us can be used.

Senator Burdick. I am thinking of the time frame here. At the time

you receive the request for hearing, if at that time you send some sort

of formal notice to the judge asking if he has any objection to report-

ing the investigation he had
Mr. SiGUER. Oh, you want the time frame ? Again, I cannot answer

that because this starts in the Bureau of Prisons, and I would have to

find out from them about the time frame. I would have to answer that

later.

Mr. Meeker. Excuse me, Mr. Sigler, but this would be a piece of

information that could be determined at the time the individual is

committed to the institution to begin serving his sentence. And very
seldom does the first parole hearing, even under A-2 cases occur before

the individual has been in the institution 60 to 90 days.
Mr. Sigler. Right.
Mr. Meeker. So I do not think this is a piece of information that

you determine one time, and I think within that time frame, it would
"work satisfactorily. And I think the information is already noted in

the file in a great majority of cases as to whether or not the presentence
material has been given to the defendant at the time of sentencing.

]Mr. Sigler. I have a suggestion here that has just been handed to

me suggesting that the presentence report shall be used unless a

presiding jndge objects at the time of sentence.

Senator Cook. I do not mind that. The unfortunate part about it,

though. I am afraid, is you are going to establish a pattern. You are

going to establish a pattern with the judicial system that the judges
are automatically going to say, no. That is what really bothers rne.

Then I get the feeling we are just going to have an absolute denial

across the board within the framework of the judicial council, and that

is going to be established, an automatic no. That is M'hat bothers me.

Then what we have done really in trying to resolve a problem by
giving this option, we have seen to it that the problem never occurs,

because everybody is going to take advantage of the easiness of

saying no.

Mr. Sigler. It might be interesting to know that at the last two

judges conferences I attended, I ask if they would raise their hands
in answer to this question, and it was just about split down the middle.

Senator Cook. In other words, one-half of the room were hanging
judges, and the other half of the room were moderates ?
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Mr. SiGLEE. You said that, sir. But this was in the Southern District

of New York and in California, and that is the ninth district, I guess.
Those were tlie last two I attended.

I asked them to raise their hands, and it was just about split down
the middle.

Senator Cook. I think we ought to see what we can come up with,

you know, if we can come up with any language which would meet this

problem.
Senator Burdick. But you prefer the suggested language by the wit-

ness to be used ?

Senator Cook. Well, I do not know.
Mr. SiGLEK. As Senator Cook points out, it may be an easy thing to

say no, but it sounds good from our standpoint. If they do not object,
we automatically use it.

Senator Burdick. Well, that is in keeping with my suggestion that

you send this notice for 30 days and if there is no objection, it goes.
Senator Cook. I would rather have that, rather than the fiatout

proposition that if he does not object at the time of sentencing because

if Ave do it that way, j'our way, then I think we can catch him on a

periodic basis saying, here is this case, and here is the next case
;
rather

than ]Mr. Sigler's suggestion.
So I like your suggestion, ]\Ir. Chairman, because otherwise I feel

we will get ourselves in a bind where we are not going to be able to

use it under any circumstances.

Senator Brpj)iCK. And then you suggest that we use the word "rep-
resentative"' instead of "advocate" ?

Mr. SiGLER. Yes.

Senator Burdick. Because that kind of takes the idea of a confron-
tation or a contest away from it?

Mr. SiGLER. We think so.

Senator Burdick. The effect would be the same though ?

Mr. SiGLER. Sir, exactly the same.

Senator Cook. It is just semantics, but one who represents better be
an advocate.

]Mr. SiGLER. Yes
;
he had better be.

Senator Burdick. Outside of that, do we have any problems ?

Mr. SiGLER. I ha^e none.

Senator Cook. Well, thank you.
Senator Burdick. That is all I have, and thank you very much for

coming up here this morning.
The meeting will be adjourned, but there will be a 10-day period for

additional statements from interested people.
[Whereupon, at 10 :15 a.m., the subcommittee recessed subject to the

call of the Chair.]

[Following is additional information :]

United States Senate,
Committee on the Judiciary,
Washington, D.C., March 27, 1974.

Michael Dolan. Esq.,
Acting Chief of the Legislative and Legal Section, Department of Justice,

Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. Dolan : Enclosed is correspondence I recently received from Senator
McClellan with regard to suggested amendments to the March 14 Committee Print
of S. 1463, legislation to reorganize the U.S. Board of Parole. I intend to ask that
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this correspondence be included in tlie hearing record on this legislation and
I would appreciate being advised of the comments of the Department of Justice
also for inclusion in the record.
With kind regards, I am

Sincerely,

QUENTIX N. BURDICK.
Enclosure.

United States Sexate.
Committee on the Judiciary.

Washington, D.C., March 20, 1974.
Hon. Quentin N. Bukdick,
United States Senate
Washington, D.C.

Dear Senator Burdick : I understand that S. 1463, a bill to amend title 18,
United States Code, relating to parole, and for other purpose, is approaching
the final stages of processing within the Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries.

In studying the Committee Print on the bill, dated March 14, 11(74, I have
become concerned about provisions setting forth the powers of the Chairman
of the proposed Parole Commission which could create the potential for a single
individual to unduly influence national parole policy and to undermine the in-

dependent role of the other eight Commissioners. In my judgment, it is of para-
mount importance that the institutional framework of the Commission be care-

fully designed to avoid such a situation.
With this concern in mind, I would appreciate your giving careful considera-

tion to the attached suggested amendments to S. 1463 as proposed in the Com-
mittee Print.

With kindest regards, I am
Sincerely yours,

John L. McClellan.
Proposed Amendments

(1) On page 3, line 1, strike the period and insert in lieu thereof a .semi-

colon and the following : "three to serve as members of the National Appeals
Board ; and from the members of the National Appeals Board one to serve as
Vice Chairman of the Commission."

(2) On page 6, beginning on line 7, delete "designate three Commissioners
to serve on the National Appeals Board of whom one shall be so designated to
serve as Vice Chairman, and."

Office of the Attorney General.
Washington, D.C, June 3, 1974.

Hon. .Tames O. Eastland,
Chairman, Committee on the Judici<vry, U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. Chairman : As you know, S. 1463, the Parole Commission Act, was
favorably reported by the Subcommittee on Penitentiaries to the full Judiciary
Committee.
The Justice Department has worked clo.sely with the Subcommittee on this bill

and supports S. 1463, as reported. In our view, this bill achieves a proper bal-

ance on the question of the Chairman's authority. S. 1463 gives the Chairman
sufficient authority to properly administer the Commission, but at the same
time, authorizes the Commission members to approve all policy statements, rules,
and regulations.

Sincerely,
WiLMAM B. SaxBE,

Attorney General.

Possible Amendments to S. 1463

(1) On p. 2, line 2.5, following the word "Senate." insert "At no time shall

more than six members be of the same political party."
(2) On p. 3. line 3, following the word "Chairman" delete the period and

insert "and one as Vice Chairman. The Attorney General shall also designate
from among the Commissioners three to serve on the National Appeals Board
and, for each region established pursuant to section 4202(6) (2), one Com-
missioner to serve as Regional Commissioner for such region."
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(3) On p. 5, between lines 18 and 19, following subsection (d) of Section

4202, insert the following :

"(e) The Commission is authorized, subject to the civil service and classifica-

tion laws, to appoint such officers, attorneys, examiners, and other employees
as may be necessary for carrying out its functions under this chapter."

(4) On p. 6—delete lines 1-6 and insert the following in lieu thereof:

"(2) exercise the executive and administrative functions of the Commission,
including functions of the Commission with respect to the appointment anc^.

the distribution of business among such personnel and administrative units of

the Commission.
"P)-nvi(1cd that.

"(A) in carrying out any of his functions under this subsection the Chair-
man shall be governed by general policies of the Commission and by such reg-

ulatory decisions, findings, and determinations as the Commission may by law
be authorized to make ;

"(Bi the appointment by the Chairman of the heads of major administrative

units under the Commission shall be subject to the approval of the Commission ;

"(C) personnel employed regularly and full time in the immediate oflSces of

members of the Commission other than the Chairman are subject to the ap-

pointment and supervision of such commissioner ; and
"(D) functions of the Commission with respect to determining upon the dis-

tribution of appropriated funds according to major programs and purposes is

reserved to the Commission."
(5) on p. 6, delete lines 7-12.

(6) on p. 6-7, redesignate subparagraphs (5), (6), (7), and (8) as (3), (4),

(5), and (6), respectively.

(7) on p. 7, line 10, after the word "responsibilities" insert "delegated by the

Commission."

Department of Justice,
Washington, B.C., April 25, 197/,.

Hon. QUENTIN N. BUKDICK,
Chairman, Suhcommittee on National Penitentiaries, U.S. Senate,

Washington, B.C.

Dear Senator Burdick : This is in response to your request for the views
of the Department of Justice on possible amendments to S. 1463, the proposed
"Parole Commission Act."
These amendments, which you forwarded to us on March 27, 1974, would alter

the bill in respect to the administrative composition and responsibilities of the

Commission.
The first amendment would preclude the appointment of more than six mem-

bers of the same political party. AMiile we believe the parole function should
be carried out without regard to partisan political considerations, we interpose
no objection to the adoption of this amendment.
The second amendment would provide for the designation of the Vice Chair-

man, the National Appeals Board, and the Regional Commissioners by the At-

torney General. It is our view that the Parole Commission should operate in an
independent manner. The designation of positions by the Attorney General to

this extent could have, in our opinion, the potential of diluting that independ-
ence, or could give the appearance of such dilution. We urge the Committee to

give consideration to this possibility.
The third amendment would authorize the appointment of personnel by the

Commission. We believe that it would be preferable for the Chairman to have
this appointment authority.
The fourth amendment would make the exercise of executive and adminis-

trative functions by the Chairman subject to Commission regulations, decisions,

findings and determinations, subject appointments by the Chairman to Commis-
sion approval, and give Commissioners, other than the Chairman, appointment
and supervisory powers in regard to personnel working in their immediate
offices.

We question whether or not it is feasible to require Commission involvement
in administrative detail to the extent which this amendment provides through
liberal interpretation. Also, it may present some difliculty of interpretation.
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Terms such as "general policies" are ambiguous, and one reading of paragraph

(C) of the proviso would indicate that every Commissioner except the Chairman
would have the exclusive supervision of the staff with which he works.

Amendments 5 and 6 are technical, but the final amendment would provide
that responsibilities of the Chairman not specified in the statute would be "dele-

gated by the Commission." While it would appear to be acceptable under the

terms of the bill for the Commission to delegate administrative duties to the

Chairman in a general sense, the amendment could prove to be an obstacle to

the efficient operation of the business of the Commission.
In summary, it is our estimation that the general affect of amendments two,

four and seven would be to involve the Attorney General and the Commission as
a whole in personnel and administrative matters to a greater extent than does
the present bill. We seriously question whether the changes proposed would im-

prove the potential for the most effective parole program.
Sincerely,

W. Vincent Rakestraw,
Assistant Attorney General.



S. 1 100—PAROLE COMMISSION ACT

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9, 1975

U.S. Senate,
Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries,

OF THE Committee on the Judiciary.

Washington^ D.C.

The subcommittee met. pursuant to notice, at 1 :30 p.m. in room 457

Russell Senate Office Building, Senator Quentin N. Burdick

(presiding).
P]-esent : Senators Burdick, Scott, and Hruska.

Also present: James G. Meeker. stafT director, Chris Erlewme, dep-

uty counsel, Richard Kait, minority counsel, Judith E. Snopek, chief

clerk.

Senator Burdick. It is a pleasure to open these hearings today on

S. 1109, legislation which would change the organization and admin-

istration of the parole system for offenders convicted of Federal

crimes. We are beginning this afternoon to write the final chapter in

the consideration of this legislation, which has been before the Sub-

committee on National Penitentiaries for near 3 years.
This legislation has been developed with the cooperation of the

Board of Parole and the Department of Justice. This subcommittee
has supported the administrative trial of many of the provisions in-

corporated in the bill.

We have tried to experiment with change. I believe that we have

good reason to be more confident in it is provisions.
While there are still some differences of opinion here today, we are

all trying to improve the legislation. The sincerity of these efforts is

recognized.
The bill before us does not change the criteria for the grant or denial

of parole, and the subcommittee recognizes that only about one-tliird

of eligible Federal prisoners are paroled. Our effort has been to focus

the best information and the best procedures toward making good
parole decisions. As we have learned, the decision to imprison an indi-

vidual is an important one, and one wliich costs tax dollars. We must
use the scarce resources for the incarceration of those individuals who
are a threat to public safety for whom there is a need for incarceration.

Continual review and improvement of this decisionmaking process
is important, and must not stop even when parole legislation has been
enacted.
Without objection, the legislation before the subcommittee and the

analvsis will be incorporated in the hearing record at this point.
[The documents referrc^d to follow :]

(71)
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tS. 1109, 94th Cong., 1st sess.]

A BILL To amend title 18, United States Code, relating to parole, and for other purposes

Be it enacted hy the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States
of America in Congress assembled, That this Act may be cited as the 'Tarole
Commission Act".

Sec. 2. Chapter 311 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as fol-
lows :

"Chapter 311—PAROLE
"Sec.
"4201. Definitions.
"4202. Parole Commission created.
"4203. Powers and duties of the Commission.
"4204. Powers and duties of the Chairman.
"420.5. Persons eligible.
"42UG. Release on parole.
"4207. Conditions of parole.
"420S. Parole interview procedures.
"4200. Aliens.
"4210. Retaking parole violator under warrant.
"4211. Officer executing warrant to retake parole violator.
"4212. Parole modification and revocation.
"421.3. Reconsideration and appeal.
"4214. Original .iurisdiction cases.
"421.J. Applicability of Administrative Procedure Act.
"421(>. Young adult offenders.
"4217. Warrants to retake Canal Zone parole violators.

"§4201. Definitions

"As used in this chapter—
"

( 1 ) -Commission' means the United States Parole Commission ;

"(2) 'Commissioner' means any member of the United States Parole Com-
mission

;

"(3) 'Director' means the Director of the Bureau of Prisons
;

"(4) 'eligible person' means any Federal prisoner who is eligible for pa-
role pursuant to this title or any other law including any Federal prisoner
whose parole has been revoked and who is not otherwise ineligible for
parole ;

"(5) 'parolee' means any eligible person who has been released on parole
or deemed as if released on parole under section 4164 or section 4205(d) of
this title ; and

"(6) 'rules and regulations' means rules and regulations promulgated by
the Commission pursuant to section 4203(b)(1) of this title and section
553 of title 5, United States Code. "

"§ 4202. Parole Commission created

"There is hereby establi-shed as an independent agency of the Department of
Justice a United States Parole Commission which shall be comprised of nine
members appointed by the President, by and with the advice and consent of the
Senate. At no time shall more than six members be of the same political party.
The Attorney General shall designate from among the commissioners one to serve
as Chairman. The term of office of a commissioner shall be six years, except that
the term of a person appointed as a commissioner to fill a vacancy shall expire
six years from the date upon which such person was appointed and qualified.

Upon the expiration of a term of office of a commissioner, the commissioner shall

continue to act until a successor has been appointed and qualified. Commissioners
shall be compen.sated at the highest rate now or hereafter prescribed for grade
17 of the General Schedule pay rates (5 U.S.C. 5332).

"§ 4203. Powers and duties of the Commission
"
(a ) Tlie Commission, by ma.iority vote, shall have the power to—

"(1) grant or deny any application or recommendation to parole any
eligible person ;

"(2) impose reasonable conditions on any order granting parole ;

''

(3) modify or revoke any order paroling any eligible person : and
"(4) establish the maximum length of time which any person w^hose

parole has been revoked shall be required to serve, but in no case shall such

time, together with such time as he previously served in connection with the

offense for which he was paroled, be longer than the maximum term for

which he was sentenced in connection with such offense ; and where such



73

revocation is based upon a subsequent conviction of the parolee of any Fed-

eral, State, or local crime committed subsequent to his release on parole,
determine whether all or any part of the unexpired term being served at

time of such parole shall run concurrently or consecutively with the sen-

tence imposed f<jr such subsequent offense.

"(b) The Commission shall meet at least quarterly, and by majority vote
shall—

"(1) promulgate rules and regulations establishing guidelines for the

powers enumerated in subsection (a) of this section and such other rules^

and regulations as are necessary to carry out a national parole policy and
the purposes of this chapter ;

"(2) create such regions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of
this chapter, but in no event less than live ; and

"(3) ratify, revise, or deny any request for regular, supplemental, or de-

ficiency appropriations, prior to the submission of the requests to the Office

of Management and Budget by the Chairman, which requests shall be sep-

arate from those of any other agency of the Department of Justice.

A record of the final vote of each commissioner on any action pursuant to

this subsection shall be maintained and made available for public inspection.

"(c) The Commission, by majority vote, and pursuant to rules and regula-

tions—-

"(1) may delegate to any conunissioner or commissioners any powers
enumerated in subsection (a) of this section ;

"(2) may delegate to any panel of hearing examiners, any powers neces-

sary to conduct hearings and interviews, take sworn testimony, obtain and
make a record of pertinent information, make findings of probable cause,

issue subpoenas for witnesses or evidence in parole revocation proceedings,

and recommend disposition of any matters enumerated in subsection (a) of

this section, except that any such findings or recommendations of any panel
of hearing examiners shall be based upon the concurrence of not less than

two members of such a panel ;
and

"(3) may review, or may delegate to the National Appeals Board the

power to review, any decision made pursuant to subparagraph (1) of this

subsection except that any such decision so reviewed must be reaffirmed,

modified, or reversed within thirty days of the date the decision is rendered,

and, in case of such review, the individual to whom the decision applies shall

be informed in writing of the Commission's actions with respect thereto and

the reasons for such actions.

"(d) With respect to any decision made pursuant to the powers enumerated

in subsection (a) of this section, the Commission upon request of the Attorney

General filed not later than thirty days following any such decision, shall review

such decision nnd shall by majority vote reaffirm, modify, or reverse the decision

within thirty days of the receipt of the Attorney General's request, and shall

inform the Attorney General and the individual to whom the decision applies

in writing of its decision and the reasons therefor.
"
(e) (Except to the extent otherwise herein provided, in every decision or action

made by the Commission pursuant to the powers enumerated in this section, each

commissioner shall have equal responsibility and authority, shall have full access

to all information relating to the performance of such duties and responsibilities,

and shall have one vote.

"§ 4204. Powers and duties of the Chairman

"(a) The Chairman shall—
"(1) convene and preside at meetings of the Commission pursuant to sec-

tion 4203 of this title and such additional meetings of the Commission as the

Chairman may call or as may be requested in writing by at least three

commissioners ;

"(2) appoint, fix the compensation of, assign, and supervise all personnel

employed l)y the Commission except that :

"(A) the appointment of any hearing examiner shall be subject to

approval of the Commission within the first year of such hearing exam-
iner's employment ;

and
"(B) regional commissioners shall appoint and supervise such person-

nel employed regularly and full time in their respective regions as are

compensated at a rate up to and including grade 9 of the General

Schedule pay rates (5 U.S.C. 5332) ;
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'•(3) assign duties among officers and (>mplo.vees of the Commission,

including commissioners, so as to balance the workload and provide for

orderly administration ;

"(4) designate three commissioners to serve on the National ApiieaLs

Board of whom one shall be so designated to serve as vice chairman, and

designate, for each such region established pursuant to section 4203(b) (2)

of this title, one commissioner to serve as regional commissioner in each

such region ; except that in each such designation the Chairman shall con-

sider years of service, preference and fitness, and no such designation shall

rake effect unless concurred in by the Attorney General ;

••(')) direct the preparation of requests for appropriations and the use

and expenditure of funds :

"(6) make reports on the position and policies of the Commission to the

Attorney General, the Administrative Office of the United States Courts, and
the ( "ongress ;

'•(7) provide for research and training, including, but not limited to—
"(A) collecting data obtained from studies, research, and the empiri-

cal experience of public and private agencies concerning the parole

process and parolees ;

"(B) disseminating pertinent data and studies, to individuals, agen-

cies, and organizations concerned with the parole process and parolees ;

"(C) publishing data concerning the parole process and parolees ;
and

"(D) conducting seminars, workshops, and training programs on

methods of parole for parole personnel and other persons connected with

the parole process ;

"
(8) accept voluntary and imcompensated services

;

"(9) utilize, on a cost- reimbursable basis, the services of officers or em-

ployees of the executive or judicial branches of Federal or State government,
for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of section 10 of this title : and

"(10) perform such administrative and other duties and responsibihties

as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

"(b) In" carrying out his functions under this section, the Chairman shall be

governed by the national parole policies promulgated by the Commission.

"§ 4205. Persons eligible

"(a) An eligible person, other than a juvenile delinquent or committed youth

offender, wherever confined and serving a definite term or terms of more than one

year, may be released on parole after serving one-third of such term or terms or

after serving fifteen years of a life sentence or of a sentence in excess of forty-

five years, except to the extent otherwise provided by law.

"(b) Upon entering a judgment of conviction, the court having jurisdiction to

impose sentence, when in its opinion the ends of justice and best interest of the

public require that the defendant be sentenced to imprisonment for a term of ex-

ceeding one year, may (1) designate in the sentence of imprisonment imposed a

minimum term at the expiration of which the person shall become eligible for

parole, which term may be less than but shall not be more than one-third of the

maximum sentence imposed hy the court, or (2) the court may fix the maximum
sentence of imprisonment to be served in which event the court may specify that

the person may be released on parole at such time as the Commission may
determine.

"(c) If the court desires more detailed information as a basis for determining
the sentence to be imposed, the court may, for purposes of study, commit the

defendant to the custody of the Attorney General, which commitment shall

be deemed to be for the maximum sentence of imprisonment prescribed by law.

The results of such study, together with any recommendations which the Direc-

tor believes would be helpful in determining the disposition of the case, shall

be furnished to the court within sixty days, or such additional period, but not

to exceed sixty days, as the court may grant. After receiving such reports and
recommendations, the court may in its discretion—

"(1) place the person on probation as authorized by section 3651 of this

title ;
or

"(2) affirm the sentence of imprisonment originally imposed, or reduce
the sentence of imprisonment, and commit the offender under any applicable

provision of law. The term of the sentence shall run from date of original
commitment under this section.

"(d) Any per.son sentenced to imprisonment for a term or terms of one year
or less, who after one hundred and eighty days has not served his term or teims
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less good time deductions, shall be released as if on parole, notwithstanding the

provisions of section 4164 of this title, unless the court which imposed sentence,

shall, at the time of sentencing, find that such release is not in accord with the

ends of justice and the best interest the public and sets another time for such
release. This subsection shall not prevent delivery of any person released on

parole to the autliorities of any State otherwise entitled to his custody.

"(el At any time upon motion of the Bureau of Prisons and upon notice to

the attorney for the Government, the court may reduce any minimum term to

the time the defendant has served.

"(f) Except to the extent otherwise herein specifically provided, nothing in

this section shall be construed to affect or otherwise alter, amend, modify, or

repeal any provision of law relating to eligibility for release on parole, or any
other provision of law which empowers the court to suspend the imposition or

execution of any sentence, to place any person on probation, or to correct,

reduce, or otherwise modify any sentence.

"§4206. Release on parole

"(a) If it appears from a report or recommendation by the proper institution

officers or upon application by a person eligible for release on parole, that such

person has substantially observed the rules of the institution to w^hieh he is

confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person will live and
remain at liberty without violating the law. and if in the opinion of the Com-
mission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society, the Com-
mission may authorize release of such person on parole.

'(b) Upon commitment of any person sentenced to imprisonment under any
law for a definite term or terms of more than one year, the Director, under
such regulations as the Attorney General may pre.scribe. shall cau.se a complete
study to be made of the person and shall furnish to the Commission a summary
report, together with any recommendations which in the Director's opinion
would be helpful in determining the suitability of the prisoner for parole. Such
report may include, but shall not be limited to, data regarding the eligible per-
son's previous delinquency or criminal experience, pertinent circumstances of
his social background, his capabilities, his mental and physical health, and such
other factors as may be considered pertinent. The Commission may make such
other investigation as it may deem necessary. Such report and recommendations
shall be made not less than ninety days prior to the date upon which such
person becomes eligible for parole, except where such person may become eligible
for parole less than one hundred and twenty days following commitment, the
Director, in the absence of exceptional circumstances, shall have not less than
thirty days, but not more than sixty days, to make such report and
recommendations.

"(c) Upon request of the Commission, it shall be the duty of the various
probation officers and government bureaus and agencies to furnish the Commis-
sion information available to such officer, bureau, or agency, concerning any
eligible person or parolee and whenever not incompatible with the public interest,
their views and recommendation with respect to any matter within the jurisdic-
tion of the Commission.

"§ 4207. Conditions of parole

"(a) A parolee .shall remain in the legal custody and under the control of the
Attorney General, until the expiration of the maximum term or terms for which
such parolee was sentenced.

"(b) In every case, the Commission shall impose as a condition of parole that
the parolee nut commit another Federal. State, or local crime during the term
of his parole. In imposing any other condition or conditions of parole the
Commission shall consider the following :

"(1) there should be a reasonable relationship between the conditions
imposed and the person's conduct and present situation;

"(2) the conditions may provide for such deprivations of liberty as are
reasonably necessary for the protection of the public welfare ; and

'•(3) the conditions should be sufficiently specific to serve as a guide to

supervision and conduct.

"(c) An order of parole or release as if on parole may as a condition of such
order require—

"(1) a parolee to reside in or participate in the program of a residential
community treatment center, or both, for all or part of the period of such
parole or release. A person residing in a community treatment center may
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be required to pay such costs incident to residence as the Attorney General
deems appropriate ;

"(2) a parolee, who is an addict within the meaning of section 4251 (a)
of this title, or a drug dependent person within the meaning of section 2 ( q )

of the Public Health Service Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 201), to participate
in the community supervision programs authorized by section 4255 of this

title for all or part of the period of parole.

"(d) The Commission may discharge any parolee from parole supervision or

release him from one or more conditions of parole at any time after release on

parole. In addition, the Commission shall—
"(1) review, at least annually, the status of any parolee who has had two

years of continuous parole supervision, to determine the need for continued

parole supervision ; and
"(2) discharge from parole supervision any parolee who has had five years

of continuous parole supervision unless it is determined, after a hearing,
that he should not be so discharged because there is a likelihood that he will

either engage in conduct violating any criminal law or would jeopardize the
the public welfare. In any case in which parole supervision is continued

pursuant to this subparagraph, the parolee shall receive a hearing at least

every two years for the purpose of determining need for further parole
supervision. Any hearing held pursuant to this subparagraph shall be in

accordance with the procedures set out in section 4210(b) (2) of this title

at a time and location determined by the Commission.

"§ 4208. Parole interview procedures

"(a) Any person eligible for parole shall promptly be given a parole interview
and such additional parole interviews as the Commission deems necessary, but in
no case shall there be less than one additional parole interview every two years,
except that an eligible person may waive any interview.

"(b) Any interview of an eligible person by the Commission in connection with
the consideration of a parole application or recommendation shall be conducted
in accordance with the following procedure—

"(1) an eligible person shall be given written notice of the time, place, and
purpose of such interview

;
and

"(2) an eligible person shall be allowed to select a representative to aid
him in such interview. The representative may be any per-son who qualifies
under rules and regulations promulgated by the Commission. Such rules
shall not exclude attorneys as a class.

"(c) Following notification that a parole interview is pending, an eligible per-
son shall have reasonable access to progress reports and such other materials as
are prepared by or for the use of the Commission in making any determination,
except that the following materials may be excluded from inspection—

"(1) diagnostic opinions which, if made known to the eligible person,
would lead to a serious disruption of his institutional program of
rehabilitation ;

"(2) any document which contains information which was obtained on
the basis of a pledge of confidentiality made by or in behalf of a public of-
ficial in the performance of his ofiicial duties if such official has substantial
reason to believe that such information would place any person in jeopardy
of life or limb

;

"(3) any other information that would place any person in jeopardy of
life or limb, or if any document is deemed by either the Commission, the
Bureau of Prisons, or any other agency to fall within the exclusionary pro-
visions of subparagraph 1, 2, or 3 of this subsection, then it shall becorue the
duty of the Commission, the Bureau, or such other agency, as the case may
be, to summarize the basic contents of the material wi'tliheld, bearing iii

mind the need for confidentiality or the impact on the inmate, or both, and
furnish such summary to the inmate.

"(d) A full and complete record of every interview shall be retained by the
Commission. For good cause shown, the Commission may make a transcript of
such record available to any eligible person.

"(e) Not later than fifteen working days after the date of the interview, the
Commission shall notify the eligible person in writing of its determination. In
any case in which parole release is denied or parole conditions are imposed other
than those commonly imposed, the Commission shall include the reasons for such
determination, and, if possible, a personal conference to explain such reasons
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shall be held between the eligible person and the Commissioners or examiners

conducting the interview.

"§4209. Aliens

"When an alien prisoner subject to deportation becomes eligible for parole,

the Commission may authorize the release of such person on condition that such

person be deported and remain outside the United States.

"Such person, when his parole becomes effective, shall be delivered to the duly-

authorized immigration official for deportation.

§ 4210. Retaking parole violator under warrant

"(a) A warrant for the taking of any person who is alleged to have violated

his parole may be issued by the Commission within the maximum term or terms
for which such person was sentenced.

"(b) (1) Except as provided in subsection (c), any alleged parole violator

retaken upon a warrant under this section shall be accorded the oportunity to

have—
"(A) a preliminary hearing at or reasonably near the place of the alleged

parole violation or arrest, without unnecesary delay, to determine if there is

probable cause to believe that he has violated a condition of his parole ;
and

upon a finding of probable cause a digest shall be prepared by the Commis-
sion setting forth in wi'iting the factors considered and the reasons for the

decision, a copy of which shall be given to the parolee within a reasonable

period of time ;

"(B) upon a finding of probable cause under subparagraph (1) (A), a
revocation hearing at or reasonably near the place of the alleged parole
violation or arrest within sixty days of such determination of probable cause

except that a revocation hearing may be held at the same time and place
set forth the preliminary hearing.

"(2) Hearings held pursuant to subparagraph (1) of this subsection shall be
conducted by the Commission in accordance with the following procedures :

"(A) notice to the parolee of the conditions of parole alleged to have been

violated, and the time, place, and purposes of the scheduled hearing ;

"(B) opportunity for the parolee to appear and testify, and present wit-

nesses and documentary evidence on his own behalf
;

"(C) opportunity for the parolee to be represented by retained counsel, or
if he is unable to retain counsel, counsel may be provided pursuant to section

3006A of this title, and
"(D) opportunity for the parolee to be apprised of the evidence again.st

him and, if he so requests, to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses,
unless the Commission specifically finds good cause for not allowing con-

frontation. The Commission may subiwena witnesses and evidence, and pay
witness fees as establisher for the courts of the United States. If a person
refuses to obey such a subpoena, the Commission may petition a court of the

United States for the judicial di.strict in which such parole proceeding is be-

ing conducted, or in which such person may be found, to request such person
to attend, testify, and produce evidence. The court may issue an order re-

quiring such person to appear before the Commission, when the court finds

such information, thing, or testimony directly related to a matter with
respect to which the Commission is empowered to make a determination under
this section. Failure to obey such an order is punishable by such court as a

contempt. All process in such a case may be served in the judicial district

in which such a parole proceeding is being conducted, in which such person
resides or carries on business, or in which such person may be found.

"(c) (1) Any parolee convicted of any Federal, State, or local crime com-
mitted subsequent to his release on parole and sentenced for such crime to a
term or terms of imprisonment who has a detainer for a warrant issued under
this section placed against him shall receive an institutional revocation hearing
within one hundred and eighty days of such placement, or promptly upon re-

lease from such commitment whichever comes first.

"(2) Any alleged parole violator, who waives his right to any hearing under
subsection (b), shall receive an institutional revocation hearing within ninety
days of the date of retaking.

"(3) Hearings held pursuant to subparagraphs (1) and (2) of this subsec-
tion shall be conducted by the Commission. The alleged parole violator shall

have notice of such hearing, be allowed to appear and testify on his own behalf,

72-.524—76 6
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and to select a representative, in accordance witli the procedures of section

4208(b) (2) of this title, to aid him in such appearance.

"(d) Following any revocation hearing held pursuant to this section, the Com-

mission may dismiss the warrant or take any action provided under section

4212 of this title : Provided, However, That in any case in which parole is modi-

fied or revoked, a digest shall be prepared by the Commission setting forth in

writing the factors considered and the reasons for such action, a copy of which

shall be given to the parolee.

"(e) The Commission, pursuant to rules and regulations, may delegate author-

ity to conduct hearings held pursuant to this section to any officer or employee

of the executive or judicial branches of Federal or State Government.

"§4211. OflBcer executing warrant to retake parole violator

"Any officer of any Federal penal or correctional institutions, or any Federal

officer authorized to serve criminal process within the United States, to whom a

warrant for the retaking of a parole violator is delivered, shall execute such

warrant by taking such parolee and returning him to the custody of the

Attorney General.

"§ 4212. Parole modification and revocation

"When a warrant has been executed pursuant to section 4210 of this title, and

such warrant is not dismissed, the decision of the Commission may include—
"(1) a reprimand ;

"(2) an alteration of parole conditions ;

"(3) referral to a residential community treatment center for all or part

of the remainder of the original sentence ;

"(4) formal revocation of parole or release as if on parole pursuant to

this title ; or

"(5) any other action deemed necessary for successful rehabilitation of

the violator, or which promotes the ends of justice.

The Commission may take any action pursuant to this section it deems appro-

priate taking into consideration whether or not the parolee has been convicted

of any Federal. State, or local crime subsequent to his release on parole or

whether such action is warranted by the frequency or seriousness of the parolee's

violation of any other condition or conditions of his parole.

"§ 4213. Reconsideration and appeal

"(a) Whenever parole release is denied under section 4206 of this title, parole
conditions are imiwsed other than those commonly imposed under section 4207

of this title, parole discharge is denied under section 4207(d) (2) of this title,

or parole is modified or revoked under section 4212 of this title, the individual

to whom any such decision applies may have the decision reconsidered by sub-

mitting a written application to the regional commissioner not later than forty-five

days following the date on which the decision is rendered. The regional commis-

sioner, upon receipt of such application, must act pursuant to rules and regula-
tions within sixty days to reaffirm, modify or reverse his original decision and
shall inform the applicant in writing of the decision and the reasons therefor.

"(b) Any decision made pursuant to subsection (a) of this section which is

adverse to the applicant for reconsideration may be appealed by such individual

to the National Appeals Board by submitting a written notice of appeal not later

than forty-five days following the date on which such decision is rendered. The
National Appeals Board, upon receipt of the appellant's papers, must act pur-
suant to rules and regulations within sixty days to reaffirm, modify or reverse

the decision and shall inform the appellant in writing of the decision and the

reasons therefor.

"§ 4214. Original jurisdiction cases

"The regional commissioner, pursuant to rules and regulations, may designate
certain cases as original jurisdiction cases, and shall forward any case so desig-

nated to the National Appeals Board with his vote and the reasons therefor.

Decisions shall be based upon the concurrence of three votes with the appropriate

regional director and the members of the National Appeals Board each having
one vote. In case of a tie vote, and pursuant to rules and regulations, an addi-

tional vote shall be cast by one of the other regional commissioners. The indi-

vidual to whom such decision applies, or any commissioner who voted in the

decision, may appeal such decision directly to the Commission by submitting a

written notice of appeal not later than forty-five days following the date on
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which such decision is rendered. The Commission, by majority vote, shall decide

the appeal at its next regularly scheduled meeting and shall inform the individual

to which such decision applies to the decision and the reasons therefor.

"§ 4215. Applicability of the Administrative Procedure Act

"Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the provisions of sections 551

through r,59 and sections 701 through 706 of title •", United States Code, shall

not apply to the making of any determination, decision, or order made pursuant
to this chapter or any other law.''

Sp:c. 3. Sections 4200 and 4210 of title 18, United States Code, are renumbered
to appear as sections 4216 and 4217 of such title.

Sec. 4. Section 5002 of title 18. I'nited States Code, is repealed.

Sfx'. 5. Section 5005 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5005. Youth correction decisions

'The Commission and, where appropriate, its authorized representatives as

provided in sections 4203(c) and 4210(e) of this title, may grant or deny any
application or recommendation for conditional release, or modify or revolve any
order of conditional release, of any person sentenced pursuant to this chapter,

and perform such other duties and responsibilities as may be required by law.

Except as otherwise provided, decisions of the Commission shall be made in

accordance with the procedures set out in chapter 311 of this title."

Sec. 6. Section 5006 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§5006. Definitions

"As used in this chapter—
"
(a ) 'Commission' means the United States Parole Commission ;

"(b) 'Bureau' means the Bureau of Prisons
;

"(c) 'Director' means the Director of the Bureau of Pri-sons ;

"(d) 'youth offender" means a person under the age of twenty-two years
at the time of conviction :

"(e) 'committed youth offender' is one committed for treatment hereunder
to the custody of the Attorney General pursuant to sections 5010(b) and
5010(c) of this chapter;

"(f) 'treatment' means corrective and preventive guidance and training

designed to protect the public by correcting the antisocial tendencies of youth
offenders : and

"(g) 'conviction' means the judgment on a verdict or finding of guilty, a

iplea of guilty, or a plea of nolo contendere."
Sec. 7. Sections 5007, 5008, and 5009 of title 18, United States Code, are

repealed.
Sec S. Section 5014 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5014. Classification studies and reports

"The Director shall provide classification centers and agencies. Every com-
mitted youth offender shall first be sent to a classification center or agency. The
classification center or agency shall make a complete study of each committed

youth offender, including a mental and physical examination, to ascertain his

personal traits, his capabilities, pertinent circumstances of his school, family life,

any previous delinquency or criminal experience, and any mental or physical
defect or other factor contributing to his delinquency. In the absence of excep-
tional circumstances, such study shall be completed within a period of thirty days.
The agency shall promptly forward to the Director and to the Commission a

report of its findings with respect to the youth offender and its recommendations
as to his treatment. As soon as practicable after commitment, the youth offender

shall receive a parole interview."

Sec. 9. Section 5017(a) of title 18, United State Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"(a) The Commission may at any time after reasonable notice to the Director

release conditionally under supervision a committed youth offender when it

appears that such person has substantially observed the rule of the institution

to which he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person
will live and remain at liberty without violating tlie law, and if in the opinion
of the Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society.
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When, in the judgment of the Director, a ooniniitted youth offender should he

released conditionally under supervif-ion he shall so report and recommend to the

Commission."
8ec. 10. Section 5020 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5020. Apprehension of released oflfenders

"If, at any time before the unconditional discharge of a committed youth

offender, the Commission is of the opinion that such youth offender will he

benefited by further treatment in an institution or other facility the Commission

may direct his return to custody or if necessary may issue a warrant for the

apprehension and return to custody of such youthful offender and cause such

warrant to be executed by a United States probation ofBcer, an appointed

supervisory agent, a United States marshal, or any officer of a Federal penal or

correctional institution. Upon return to custody, such youth offender shall lie

given a revocation hearing by the Commission."
Sec. 11. Chapter 402 f»f title IS, United State Code, is amended by deleting the

term "division" whenever it appears therein and inserting in lieu thereof the

word "Commission."
Sec. 12. The table of sections for chapter 402 of title 18, i:nited States Code, is

amended to read as follows :

"See.
"5005. Youth correction decisions.
"5006. Definitions.
"5010. Sentence.
"5011. Treatment.
"5012. Certificate as to availability of facilities.

"501.3. Provisions of facilities.

"5014. Classification studies and reports.
"5015. Powers of Director as to placement of youth offenders.
"5016. Reports concerning offenders.
"5017. Release of youth offenders.
"501S. Revocation of Commission orders.
"5019. Supervision of released youth offenders.
"5020. Apprehension for released offenders.
"5021. Certificate setting aside conviction.
"5022. Applicable date.
"502,3. Relationship to Probation and Juvenile Delinquency Acts.
"5024. Where applicable.
"5025. Applicability to the District of Columbia.
"5026. Parole of other offenders not affected.".

Sec. 13. Section 5041 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5041. Parole

"A juvenile delinquent who has been committeed and who, by his conduct, has

given sfufReient evidence that he has reformed, may be released on parole at any
time under such conditions and regulations as the United State Parole Commis-
sion deems proper if it shall appear to the satisfaction of such Commission that

the juvenile has substantially observed the rules of the institution to which he is

confined, that there i.s a reasonable probability that such person will live and
remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion of the Com-
mission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society."

Sec. 14. Whenever in any of the laws of the United States or the District of

Columbia the term "United States Parole Board", or any other term referring

thereto, is used, such term or terms, on and after the expiration of the one-year

period following the date of the enactment of this Act. shall be deemed to refer

to the United States Parole Commission a.s established by the amendments made
by this Act.

Sec. 15. The parole of any person sentenced before June 20, 1932. shall be for

the remainder of the term or terms specified in his sentence, less good time allow-

ance provided by law.
Sec. 16. Section 5108(c) (7) of title 5, United States Code, is amended to read

as follows :

"(7) the Attorney General, without regard to any other provision of this

section, may place a total of ten positions of warden in the Bureau of

Prisons in GS-16".

Sec. 17. There is hereby authorized to be appropriated such sums as are neces-

sary to carry out the purposes of the amendments made by this Act.
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Sec. 18. (a) The foresoing amendments made by this Act shall take effect upon
the expiration of the thirty-day period foUowius the date of the enactment of

this Act.

(b) Upon the effective date of the amendments made by this Act, each person

holding office as a member of the Beard of Parole on the date immediately

preceding snch effective date shall be deemed to be a Commissioner and shall

be entitled to serve as such for the remainder of the term for which such person
was appointed as a member of such Board of Parole.

(c) All powers, duties, and functions of the aforementioned Board of Parole

shall, on and after such effective date, be deemed to be vested in the Commission,
and shall ,

on and after such date, be carried out by the Commission in accord-

ance with the provisions of applicable law, except that the Commission may make
such transitional rides as are necessary to be in effect for not to exceed one year
following such effective date.

Section-by-Section Analysis

Section 1. Short title, the Parole Commission Act.

Sec. 2. Chapter 311 of title IS, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

§4201. Definitions

As used in this chapter—•

(1) 'Commission' means the U.S. Parole Commission created by this Act;
(2) 'Commissioner' is any one of the nine members of the U.S. Parole Com-

mission
;

(3) 'Director' means the Director of the U.S. Bureau of Prisons ;

(4) 'Eligible person' means any Federal prisoner in the custody of the At-

torney General who is by law eligible for parole, including any individual whose
parole has been previously revoked

;

(5) 'Parolee' means any eligible person who has been released on parole or
deemed to have been released on parole under sections 4164 and 4204(d) of title

IS, United States Code, which provide for release as if on parole ; and
(6) 'Rules and regulations' means the rules and regulations made by the full

Commission. The rulemaking procedures § 553 of title 5, United States Code,
apply ; notice is required in the Federal Register, and interested parties shall

have an opportunity to comment. Guidelines promulgated by the full Commmis-
sion for parole decisionmaking are rules and regulations within the meaning of

this definition. Pickus et al v. U.S. Board of Parole, 507 F2d 1107 (1974).

§ 4202.

This section establishes a nine member U.S. Parole Commission as an inde-

pendent agency of the Department of Justice. No more than six members of the
Commission can be of the same political party. The Commission is attached to

the Department for administrative reasons but its decisionmaking machinery is

independent so as to guard against influence in case decisions. Commissioners
serve a term of six years under Presidential appointment by and with the advice
and consent of the Senate : the Chairman is appointed by the Attorney General.
The terms are staggered with the Commission members continuing to serve until
their successors have been qualified. The rate of pay for a member of the Com-
mission shall be the highest step of G.S. level 17.

§ 4203(a).

The Commission, acting by majority vote, has authority to: (1) grant or deny
parole to any Federal prisoner who is eligible for parole; (2) impose conditions
under which any prisoner would be released on parole; (3) modify or revoke the
parole of any individual who violated the conditions of his release; and (4) de-
cide on the period of reimprisonment for any individual whose parole has been
revoked, except that the length of such reimprisonment together with the time
served for the offense before parole was granted cannot be longer than the maxi-
mum length of the sentence ; where revocation is based on a conviction for a new
crime the Commission may also determine whether all or any part of the unex-
pired term shall run concurrently or consecutively with the new sentence.

(b) The full Commission will meet periodically as a policy making group to:
'1) establish procedural rules and guidelines for parole determinations so fhat
the administration of parole throughout the Federal system will be uniform;
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(2) set boundaries for the nation's five parole regions; and (3) act upon budget
recommendations, wliicli will be separate from other agencies of the Department
of Justice.

Records of the final vote of the commissioners on these policy making actions
will be available for public inspection.

(c) The Commission, acting by majority vote and pursuant to rules and regula-
tions, may (1) delegate any of its decisionmaking authority set out in subsection

(a) of this section to one or more commissioners, enabling the Commission to

allocate its decisionmaking vs'orkload to regional commissioners who are responsi-
ble for initial parole determinations and to the three commissioners on the
National Appeals Board who review these decisions on appeal; (2) delegate to

panels of hearing examiners certain Commission functions which are necessary
to provide regional commissioners with recommendations and a hearing record
on which to base their decisions, including conducting hearings and interviews,
taking sworn testimony, making findings of probable cause and issuing subpoenas
in parole revocation proceedings, and making a record of the pertinent evidence

presented at any such hearing or interview; and (3) review any delegated de-

cision, or delegate authority to the National Appeals Board to review decisions
made by a regional commissioner or commissioners.

(d) The Attorney General has an unqualified right to have the Commission
review any delegated decision or to reconsider any of its own decisions. The
Commission must act promptly on any such request and must give a written copy
of its decision to both the Attorney General and the individual whose case is

involved.

(e) When the full Commission is required to make decisions under the powers
and duties set out in this section, each member will have an equal voice in policy
or decision determinations, be provided with all necessary information, and have
one vote.

§ 4204.

(a) The Chairman, who functions as the chief executive officer of the Com-
mission, is authorized to: (1) preside at the i-egular meetings of the full Com-
mission as well as special meetings that are called npcm his own request or that
of any three commissioners

; (2) make all personnel decisions except that the full

Commission must confirm the appointment of any hearing examiner before his

probationary status as a first-year government employee terminates and each

regional commissioner will be responsible for the appointment and supervision
of certain clerical personnel employed in his region; (3) delegate work among
the commissioners and the various imits and employees of the Commission : ( 4 )

designate three commissioners to serve on a National Appellate Board, one of

which will also serve as Vice Chairman, and designate one commissioner to

serve in each of the parole regions as regional commissioner, except that in

making any such delegation the Chairman must consider certain pertinent
criteria and must obtain the concurrence of the Attorney General; (.5) carry out
fiscal responsibilities including preparation of appropriation requests and over-

sight of Commission expenditures; (6) serve as spokesman for the Commission
and make reports to Congress, the courts, and the Attorney General; (7) provide
for a research and training component in the Commission which will provide
studies and information concerning the parole process to public and private
agencies; (8) accept voluntary and uncompensated services of volunteers who
assist in the counseling and supervision of individuals who have been released on

parole; (9) utilize, on a cost reimbursable basis. Federal or State officials for
certain parole revocation proceedings; and (10) perform other necessary duties.

(b) The Chairman shall carry out his administrative duties and responsibilities
in line with the national parole policies promulgated by the Commission.

§ 4205.

(a) The statutory basis for eligibility for parole for Federal prisoners under
regular adult and special sentencing procedures remains unchanged. A Federal
prisoner is eligible for parole after serving one-third of his maximum term or
after serving fifteen years and there is no change in this from present language
of title 18.

(b) This subsection reenacts the existing provisions of law which enables
the court to; (1) direct that the prisoner be eligible for parole at any time up
to one-third of his maximum sentence, or (2) specify that the Commission shall

decide when the prisoner shall be considered for parole.
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(c) This subsection amends existing provisions of law whicli give the judge an

opportunity to request that the Bureau of Prisons conduct a study of the in-

dividual by reducing the time period allowed for such study from 90 to 60 days,
and preserves existing provisions of sentencing law.

(d) This subsection reenacts in part and amends in part the present law on

eligibility for parole of offenders with maximum sentences of one year or less.

For individuals whose maximum term or terms is six months or less, there is

no change from present law, under which the sentencing judge may set any
release date, including a split sentence under 18 U.S.C. 3651, of up to six months
incarceration and five years probation. For individuals sentenced to a maximum
term or terms of more than six months, but not more than one year, the sen-

tencing judge sets the date for release of the offender as if on parole, except if

the judge sets no release date, the individual would be released after having
served six months. Present law concerning good time reductions and surrender
of prisoners to other authorities is unchanged.

(e) This subsection provides a means by which the minimum term of any
Federal prisoner may be reduced to make the individual eligible for parole
consideration. The Bureau of Prisons would make a motion to the court which

imposed sentence, and the appropriate U.S. Attorney would have an opportunity
to oppose it.

(f) Present law and practice relating to existing powers of the sentencing
court and certain special provisions relating to eligibility for parole are

preserved.

§ 4206.

(a) The present statutory criteria utilized by the Federal parole authorities
in making their decision as to whether or not to grant parole are preseiwed.
Before granting parole, the Commission must decide that an individual who is

eligible for parole has substantially observed the rules of the institution in which
he is confined, there is a reasonable probability that he will not violate the law
on release, and his release is compatible with the general welfare of society.

(b) When an individual is about to become eligible for parole consideration
the Bureau of Prisons prepares a progress report which includes a summary of
his criminal and social background, his mental and physical health, his behavior
in the institution and his participation in institution programs. The Commission
is authorized to make such other investigations as it may deem appropriate.

(c) The Commission is authorized to seek information from other government
agencies such as the U.S. Probation Service and the Federal Bureau of Investiga-
tion. Upon request, these agencies will furnish available information, and, where
appropriate, their views and recommendations with respect to Commission
matters.

§ 4207.

(a) An individual released on parole remains in the legal custody of the

Attorney General but time spent on parole is not automatically credited toward
service of the maximum sentence.

(b) Every parolee shall have as a condition of parole that he cannot commit
any criminal offense during his parole. In imposing any other condition or condi-
tions of parole the Commission shall consider the following guidelines : ( 1 ) there
should be a reasonable relationship between the standards of behavior required
and the individual's circumstances; (2) deprivations of liberty which are neces-

sary for the protection of the public welfare may be imposed ; (3) the conditions
must be specific and not vague so that they can serve as a guide to behavior. In
addition, the parolee is given a written statement of his conditions.

(c) As provided under present law, the conditions of parole may require that
an individual reside in or participate in the program of a commimity treatment
center or an addict treatment program.

(d> An orderly procedure under which the Commission may suspend parole
supervision of parolees who no longer need it is established. (1) Systematic
evaluation for parole discharge begins after an individual has been under parole
supervision for two years, but discharge remains entirely in the discretion of
the Commission. (2) After five years an individual shall receive a hearing to
decide whether or not such supervision shall be terminated. Similar considera-
tion will be accorded at least every two years thereafter.
Parole discharge under this section is not the same as unconditional discharge

provided for youth offenders under the Federal Youth Corrections Act, Chapter
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402 of title 18, United States Code. The Youth Act provides a procedure for cer-

tain conditionally released youth offenders who achieve the status of uncondi-
tional discharge within a specific time period to earn a set aside of their

conviction.

§ 4208.

(a) Once an individual becomes eligible for parole he is entitled to a hearing
and additional rehearings at least once every two years, but he may waive any
hearing.

(b) When a commissioner or panel of hearing examiners, conducts an inter-
view of any individual who is eligible for parole, that individual will receive
written notice of the time of the interview and will be allowed to select a repre-
.sentative to assist him both before and during the interview. The Commission
is authorized to promulgate rules and regulations as to who a representative may
be. Persons appropriate for such position include members of the immediate
family, including common-law relations ; other relatives ;

friends ; ministers, or

prospective employers. The phrase, "Such rules shall not exclude attorneys as a
class", means that inmates may utilize retained counsel as representatives but
that any other provision for legal assistance is within the discretion of the
Commission.

(c) An eligible Federal prisoner shall have reasonable access to certain docu-
ments which are utilized by the Commission to determine parole eligibility.
Three categories of documents, however, may be excluded: (1) diagnostic opin-
ions such as psychological or psychiatric reports which if revealed to the indi-

vidual might cause a serious disruption in his program of rehabilitation; (2)
documents which contain information obtained on the basis of a pledge of con-

fidentiality by, or on behalf of, any public ofiicial who has substantial reason to
believe that revealing the information would jeopardize the life or limb of any
person ;

or (3) any other information which if revealed would jeopardize the life

or limb of any person. The Commission, the Bureau of Prisons, or any other
agency which deems a document excludable under subparagraphs (1), (2) or
(3) of this subsection shall be responsible for preparing a summary of such
document. In recognition of administrative time constraints, agencies, other than
the Commission or the Bui-eau of Prisons, submitting excludable documents
shall enclose summarized versions which meet the requirements of this subsec-
tion. The Bureau of Prisons recently implemented a procedure for disclosing
progress reports and, in some cases, psychiatric reports to Federal prisoners
awaiting parole consideration. BOP Policy Statement, No. 7200.13, "Disclosure
of Parole/Special Progress Reports", (1-28-74).

(d) The Commission is required to retain a record of all parole interviews.
Where an individual is denied parole or granted parole under conditions other
than those commonly imposed, he can obtain a copy of the transcript of the inter-
view record if he can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Commission that it is

necessary for purposes of administrative appeal. In any case in which the Com-
mission has transcribed the interview record for the purposes of any appellate
determination, the inmate, if he so requests, should be provided with a copy of
such transcript.

(e) The Commission has fifteen working days in which to notify the indi-

vidual in writing of the initial parole decision. Individuals denied parole or

granted parole under conditions other than those commonly imposed will receive
a written statement which spells out clearly the reasons for this adverse action.
The Committee does not wish to tie the hands of the Parole Commission by
specifying a particular format for such statement of reasons. A formal judicial
fact-finding is not required, but the inmate must receive an understandable ex-

planation of his parole status. For example, under the published rules of the
U.S. Board of Parole, 28 CFR 2.20 (1975 Vol. a.s amended), the Board utilizes

a set of guidelines for parole release determinations. The guidelines take into
consideration certain primary elements in the parole decision-making process
and indicate, for any individual combination thereof, the general range of time
to be served before release. This subsection would operate in the following
manner in relation to the present guidelines system. If a prisoner who has not
served the minimum period recommended by the guidelines is denied parole, he
should receive a statement containing his severity of offense rating, the cal-

culation of his salient factors score and an explanation of how such a determina-
tion utilizing the guidelines was reached. On the other hand, if a prisoner who
has served the time required to be eligible for parole under the guidelines is
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deuied parole and this denial results in delaying his release beyond the time

period recommended by the guidelines, he should receive not only the above
information but also a specific explanation of the factors which caused the Com-
mission to reach a determination outside the guidelines. Parole Form R-2,
Notice of Action Worksheet, (revised June 1974), which was implemented by the

U.S. Parole Board in the northeast region on April 1. 1974, provides the neces-

sary information. The Committee realizes that the.se guidelines and procedure-s

may change and re.serves the right of continuing oversight to ensure that in-

dividuals receiving adverse parole determinations are given an adequate explana-
tion of the reasons for such action.

The phrase, "parole conditions other than those commonly imposed", refers

to any condition imposed by the Commission on any order of parole release which
the individual wishes to contest on the grounds that such a deprivation of liberty
is unwarranted. Typically imposed proscriptions relating to violations of law,
u.se of narcotics, excessive use of alcohol, etc., would not fit this category.

§ 4209.

Existing law with respect to delivery of convicted aliens for deportation is

recodified under a new section number.

§4210.

This section, with certain modifications, codifies the recent Supreme Court

decisions, Morrissey v. Brewer, 408 U.S. 471 (1972) and Gagnon v. Scarpclli, 411
U.S. 788 (1973), relating to the revocation of parole under circumstances in

which there may be a need to ascertain facts concerning an alleged violation of
the conditions of such release on parole.

(a) Provides for issuing a warrant for the arrest of a parolee alleged to have
violated a condition of parole before the expiration of his maximum sentence.

(b) (1) This subsection provides revocation procedures for any alleged parole
violator who wishes to contest the revocation and whose revocation is not based
on a conviction for a new offense. (A) Such parolee is entitled to an immediate

hearing, near where the violation is alleged to have occurred or where the

parolee was arrested, to determine if there is probable cause to believe that he
has violated his parole conditions. The timing of the preliminary hearing is

particularly crucial
;
even if probable cause is not found, if a parolee is held in

jail awaiting his hearing for more than one or two days, his .lob will probably
be lost and his reintegration efforts badly disrupted. The Commission upon a

finding of probable cause shall make a written summary of the hearing which
states the reasons for the decision and the factors considered in the hearing. The
parolee shall be given a copy of this written summary a reasonable period of

time before his revocation hearing, unless the revocation hearing is held at the
same time as the probable cause hearing in which case he will be given a docu-
ment summarizing the joint proceedings within fifteen working days. (B) Upon
a finding of probable cause under subparagraph (A) of this subsection, the

alleged parole violator is entitled to a revocation hearing which also takes place
reasonably near the place where the alleged violation occurred or where the

parolee was arrested. In the words of Chief Justice Burger, "This hearing must
be the basis for more than determining probable cause ; it must lead to a final

evaluation of any contested relevant facts and consideration of whether the facts

as determined warrant revocation. The parolee must have an opportunity to be
heard and to show, if he can, that he did not violate the conditions, or. if he did.

that circumstances in mitigation suggest the violation does not warrant revoca-
tion." 471 U.S. 488 (1972). While the revocation hearing must be held within

sixty days of the preliminary hearing held pursuant to subparagraph (A), it

may be held at the same time.

(2) In any hearing held pursuant to subparagraph (1)(A) or (B) of this

subsection, the alleged parole violator is entitled to the following procedures :

(A) notice of the violations of parole and the time, place, and purposes of the
scheduled hearings ; (B) the right to appear and testify and to present witnesses
and documentary evidence on his own behalf; (C) the right to be represented by
retained counsel or if he is unable to retain counsel, counsel may be provided
pursuant to the Criminal Justice Act (18 U.S.C. 3006A) and (D) the right to be

appri.sed of evidence against him and the qualified right to confront and cross-

examine adverse witnesses. This subparagraph would permit an inmate who so

requests to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses unless the hearing
officer designated by the Commission makes a determination that there is good
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cause for not allowing confrontation. This determination requires the hearing-

officer to balance the parolee's need to confront his accusers in view of the par-

ticular facts and circumstances of his case against factors, which include but are

not necessarily limited to, the probability and severity of either the risk of

harm to the informant or the danger that the rights of someone in any pending
criminal prosecution would be jeopardized. The Commission, where aM^ropriate,

may subpoena adverse witnesses but only for the purposes set out in this

subparagraph.
( c ) ( 1 ) Any parolee who is convicted of a new offense and sentenced to impris-

onment in any Federal, State or local correctional facility and who has a parole
revocation detainer lodged against him at such institution, shall receive an in-

stitutional revocation hearing within one hundred and eighty days of the place-

ment of such detainer, or upon his release, wliichever comes tirst. ,

(2) Any alleged parole violator who waives any of his hearing rights under
subsection (b), shall receive an institutional revocation hearing within three

months of recommitment.
(3) Hearings held under this subsection shall be conducted by the Commission.

The alleged parole violator will have notice of the hearing and be allowed to

appear and testify in his own behalf and to select a representative as provided
in S 420S(b) (2), to aid him in his appearance.

(d) The Commission after any revocation hearing held under this section,

may dismiss the warrant or take any other action which it deems appropriate in

accordance with the provisions of § 4212 of this chapter. In any case in which

parole is modified or revoked pursuant to a hearing under this section, the

Commission shall provide a written summary of the hearing which states the

reasons for the adverse action and indicates the evidence considered and relied

upon. It is important to remember that this is not a formal judicial determination.

In Morrissey the Court observed, "no interest would !>e served by formalism in

this process; infonnality will not lessen the utility of this inquiry in reducing
the risk of error." 408 U.S.C. 487 (1972). The alleged violator shall receive a

ct)py of this document.
( e) To facilitate speedy parole revocation determinations, the Commission may

delegate authority to State or Federal officials to conduct hearings pursuant to

this section. The' Commission would promulgate regulations setting out appro-

priate categories of government officials to be used in this capacity such as U.S.

magistrates, administrative law judges and officials of State parole authorities,

etc.

§4211.

E]xisting law with respect to the enumeration of individuals entitled to serve

parole revocation warrants is recodified under a new section number.

§4212.

If the parole revocation warrant is not dismissed, the range of possible re-

sponses by the Commission to a parolee who has been found to have violated the

conditions of his parole include: (1) a reprimand; (2) an alteration of parole

conditions; (3) referral to a half-way house or other residential facility for all

or part of the remainder of the original sentence; (4) formal revocation of

parole or release as if on parole; or (5) any other action deemed necessary for

the purposes of successful rehabilitation of the parole violator, or which pro-

motes the ends of justice.
In taking any action under this section, the Commission shall take into con-

sideration whether or not the parolee has been convicted of a new criminal

offense or whether such action is warranted by either the frequency or serious-

ness of the parolee's violation of any other condition or conditions of his parole.

§ 4213.

Initial decisions involving a grant or denial of parole, the imposition of un-

usual parole conditions, denial of parole discharge after five or more years of

continuous parole supervision, or the modification or revocation of parole, are

made by regional commissioners in accordance with rules and regulations pro-

mulgated by the full Commission. The eligible person or parolee adversely af-

fected by any such decision is entitled, by filing a timely application, to have the

regional commissioner reconsider the decision. The regional commissioner, in ac-

cordance with rules and regulations promulgated by the full Commission, must
act on the application within sixty days and shall notify the applicant of the

reconsidered decision and the i-easons therefore.
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(b) If the decision is afllrmed by the regional commissioner or is in some other

way still adverse to the applicant, he may take his case to the three member
National Appeals Board. In accordance with the same time and notice require-
ments as provided in subsection (b), this final administrative appeal will be
decided by the majority vote of the three members.

§ 4214.

This section sets out the review procedure for parole determinations in which
original jurisdiction is retained by the Commission. The initial decision is made
by tlie regional commissioner, the members of the National Appeals Board, and,
in the event of a tie vote, an additional regional commissioner. The eligible per-
son or parolee adversely affected by this decision, or any commissioner who tooli:

part in the decision, may appeal the decision within forty-five days to the full

Commission whicli shall decide the case at its next quarterly meeting.

§ 4215.

Except where this statute provides for the application of section 553 of title 5,

United States Code, the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act shall not

apply to the making of any determination, decision, or order of the United States
Parole Commission.

Sec. 3. Section 4209, relating to the application of the Federal Youth Correc-
tions Act, and Section 4210, relating to Canal Zone warrants, are reenacted under
newsection numbers.

Sec. 4. Section 5002 of title IS, United States Code, is replaced.
Sec. 5. Section 5005 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to make pro-

cedures for consideration of individuals sentenced under the Youth Corrections
Act an integral part of the Commission's responsibilities. Decisions regarding
parole of youthful offenders will be made in the manner prescribed for all other
eligible offenders, with the exception of certain provisions relating to uncondi-
tional discharge of youth offenders.

Sec. 6. Section 5006 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to reflect the

change in name from Youth Division to U.S. Parole Commission.
Sec. 7. Sections 5007, 5<X)8, 5009 of title 18. United States Code, which conflict

with the provisions of Chapter 311 of title 18, relating to the organization and
operation of the U.S. Parole Commission, are repealed.
Sec 8. Section 5014 of title 18. United States Code, is amended to provide

that parole interviews for youth offenders are conducted in the same manner as
prescribed for other eligible offenders.
Sec 9. Section 5017(a) of title 18, United States Code, is amended to provide

for parallel parole release criteria for all offenders.
Sec. 10. Section 5020 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to provide

that parole revocations for youth offenders are conducted in the same manner as
prescribed for other parolees.
Sec 11. Chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to reflect the

change in name from Youth Division to U.S. Parole Commission.
Sec 12. Amends the Table of Sections of Chapter 402 of title 18, United States

Code.
Sec 13. Section 5041 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to provide for

parallel parole release criteria for all offenders.
Sec 14. This section provides that wherever the term United States Parole

Board is used in any law it shall be replaced with the term U.S. Parole
Commission.
Sec 15. Protects the eligibility of the one prisoner remaining in the Federal

system who was sentenced prior to June 29, 1932, in order to preserve the possi-
bility that he may be released under applicable provisions of law.

Sec. 16. Section 5108(c)(7) of title 5, United States Code, is amended to
delete from the control of the Attorney General the salary of members of the
U.S. Parole Commission which shall be set l)v the Congress under the provisions
of Section 4202 of title 18, United States Code.
Sec 17. Authorizes the appropriation of such sums as are necessary to carry

out the purposes of this Act.
Sec. 18. (a) This legislation would take effect ninety days following

enactment.

(b) All members of the Board of Parole on the effective date of this legisla-
tion would become commissioners, entitled to serve for the remainder of the
terms for which they were appointed as members of the Board of Parole.
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(c) All powers, duties and functions of the Board of Parole would he trans-

ferred to the U.S. Parole Commission on or after the effective date. The U.S.

Parole Commission may make such transitional rules as are necessary for a

period of one year following the effective date.

Senator Hruska. Mr. Chairman, I would like to take this oppor-

tunity to applaud j^our efforts in pursuing legislation to reform the

Federal parole system. The subcommittee's diligent work during the

past few years is clearly evidenced by the measure we now have
before us.

As you know, ]Mr. Chairman, a nearly identical version of this

measure was pending before the Judiciary Committee at the close of

the 93rd Congress. The bill represents the labors of not only the sub-

committee, but also representatives of the Department of Justice and
members of the Board of Parole.

]Many issues regarding parole reform produced differing opinions
as to administration, authority, and other aspects of the decisionmak-

ing process of the Board of Parole. But these differences have been,

in large part, resolved. These efforts for an acceptable bill also reflect

the fa^t that the Board of Parole has undertaken changes by way of

administrative regulation to alter the sti-ucture and operation of the

Board. This bill merely codifies most of these changes.
As I noted in my remarks on the introduction of S. 1109 last month,

its provisions are substantially incorporated into S. 1, the bill which
seeks to revise the entire Federal criminal code. I believe, however,
that because of the importance and need for reform and moderniza-
tion of our Federal parole system, S. 1109 merits our separate con-

sideration. In addition, views on the use of parole have changed

significantly in recent years, and I think it is good that the Congress
undertake efforts to keep pace with these views.

Mr. Chairman, this measure is an excellent step in that direction.

I do not necessarily agree with each and every one of its provisions. I

recognize that further discussion, debate, and. perhaps, amendments in

the Judiciary Connnittee, or even on the Senate floor, may be re-

quired. In any case, it is an important aspect of our Federal criminal

justice system. It deserves consideration by this subcommittee and the

Congress. I look forward to the measure's processing and ultimate

enactment.
~Mv. Chairman, I would also like to extend a personal welcome to

our first witness this afternoon, JNIr. Maurice Sigler, Chairman of the

Board of Parole. ]\Ir. Sigler is a A^eteran of the Federal corrections

system and served from 1959 to 1971 in the corrections department of

my home State of Nebraska. Mr. Sigler, we look forward to your
testimony on S. 1109.

Senator Burdick. I call our witness. Chairman Maurice H. Sigler
of the U.S. Board of Parole, accompanied by Hugh Durham, Legis-
lative Counsel, Office of Legislative Affairs, Department of Justice.

STATEMENT OF MAURICE H. SIGLER, CHAIRMAN, U.S. BOARD OF

PAROLE; ACCOMPANIED BY HUGH M. DURHAM, LEGISLATIVE

COUNSEL

Senator Burdick. "Welcome to the committee, gentlemen.
]Mr. Sigler. Thank you.
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]\[i'. Chaiinian. it is a pleasure to appear again before this siibcoin-

niittoe on the subject of parole and in particular on the important bill

which this subcommittee had developed—S. 1109, the proposed
'"Parole Commission Act."

As you know, we have woi-ked closely with you and your subcom-
mittee during the past several years. We have benefited from your
wise counsel and with your cooperation have developed new regula-
tions and procedures under which the Board operates today. I believe

that you and the subcommittee and we, the Board of Parole, can be

jointly proud of the progress that has been made.

Operation of the Board of Parole under guidelines and procedural
regulations has now been going on for more than li^ years, and during
this period we have made some changes in our operation, and we have
learned a great deal about the operation of a parole system under
these regulations, and this process has been very beneficial l)ecause

today we are appearing in support of legislation that is much stronger
as a result of this experience.

S. 1109 is a logical culmination of these efforts. For the most part
it would put into statutory law the regulations and procedures which
have been adopted administratively and now pertain. In general we,
the Board of Parole, and the Department of Justice support this bill.

As with any measure of this complexity, however, there are some
individual provisions upon wdiich we differ and a few changes which
w'e think would improve the legislation.

Before discussing the specifics of the bill I would like to clarify

my role today. I appearing both as spokesman for the Board of

Parole and as spokesman for the Department of Justice. There is a

distinction. "We have indicated in testimony before your subcommittee
in the past

—and it is still true—the Board of Parole is essentially
an independent entity.
A succession of Attorney Generals have recognized this parole and

the Department on the provisions of S. 1109 coincide. I will carefully

point out any differences.

APPOIXTMEXT OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION

In the formulation of S. 1109 considerable discussion was had con-

cerning the pros and cons of various methods of appointing the mem-
bers of the Parole Commission and of assigning the Commissioners
to the several positions, that is to particular regions or to the National

Appeals Board. The bill provides that the Commissioners shall be

appointed by the President, by and with the advice and consent of the

Senate, and that the Chairman of the Commission shall designate these

Commissioners to serve on the National Appeals Board and one Com-
missioner to serve as RegTonal Commissioner in each region.
The assignments in each case by the chairman shall not take effect

unless concurred in by the Attorney General. We believe these pro-
visions strike a proper balance between the need for some administra-
tive flexibility and protection against arbitrary or improper assign-
ment by a chairman. Both the Department and the majority of the

Board support these provisions.
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One Board member recommended a more specific appointment

authority whereunder the Commissioners of the National Appeals
Board would be appointed by the President directly to this Board.

The ar2:uments in favor of this arrangement are that it would
enhance the status of the National Appeals Board and safeguard its

independence.
We believe, however, that the requirement for concurrence by the

Attorney General in any assignment is adequate protection and that

the flexibility of the bill's provisions is desirable.

POWER OP HEARING EXAMINERS

Section 4203(c) (1-2) of the bill has the effect of reserving the

power to grant or deny parole exclusively to parole Commissioners.

Under present Board regulations the majority of cases are decided by
two-man panels of hearing examiners—GS-14's—subject to screening
and possible reconsideration by tlie regional member. The Board

woulcl like to continue the current flexible procedure, but the bill will

prevent it.

The following considerations support letting hearing examiners

grant or deny parole:
One: This procedure has been utilized since October 1973, is con-

sistent with the recommendations of the National Advisory Commis-
sion on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, and has in practice
worked extremely well.

Tw^o : Each panel decision is screened for the regional member by
an administrative hearing examiner and certain types of decision,

namely decisions above or below the guidelines or cases of major vio-

lence are routinely referred to the regional member for review.

The Kegional member on his own motion may review any panel
decision and may refer any such decision with his recommendation
and vot-e for reconsideration to the members of the National Appeals
Board (28 CRF 2.24) . You will find that in the citation.

Three : If a regional member had the responsibility for reviewing
each and every case in toto, 5,000 cases per region per year would pre-
sent an impossible workload.
Four: Certain cases are now deemed original jurisdiction cases—

cases involving national security, unusual public interest or attention,

organized criminal activity, or long term sentences—and require the

concurrence of 3 out of 5 Board members.
On the other hand, it is recognized that there is a certain incon-

gruity in permitting hearing examiners to take final action in any
parole case. While the Department supports the Board's view, the De-

partment also sees a certain validity in the arguments that the Re-

gional Commissioner should be aware of and responsible for parole
action in his region and thus should have a positive role in each case.

The Department feels that matter needs furtlier attention.

POWER or THE ATTORNEY GENERAL TO REQUIRE
RECONSIDERATION OF A CASE

Section 4203(d) requires the Commission upon the request of the

Attorney General to review any parole decision and by majority vote
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reaffirm, modify or reverse the decision. All members of the Board

view this requirement as being inconsistent with the concept ot an

independent commission. ,

The Department does not agree with the Board on this issue, ilie

Department feels that the parole procedures are loaded with safe-

guards for the individual, but without section 4203(d) would ffid to

provide any adequate means of requiring further consideration of de-

cisions in favor of the individual which may have been improvidently

rendered. . i
•

i
• i

The Department does not view the provision as violating the inde-

pendence of the commission as the commission would have express

authority to reaffirm its prior action if it so chose.

Release on parole and conditions of parole :

Section 4206(a) and 4207 related to the standards for granting pa-

role and for setting the conditions of release. These sections are con-

sistent with existing law and practice and neither the Board nor the

Department has any objection to them.

I sliould note, however, that the proposed revision of the Federal

Criminal Code will result in basic changes in the statutory provisions

concerning sentencing philosophy and structure. When such changes
are made, they will, of course, necessitate the adoption of standards

for parole and for setting conditions of release that are consistent with

tlie new sentencing standards.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

There are also a few minor items upon which we have some
recommendations.

(a) A majority of the board favors reducing the time limit for fil-

ing appeals from the 45 days provided in section 4213 to the present
30 days which is working well.

(b) The Board also feels that mandatory reinterviews every 2 years

(sec. 4208) instead of after the present 3 years would create unneces-

sary hearings and promote tension among inmates—particularly in

long term cases. And that was not desirable.

(c) The Board opposes the provision in section 4214 that would

pemiit a single dissenting commissioner to trigger a full commission
review of an original jurisdiction case decision. The Board believes

this provision would cause needless rehearings. The Department, how-

ever, does not agree. The Department believes that since the individual
is given the power to require rehearing in such cases, balanced protec-
tion against ill considered action demands that a similar power be

given to the commissioners.

(d) The Board questions the need for the mechanism in section

4205(e) for reducing the minimum time to be served and believes it

would weaken, the finality of sentences. The Department, however,
contemplates that the mechanism would only be used in special, deserv-

ing cases and consequently feels this flexibility is desirable.

(e) The Board does not agree to the desirability of mandatory hear-

ings on parole discharges (sec. 42' 7(d) (2)) at 5 years and every 2

years thereafter, but concurs in the principle of annual discharge
review.
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In conclusion, since I have only alluded to the various provisions of

S. 1109 upon which we have some question or problem, it may seem
that we have great troubles with the measure. That is not at all true.

In the interest of time and orderly presentation, I did not dwell on
the many, many issues in this bill upon which we are in complete
agreement.

In conclusion, we believe S. 1109 is in general and in most respects
an outstanding step forward in parole legislation. It is a timely, needed
measure and one which we sti'ongly support. We would like to work
with you and the subcommittee in resolving the few clifliculties which
we have and which I have discussed briefly today.

I Avould now be happy to attempt to answer any questions which you
may have.

Senator Burdick. Senator Hruska ?

Senator Hruska. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It is good to see Mr. Sigler. He is well known in the Federal correc-

tions world and also in the Nebraska corrections field, having served

there for a number of years as director of our corrections department
there.

I don't know that I have any questions at this time. I will defer to

the chairman and my colleagues here.

Senator Burdick. The Senator from the great State of Virginia ?

Senator Scott. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is good to be on the

subcommittee with my friend, Senator Burdick, and to be the ranking
member of tliis subcommittee. I look forward to working with the

chairman.
I have not had an opportunity to review this proposal. T noticed

the names of the various sponsors, including the chairman of this sub-

committee, the ranking member of the full committee, Mr. Hruska.
It must be a good bill, but perhaps you could tell me the remarks that

you have made, are they your own remarks as chairman of the board,
are they the Department's views, are they the administration's views?

ISIr. Sigler. There are two views there. Senator.

The ones I designated as the Department's are the Department's
position on something on which we differ. When I address myself to

representing the Board of Parole, that is what I am doing.

Everything that is stated in here that is supported by the Board of

Parole is by majority vote. In all but about two or three instances the

votes were unanimous from the standpoint of the Board of Parole. So
it is a Board of Parole statement.

Senator Scott. I heard your comment that I interpreted to mean
tliat we want to enact into law administrative practices, or some activi-

ties that were carried out through Executive Order.
Is that correct ?

]Mr. Sigler. Through the administrative order of the Attorney
General, that is how we are now operating, and I believe everything
that pertains to the Government should be statutory. That is my belief.

That is the reason I support this.

Most of this we are doing exactly as it is called for now.
Mr. Scott. j\Iaybe the skeleton ought to be legislated, and perhaps

the details could be filled in by administrative regulation.
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Mr. SiGLER. May I say you can get too many details, but I think

the skeleton should be there.

Senator Scott. I am quite in agreement about too many regulations.

What substantive changes does this make in existing practice, without

asking you to review your whole testimony ?

Mr. SiGLER. The most important one as called for in the bill, in my
view, is the one pertaining to the hearing examiners, wherein the bill

says we must have—that the board nnist sign off—they don't say that,

but actually that is what it means, that the Board must act on all the

cases, and inay I say to you that if that should happen, we have to have

more Parole Board members, because one Parole Board member, or

two acting in concert, cannot act 5,000 cases a year intelligently.

Senator Scott. Are you saying this bill indicates the Board must

act on all cases?

Mr. SiGLER. Yes, sir
;
that is the way the bill reads.

Senator Scott. Would you suggest it be deleted ?

]Mr. SiGLER. I am suggesting this be deleted and that we do what we
do today. I think the Board should be involved in this. I think the

Board should have the responsibility and authority to review any
cases, but

Senator Scott. How many members of the Board are there?

Mr. SiGLER. Eight.
Senator Scott. Would it be feasible to have one member of t]ie Board

to review every case and then if he saw fit, then that the entire board

could look at it ? Could something of that nature be worked out, rather

than just filing the decision of the hearing officer ?

Mr. SiGLER. Sir, I don't think it is possible, because there is just too

much work for that. I don't believe that one man can intelligently re-

view over 30 cases a day.
Senator Scott. How many hearing officers do you have ?

Mr. SiGLER. Twenty-eight at this time, and we work in pairs.
Senator Scott. And you have an eight-man board ?

Mr. SiGLER. Yes, sir.

Senator Scott. Couldn't one of the men at least make a cursory ex-

amination of each one, not hold hearings, not do everything that the

hearing officer did, but couldn't you divide it up some way so that one
of them could at least look at it, and if he felt that it was routine, then
that would be the end of it ?

But on the other hand, if something sticks out that didnt seem cor-

rect, then he could look at it deeper ? I am asking
Mr. SiGLER. Yes.

Senator Scott [continuing]. Because you are expert in this field and
I am not. Isn't there a compromise here somewhere ?

Mr. SiGLER. Well, there could be a compromise by hiring more

people, first, sir, let me say three of us are in Washington, and we act

as an appellate group.
In the bill which we believe is right, we have a two-level appeal sys-

tem and three of us in Washington, two other members and myself, act

as an appellate group. We would not vote on these cases. Only the

people in the regions do. There are five regions, and we have one

Board member in each region as the Regional Director.

72-524—76 7
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We will have upward of 25,000 decisions made this year on the

Parole Board, and I don't believe that one man could honestly tell

you that he could do that. I believe that there should be safeguards
there.

I think that the Regional Director, the Board member, should not

only have the authority, but the responsibility of reviewing certain

types of cases. Maybe those cases that go below the guidelines or those

above or rough cases something over 15 years, we w^ill say, cases with

a long time.

Right now in our procedure, there are certain types of cases wdiere

3 members out of 5 must vote on the cases. That is organized crime,
terms of over 45 years, public interest cases, and national safety.
Those are the four types. We must do that now.

Senator Scott. Mr. Sigler, it seems to me that every executive, in

every field, does review to some extent the work of his sulx>rdinates,
and it would seem that some compromise, Mr. Chairman, might be

worked out, but again I haven't read the bill, and perhaps I should not

comment further.

Mr. Sigler. I hope I made myself clear, then. I don't know whether

T have or not.

Senator Scott. I think so. It just seems to me curbstone that the

pai'ole officer should not have the final decision, and that somewhere

along the line a member of the parole board ought to look at his

decision, possibly not in a great depth.
"N'Vlien I sign my mail, I look at what the people in the office are

doing, and some of them I have more confidence in than others, and
some of them I look at in more detail. I think that is true of every-
one that reviews another person's actions.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Burdick. Mr. Sigler, maybe there is an area for agreement

here by separating types of cases, and the Board could give more
attention to some of the harder cases. There are many, many routine

cases, I assume, where there is no need for anybody to look at but the

hearing examiner.
Mr. Sigler. Most of our sentences are between 6 months and 5 j'ears,

and they don't pertain to dangerous people. lA-t this point, we don't

liave it written into the regulations exactly how a Regional Director

should handle the business, but I am well aware of the way that they
do do it.

They don't do it all alike. We have one man, regardless of the tyj^e

of case it is, one Regional Director, if it has 10 years or more, he

wants to look at it. If it is a case involving violence, regardless of

the length of sentence, he wants to look at it, and then we have others

that are really interested in narcotics, for example, because, of the

problems in that area today, and so they don't all work alike but they
all look at the cases that they believe should come to the attention

and action of the Regional Director or Parole Commission.
Senator Burdick. The hearing examiners actually work within the

confines of the guidelines before they act, too, do they not?

Mr. Sigler. I beg your pardon ?

Senator Burdick. The hearing examiners must operate within cer-

tain guidelines ?
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]Mr. SiGLER. They must do that, or if they go above or below the

guidelines, they must make a written statement why they do so. We
don't vote on these guidelines from a gut-level thing. We must docu-

ment our reasons.

Senator Buedick. Eight here is one of the areas of disagreement
that has to be resolved somehow.
Mr. SiGLER. Yes, sir, this is one we have to resolve.

Senator Burdick. Could you tell the subcommittee more about the

role of hearing examiners? "Wliat safeguard would there be against

premature release of sophisticated offenders? Would you intend to

give them more authority than they have now ?

Mr. SiGLER. The Eegional Directors ?

Senator Burdick. The examiners.

Mr. SiGLER. Xo, sir, we don't want to give them any more than they
have now. We would recommend they continue in exactly the same
manner as they are in now.

Senator Burdick. This would be helpful to the subcommittee if

you could tell us more about the relationship of Attorney General

to the Parole Board. I would think the Attorney General is free to

make information available on the individual available to the Board,
because this recently has been done.

Does this affect your view with respect to the review by the At-

torney General?
"Sir. SiGLER. I agree, not that the Attorney General in all cases

couldn't make a better decision than we can, but we have had a num-
ber—I can illustrate my feeling this way—in the last 2 or o years,
we had had more than the usual number of notorious cases, cases that

might involve influential people, and I think this would be—I think

it would be a dangerous thing for the Attorney General to be even

asked to make recommendations in these areas, because the media,

especially, over the past several months or a year and a half, have

called ine on many, many occasions: "What did the Attorney Gen-
eral have to say about that ?"

Is the Department of Justice involved in the decision you have

made in this case? Has the "\^niite House contacted you? And I can

tell this Board under oath that in no instance was this ever done,

which I think helps maintain the integrity of the whole system, and
T wouldn't want anybody to think here that I am not suggesting that

any Attorney General would not be as honest as I hope I am, but

the point of the thing is that he is a powerful figure, and if he sug-

gested to the Chairman of a Parole Board, whoever that Chairman

might be, "that you take this back before your Board and look at

it again. You have made your decision, but I want you to look at it

again. You don't have to change it," but he is telling us in his judg-
ment he is pretty certain something is wrong.

T am sure you would find eight members—some parole lx)ards,

maybe all of ours today
—if they had just voted on this case, they

would vote the same way, but there are some who would listen to

the Attorney General, and he wants a change made here, or he would
not have asked us to do it.

That is our position, sir, on this.

Senator Scott. Mr. Chairman, would you yield briefly ?
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Senator Burdick. Yes.

Senator Scott. I notice on page 3 of the bill where it states you are

an independent agency of the Department of Justice, and then the

comment that the witness just made relating to independence. Now
is this agency to be within the Department of Justice? Frankly, I

don't share the concern of the witness.

I think we might be talking about two different things. The At-

torney General is the Chief Executive officer of the Dej^artment of

Justice, and as such, he might on some occasion make a political
decision.

He might make a decision on its merits. That is possible, too, you
know. In fact I would hope that all decisions would be made on their

merits. If the President did somehow intervene, he is the Chief
Executive officer of the country, elected by the people. I think we are

wrong, Mr. Chairman, when we suggest something sinister in the

Department of Justice when the Attorney General talks with a

subordinate officer.

I talk with my staff, and they are under me. The chairman in a

sense is over the committee here, and we have lines of autliority all the

way along. I believe we are overreacting perhaps to Watergate or

something like that, when we assume that if the Attorney General

talks with someone under him within the Department of Justice that

there is something wrong.
I don't see a thing wrong with it, unless the subject matter or the

actions are such that they happen to be wrong. He is the chief execu-

tive. Isn't that correct ?

Mr. SicLER. Oh, yes, and talking with us is one thing, but telling
us to open the case and do it over is quite another in our view, and

Senator Scott. Well, now are you saying that you feel that even

though you are under the Department of Justice, that whatever you
decide is final, and that the Attorney General would have no right to

review anything that you do ?

Mr. SiGLER. Oh, no, I am not saying that, because any citizen could
do that. I am not saying that. But the Board of Parole has always
been referred to and felt that they are an independent agency.

Senator Scott. Sort of quasi] udicial.

Mr. SiGLER. That is right. I had a call this morning on a case. The
question was asked me : "How many Members of Congress contacted

you in this decision ?"

They didn't like our decision, and I could say : "Nobody contacted
us."

There may be an error in the decision we made, but we were not
influenced to make the decision, or in making our decision.

Senator Scott. Do you see something wrong with a Member of Con-
gress contacting you about something that is under your jurisdiction?
Mr. SiGLER. Not at all. I have about 300 letters a month from the

Congress, and every one of them is answered.
Senator Scott. It is one thing for them to make an inquiry, and

another thing for them to try to tell you what to do; isn't it?
Mr. SiGLER. I believe that is correct. I believe I would agree with

that. I think every Member of Congress who has written our office,
and maybe you, sir, got a response back immediately with the informa-
tion requested.
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Senator Scorr. I always put in a phrase: "In accordance with your

rules and regulations." Mr. Chairman, I am a little concerned with the

suo-gestion that there may be something wrong with the Attorney

General contacting a subordinate officer, because it just seems to me

that tlie President as Cliief Executive officer of the country, re-

gardless of his party or who he is at all, is responsible for the opera-

Son of the entire executive branch of Government.

The Attorney General under the President is responsible for the

operation of the entire Department of Justice, whether it be the

Parole Board, whether it be the FBI, the Division of Lands and

Natural Resources or ^Yhatever it happens to be. Good government, I

believe, requires these lines to be observed.

So that is why I asked the chairman if I could intercede briefly

here.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Burdick. Well, this is another difference in the bill, a differ-

ence between you and the Attorney General.

Mr. SiGLER. May I add just one more sentence, sir? The only thing

is, we are not concerned about the Attorney General as a man. We are

concerned about the system of asking us to reopen cases. That is our

concern.

Senator Burdick. To repeat what you said on page 5 of your
statement :

Section 403(d) requires the Commission upon the request of the Attorney
General to review any parole decisions and by majority vote, reaffirm, modify
or reverse the decision.

All members of the board view this requirement as being inconsistent with

the concept of an independent commission.

Do I understand again that you support 4203(d) ?

Mr. SiGLER, Yes, sir : we are.

Senator Burdick. Even though the Board has the right to reaffirm

the original decision ?

INIr. SiGLER. Well, Mr. Chairman, this right, and I suppose if we were
as strong as we should be, none of us would ever submit to what might
be referred to as pressure. I don't know whether we would ever get a
Board of Parole or any commission that would be that strong. The
Board unanimous opinion is that they have to stand on their own
decisions and take the responsibility for any errors in there that they
might make, but they should not make them at the suggestion of any-
body else.

That was said that way by another member of the Board.
Senator Scott. INIr. Sigler, might you not ever ask one of your asso-

ciates, "Tom, do you really believe that is right ?" Would there be some-

thing wrong with you as the chairman if one of the members of the
Board said something, and for you to say "Tom, do you think that is

right?"
You would be asking Tom to reconsider. You are the Chairman.
IMr. Sigler. Senator Scott, all the policy of the Board is made by all

members of the Board, and it is thrashed out and voted on before it

is put in our policy manual, and we argue it out
; yes. sir.

We do that in all instances. Now if one—T want to sav it this way.
Two members of the Board vote on a case, and unless I am involved
in the decision, unless I have new information that they don't have, I
do not get in it.
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I would like to say this, thou2:h. under the i)resent procedures, the

Attorney General may request the board to reconsider. He may not
mandate it. This is it, you see.

Senator Burdick. My point, the point I am making, is this : That
all the Attorney General has under this section is the power to request
review. He can't mandate your action. You can reaffirm what you did
before.

INIr. Skiler. Yes.
Senator Burdick. Isn't that compatible with the independent

commission ?

Mr. SiGLER. I don't think this item is tlie most world-shaking thing
in the bill, but I do believe we should tell this committee, and I have
been so instructed by the Board of Parole, to give these views, and to

do it strongly, and I happen to agree with them—you know, I am not
noAv ])aeking off. This happens to be our view, and, again, we have been

wrong.
I think we were wrong in this case yesterday.
Senator Burdick. INIr. Durham, would you like to add something?
INIr. Durham. Speaking for the Department, I think there is room

on this point for some compromise. I don't think the Department is

insisting on the language as it is presently in the bill. I think the main

thing the Department wants to insure is that there is an opportunity
after a decision has been made and appealed, if there is information

that we think has not been considered and so forth, that it can be

brought to the proper attention of the board, and the remedial action

taken if such is the case.

I don't think we are wedded to any particular language giving a

right to the Attorney General to do this or do that, but really it is to

sort of perpetuate the system as it now is, but do it in a statutory
format.

Senator Bu-rdick. Why can't you two sit down and draft some lan-

guage, then ?

Mr. Durham. I am sure we can, working with the staff.

]Mr. SiGLER. I am sure we can.

Senator Hruska Would the chairman yield on this point? Isn't

that section which tlie.y are considering now comparable to the right
of a litigant in a court," after judgment has been rendered by the court,

to ask for a rehearing and state the reasons why ; that the board in his

opinion did not stress this enough, or overlooked this ?

The litigant does not make a request that flows therefrom, but simply
asks to reconsider or review in the light of something that may have

escaped their attention or wasn't properly emphasized. In that sense,

can that section be considered an invasion of the Board as an independ-
ent agency?

INIr. Dtoham. Senator, it didn't bother the Department. It bothered

the Board.
Senator Hruska. I am a-ddressing the point to both of you.
INIr. Durha:?*!. Yes.

Senator Hrt^ska. What do you think, Mr. Sigler ?

ISIr. SiGEER. I have to speak for myself. The Board isn't here. I think

if this were worded very differently so that any of these cases that are

hot that the Attorney General might lie interested in, if we were to

know from his beforehand, like we do from the Criminal Division, if
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they have things Tve want to know, these are the things we want you to

consider that we are suggesting and telling you to.

The Criminal Division does that now. It is after we make our deci-

sion that we are concerned about. We think that anybodj^ should come
in and bring information to us and certainh^ the Attorney General,
Senator Scott, is my boss, and I am going to recognize him and treat

him as my boss, and respect him as my boss as long as I am in this

position.
If the Board has made a decision in a case, and then we are ordered

to reopen it, there is a "can of worms" there if we would get involved.

Now, if the Attorney General has information he knows we don't have
and we get that, then I think we are obligated to consider the new
information.

Senator Burdick. Isn't that what this more or less provides for ?

]Mr. SiGLEK. But it isn't after the fact.

Senator Burdick. If they discovered information after you made

your decisio7i, he could say, "Take a look at it.''

]\Ir. SiGLER. These things we consider now, sir. in our appeal system,
even. Here are the facts you did not consider, or if we have a letter,

and it has not been 3 weeks until a Member of the House of Representa-
tives called me and said,

I hear yon have acted in so and so's case. Here is information that if .tou

have it, fine, but I don't think you had it, and if you don't, it might do something
from the standpoint of mailing, or reconsidering the case.

It had to do with a hardship situation, with a guy that was not dan-

gerous. I wrote the Congressman and thanked him, and the case was

reopened, and he was paroled because this was new and important in-

formation that we did not have before.

Senator Bttrdick. As I said before, I think you and Mr. Durham
could get down to some language. We are all talking about the same

thing. You want to be an independent agencj^, and you have the final

voice, and the Attorney General wants to be protected in the unusual

cases where there may be some fact that may have been overlooked.

That is all. Did I say it about right ?

Mr. SiGLER. Oh, yes ; whatever needs to be done, we are going to do

it, and we are going to do it well.

Senator Scott. Mr. Chairman, as I recall as a premise to Mr. Sig-
ler's statement, he said something about the press learning about the

intervention of the Attorney General, and again, I don't believe that

ought to be the basis for a decision to be made by this committee. We
ought to do whatever is right and proper under the circumstances, and

my fear is that we maj- fragment our government.
It seems to me we need a chain of command in our Government, and

within the executive department of the Government
;
I have heard it

said many times that the President of the United States cannot con-
trol the executive branch of the Government, because of the bu-

reaucracy within the Goverrunent, and because there are so many
people that he has no real control.

I think it is wrong when the President of the United States cannot
control the executive branch of the Government. I don't think any
President can. I just hate for us to contribute something that does
reduce the proper power of the Attorney General of the United States
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as the chief le^al officer of our Government. Mr. Chairman, I just

share my thoug-hts.
I was with the Department of Justice for 21 years, and do have some

knowledge of the various branches of the Justice Department, and I

just feelthat it is wrong to say an agency within the Justice Depart-
ment is beyond the Attorney General's control. I think he sliould con-

trol the FBI. Immigi'ation, and all the various agencies that come
mider the umbrella of the Department of Justice—not control in a

political sense, but I think we are overreacting to some of the things
that have happened in recent years.

Senator Bltrdick. Mr. Durham, would you identify yourself for

the record?
]Mr. Durham. I am the Legislative Counsel from the Office of Legis-

lative Affairs, Department of Justice.

Senator Burdiok. Your full name ?

Mr. Durham. Hugh M. Durham.
Senator Burdick. I have one more question. Mr. Sigler, why is ap-

pointment of the Appeals Board members a power which the Chair-
man of the Parole Commission needs?
Mr. Sigler. I can speak objectively about this, because when my

term is over, I won't be back. I am not talking about what I want. All
members but two have more time than I, and the possibility of ap-
pointing more than one is remote.

If I have to appoint one—I hope I don't have to—but any time in

our board, or this commission, that you have two levels of people, and
one we are talking about the President appointing, and a year and a
half or tv/o in this same group we talked about that, and that was one
of the things some people thought was wrong with our proposal.
But here we are proposing that the President appoint part of the

board to their position, and then there are five left, and then, of course,
there is just one thing they can do. They will have to be regional
directors.

That is one thing.
The other thing is that the chairman of anv commission as vou well

know, has limited powers, and he should have—but if he does not have
the ability or authority to put these people where they are best suited,
then he does not have anvthing at all. In a svstem like ours, where we
have five regions, we might have, because of the nature of the way we
are appointed, we might have men who have absolutely no adminis-
trative ability.
In fact one man who was recently retired from our board told me

that he did not think he could run a region, and he did not want to

try it, because he had never been an administrator.
That is one thing. It is easy, too, to bring a man on the appellate

level which is sort of a dull job in some cases, because his full respon-

sibility is to sit there and look at cases that have been worked on and

they are appealed before him, and of course j'ou have to go through
them in much detail.

Now if you had the President appoint a man to that job that felt

like he could go through this, and we have board members—we are

made up of all kinds of people
—we have board members that think

they can handle 40 or 50 cases a day like that, and they can't do it. So
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you have to liave the authority to put your people where they belong,
and where they can do the best job.
But getting- down to the last part of it, the Chairman of the Board

of Parole has to have that authority if he is going to have a unit. If he

does not have, then these people are entities unto themselves, and
instead of one parole system, we are going to have five.

We have enough difficulty today trying to run one. It m.ust be the

Chairman's responsibility if we are to run a fair operation. There is

on our board, out of eight members voting
—two I believe—no, one

vote, one man, thought we should have it done as suggested in the

bin.

The other seven said no. for the reasons that I am giving you.
Senator Burdick. Does the Chairman now appoint the five in the

field and the three here ?

Mr. SiGLER. Yes, I did. If I may tell you how that was done, I think
I was lucky, because in the first instance, we tried to go on a seniority
deal as much as we could, to get this thing started, because these men
had been appointed to Washington, you know, and I think we got the

right five men in the field, or four men and one woman, and you know
I think we kept the right people in town, excluding me.

I think Me did. It was not because I selected them properly. It just
fell in that way. But on our board today, I could move two men, one in

and one out, and it would affect the board tremendously, because they
are not particularly fitted for the positions either in for one and out
for another.

Senator Bfrdick. How long has this practice been going on ?

Mr. SiGLER. We started in October. Our demonstration, sir, you won't
remember the date, but I have been before you and we talked about it,

on the first day of October 1972. Then in 1973 in August, we were

given permission to regionalize the whole country, because the At-

torney General and the Bureau of Prisons, and even the courts, al-

though there are one or two things we do that the courts don't like,
believe that this is a good system.

I am going to quote Judge Marvin Frankel here. I know all of you
know who he is. In a meeting I heard him say, 'T don't know what
did it, but there are light years-

—the United States Board of Parole
is light years ahead of what it was 21/^ years ago."
He said that in a meeting at Yale University less than 2 months

ago, that I sat in.

Senator Burdick. In other words, it is your argimient that as a

Chairman j'ou are familiar with the day-to-day operations of your
department, of your agency and you would be in a better position
than the President to say who is going to be on the appeals board.

]Mr. SiGLER. This does not sound very modest, but I believe that un-

equivocally. I believe it. We are all the President's appointments, but
he does not tell us what we are supposed to do.

Senator Burdick. But there is another conflict right here, isn't there ?

Mr. SiGLER. No. There is only one man. It was a 7 to 1 vote on the
board.

]Mr. Durham. The Department supports the Board's position.
Senator Burdick. Then the only conflict we found, you think you can

resolve.
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Mr. SiGLER. I don't think there will be any problem.
INIr. DuKHAM. No.
Senator Burdick. There are no other differences ?

Mr. Durham. None of significance. All are pointed out in the state-

ment. I don't think there are any that cannot be resolved without too

much difHculty.
Senator Burdick. Senator Hruska ?

Senator Hruska. I can sympathize with you that the Chairman
knows the members, and he knows who are temperamentally unquali-
fied by experience, and who is suited to take a job as regional commis-

sioner, and whatever.
I expect that is true, but what about the countervailing argument

that says maybe the Chairman could be wrong? Maybe the Chairman
could be wrong, and if so, would we be without redress ?

The Chairman could say j^ou go to Kansas, or you go to Texas, and
that would be it. Maybe he is wrong. There are those who say that
when you share that responsibility with the Attoiney General, you get

away from that individual, sole judgment, and if you can't sell it to

the Attorney General, maybe you are wrong.
Mr. SiGLER. Senator Hruska, I would like to refer you to the state-

ment. We agree with you 100 percent, and I don't think that the

Chairman should appoint anybody without the concurrence of the

Attorney General.
Senator Hruska. That is the way the bill now reads, isn't it ?

INIr. SiGLER. I believe that is right, and it does read that way.
Senator Hruska. There is one man who says he believes the

Attorney General should not pass judgment on it.

Mr. SiGLER. No, the President. There are those who say the President
should appoint the three members on the appellate group, the three
members in Washington. We say, and the Department agrees with us,

that with the exception of one Board member, that no chairman should

put anybody anyplace unless—excuse me—unless it is concurred in by
the Attorney General, and I would buy that.

Senator Hruska. Isn't that what happens ? The President appoints
the Commissioners, and then in various forms, you have Regional
Deputies or Assistants or Regional Directors and the Commission

usually appoints those, or the Chairman of the Commission subject
to the advice and the consent of the whole Commission, whether it is

the CAB or the NLRB or whatever ?

Mr. Durham. I am not familiar with it.

Senator Hruska. They are appointed by the regulatory body, what-
ever it happens to be.

Mr. SiGLER. The reason, sir. that I prefer the Attoiney General to

do it, regardless of who the Chairman might be, is because in our
particular situation, if we voted as a Commission to do it, I don't be-

lieve we would ever get it done. Now I am telling you this very
honestly.

I don't think that the Commission as a group would agree on who
should be where. Now T think that, as Senator Scott savs, the At-

torney General runs the Department of Justice, and should, and when
we go to moving these Commissioners around, there is a very good
chance that sometimes some Chairman might want to be vindictive.

He might not even know what he is doing, too. That could happen to
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ine. But if I can't do it unless the Attorney General says "OK," I think

that is safeguard enough, and I agree with you, that if I can't sell the

Attorney General on this thing, then maybe I am wrong.
Senator Hruska. On another point, Mr. Chairman, just a brief

thing, and a unanimous consent request. In regard to the making of

the decisions, either by the Commerce or by the Commission, you refer

to a procedure you now have and have been using since October 1973,
which is a procedure which is contained in the report of the Com-
mission on Criminal Justice Standards on Goals.

]\Ir. SiGLER. Yes, sir.

Senator Hruska. For the availability of the committee as well as for

use on the Senate floor, I ask that just the recommendations of the

Standards and Goals report at page 417, entitled "Organization of
Parole Authorities," be inserted at an appropriate place in the hearing
records. There is a brief explanation, and then there are six points
underneath and it is fairly short, and I think it might help us as we
go along at a later time.

Senator Burdick. Without objection, it is received.

Senator Hruska. Thank you.
Senator Buedick. Any other questions ?

Senator Scott. Mr. Chairman, might I add that I personally ap-
preciate the candor of the witness. Again having been with the

Department of Justice for a number of 3^ears, I sort of respect the

authority of the Attorney General to be the final decisionmaker within
the Department.

I remember back in the 1940"'s, when we had an Assistant Attorney
General who said he was appointed by the President and could only
be removed by the President, and there was a difference between the

Attorney General and this particular assistant. Normal Mackles. He
was fired that day.

I think he should have been. To me, the Attorney General should
not get into the individual cases, as a rule, and the decision should be
that of the hearing officer under the supervision of the Commission.
But, in the unusual case, I believe that the Attorney General should
still run the Department of Justice.

Mr. Stgler. Senator Scott, let me say this to you. I have been around
a long time, too, and when th& boss tells me to do something, I will

either do it, or I will get out.

Senator Burdick. T don't want to prolong the hearing, but a thought
iust came to me. What do you do in a case where tAvo hearing officers

do not a<?ree ?

IVfr. SiGLER. The case is sent in to the regional headquarters and the
re.o-ional examiner votes, and he will vote with one or the other.
Senator Burdtck. T see.

We shall have 10 days for additional nuestions or additional state-

ments, and with that, we will now close the meeting.
rWiereuDon, at 2:30 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, subject to the

call o^^ the Chair.l

["Additional information follows:]

Standard 12.1—Orgat^ization of Paroling Aittitorities

En^h Staff that has not alrpady done so should, by 107.'. establish parole
decisionmaking bodies for adult and juvenile offenders that are independent
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of correctional institutions. These boards may be administratively part of an
overall statewide correctional services agency, but they should be autonomous
in their decisionmaking authority and separate from field services. The board
responsible for the parole of adult offenders should have jurisdiction over both
felons and misdemeanants.

1. The boards should be specifically responsible for articulating and fixing
policy, for acting on appeals by correctional authorities or inmates on decisions
made by hearing examiners, and for issuing and signing warrants to arrest and
hold alleged parole violators.

2. The boards of larger States should have a staff of full-time hearing exam-
iners appointed under civil service regulations.

3. The boards of smaller States may assume responsibility for all functions ;

but should establish clearly defined procedures for policy development, hearings
and appeals.

4. Hearing examiners should be empowered to hear and make initial decisions
in parole grant and revocation cases under the specific policies of the parole
board. The report of the hearing examiner containing a transcript of the hearing
and the evidence should constitute the exclusive record. The decision of the

hearing examiner should be final unless appealed to the parole board within
5 days by the correctional authority or the offender. In the case of an appeal,
the parole board should review the case on the basis of whether there is sub-

stantial evidence in the report to support the finding or whether the finding was
erroneous as a matter of law.

5. Both board members and hearing examiners should have close understand-

ing of correctional institutions and be fully aware of the nature of their pro-
grams and the activities of offenders.

G. The parole board should develop a citizen committee, broadly representative
of the community and including ex-offenders, to advise the board on the develop-
ment of policies.

Stateaient of Senator John L. McClellan

"parole commission act"

APRIL 9, 107 5

Mr. Chairman, the Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries is considering
needed legislation to help modernize the Federal parole system. The "Parole
Commission Act," introduced as S. 1109 in this Congress, is the product of the
efforts of many sources, including the professional staff of the Subcommittee,
the Federal parole board, the Department of .Justice, and others interested in a

sound Federal parole system. It is on the whole a commendable step forward.

My interst in parole legislation is not new. For a number of years, the Sub-

committee on Criminal Laws and Procedures, which I am privileged to chair,

has worked closely with the staff of the Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries,

drawing on its expertise to iron out modern parole provisions for the Federal
Criminal Code legislation which meshed with the overall sentencing philosopliy
and structure of that bill. As various approaches to sentencing were studied in

relation to the general purposes of the Criminal Code, it became apparent that

there was an interrelationship between the various phases and options of

sentencing, such as probation, imprisonment, fines, and parole, which required

consistency in standards, criteria, and conditions. Hopeffilly, the parole provi-
sions in S. 1 the Criminal Justice Reform Act of 1975—which I submit for the

record—accomplish this result.

"Chapter 39.—UNITED STATES PAROLE COMMISSION

"Spc.
"591. Organization and membership.
"592. Powers of the Commission.
"5^?>. Powers and duties of the Chairman of the Parole Commission.
"594. Applicability of the Administrative Procedure Act to rulemaliing.

"§ 593. Organization and Membership
"(a) The United States Parole Commission shall be established as an inde-

pendent agency within the Department of Justice and shall be comprised of a

Chairman and eight members appointed by the President, by and with the

advice and consent of the Senate. At no time shall more than six of the nine
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Commissioners be of tlie same political party. Tlie President shall designate
three of the Commissioners to serve on the National Appeals Board.

"(b) The term of ofBce of a Commissioner shall be six years, except that

the term of a person appointed as a Commissioner to fill a vacancy shall expire
six years from the date upon which the person vacating the office was appointed
and qualified. Upon the expiration of a term of office of a Commissioner the

Commissioner shall continue to act until a successor has been appointed and

qualified. Commissioners shall be compensated at the highest rate now or here-

after prescribed for grade 17 of the General Schedule pay rates (5 U.S.C. 5332).

"§ 592. Powers of the Commission

"(a) The Parole Commission shall meet at least quarterly, and by majority
vote shall :

"(1) promulgate rules and regulations establishing guidelines for parole
release decisions and such other rules and regulations as are necessary to

carry out a national parole policy and the purposes of this chapter and of

subchapter D of chapter 38 of title IS, United States Code ;

"(2) create such regions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of

this chapter, but in no event less than five ;

"(3) ratify, revise, or deny any request for regular, supplemental, or

deficiency appropriations, prior to the submission of the requests to the

Office of Management and Budget by the Chairman, which requests shall be

separate from those of any other agency of the Department of Justice.

Each Commissioner shall have equal responsibility and authority in all such

decisions and actions, shall have full access to all information relating to the

performance of all duties and responsibilities, and shall have one vote. A record.

of the final vote of eacli Commissioner on any action pursuant to this subsection

shall be maintained and made available for public inspection.

'•(b) The Parole Commission shall, under rules and regulations promulgated
under this chapter and subject to the provisions of subchapter D of chapter 38

of title 18, have the power to :

"(1) grant or deny any application or recommendation for the parole
of any person who has been convicted of an offense under any Federal law
and who has been sentenced to a term of imprisonment in the custody of tb.e

Bureau of Prisons ;

"(2) impose reasonable conditions on any order granting parole;

"(3) modify or revoke any order granting parole;

"(4) establish the maximum length of time which any person whose

parole has been revoked shall be required to serve, and, where such revoca-

tion is based upon a subse(iuent conviction of the parolee under any Federal

or State law for an offense committed subsequent to his release on parole,

determine whether all or any part of the term required to be served sliall

run concurrently or consecutively vsith the sentence imposed for such subse-

quent offense ;

"(5) accept voluntary and uncompensated services; and
"(G) utilize, on a cost reimbursable basis, the services of the Federal

government or of a State government for the purpose of carrying out the

provisions of section 3835 (a) of title 18, United States Code.

"(c) The Parole Commission may subpoena witnesses to testify or to produce
at a parole revocation hearing, and may pay such witness fees as established for

the courts of the United States. If a person refuses to obey such a sultpoena, the

Commission may petition a court of the United States for the judicial district in

which such parole proceeding is being conducted, in which such person resides

or carries on business, or in which such person may be found, to order such per-

son to attend and to testify or produce evidence. The court may issue an order

requiring such person to appear before the Commission if the court finds that

such testimony or evidence is directly related to a matter with respect to which

the Commission is empowered to make a determination under section 3835 of

title 18, United States Code. All process in such a case may be served in the ju-

dicial district in which such a parole proceeding is being conducted, in which such

person resides or carries on business, or in which such person may be found.

"(d) The Commission, pursuant to rules and regulations promulgated under

this chapter, may delegate to any Commissioner any of its powers except the

powers enumerated in subsection (a) of this section and in section 3836 of title

18, United States Code.

"(e) Pursuant to rules and regulations promulgated by the Commission, hear-

ing examiners may be delegated any or all functions necessary to provide the
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basis for decision under subsection (b) of this section, including gathering and
recording in the hearing record any pertinent information, conducting hearings
and interviews, taking sworn testimony, and recommending appropriate action.

Recommendations of any panel of hearing examiners shall be based upon con-

currence of at least two members of such panel.

"(f) Pursuant to rules and regulations promulgated by the Commission, any
officer or employee of the executive or judicial branches of the Federal govern-
ment or a State government may be delegated authority to conduct hearings to

be held pursuant to the provisions of section 3835 of title 18, United States Code.

"§ 593. Powers and Duties of the Chairman of the Parole Commission

"(a) The Chairman of the Parole Commission shall:

"(1) convene and preside at meetings of the Commission pursuant to sec-

tion 592(a) and such additional meetings of the Commission as the Chair-
man may call or as may be requested in writing by at least three Commis-
sioners ;

"(2) appoint, fix the compensation of, assign, and supervise all personnel
employed by the Commission except that appointment of hearing examiners
shall be subject to approval by the Commission and regional commissioners
shall appoint and supervise such personnel employed regularly and full time
in their respective regions as are compensated at a rate up to and including
grade 9.of the General Schedule pay rates (5 U.S.C. 5332) ;

"(3) assign duties among officers and employees of the Commission, in-

cluding Commissioners, so as to balance the worlvload and provide for or-

derly administration ;

"(4) assign regional commissioners to serve temporarily on the National

Appeals Board in case of vacancy, or in the event of disability or disqualifi-
cation ; designate one member of the National Appeals Board to serve as
Vice Chairman of the Commission ; and designate for each such region es-

tablished pursuant to section 592(a)(2), one Commissioner to serve as re-

gional commissioner for each such region ;

"(5) direct the preparation of requests for appropriations and the use and
expenditure of funds ;

"(6) make reports on 'the position and policies of the Commission to the

Attorney General, the Administrative Office of the United States Courts,
and the Congress ;

"
(7) provide for research and training, including :

"(A) collecting data obtained from studies, research, and the empiri-
cal experience of public and private agencies concerning the parole
process and parolees ;

"(B) disseminating pertinent data and studies, to individuals, agen-
cies, and organizations concerned with the parole process and parolees ;

"(C) publishing data concerning the parole process and parolees ; and
"(D) conducting seminars, workshops, and training programs on

methods of parole for parole personnel and other persons connected with
the parole process ; and

"(8) perform such administrative and other duties and responsibilities as

may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter and of sub-

chapter D of chapter 38 of title 18, United States Code.

"(b) In carrying out his functions under this section, the Chairman shall be

governed by the national parole policies promulgated by the Commission.

"§ 594. Applicability of the Administrative Procedure Act to Rulemaking
"Rules and regulations promulgated under the authority of this chapter shall

be promulgated pursuant to the provisions of section 553 of title 5, United States

Code, except that, for the purposes of this chapter, section 553(b) (3) (A) shall

be deemed not to include the phrase 'general statements of policy'."

"Chapter 40.—UNITED STATES VICTIM COMPENSATION BOARD
"Sec.
"595. Organization anrt Membership.
"596. Powers of the Board.
"597. Procedures.
"598. Review.

"§ 595. Organization and Membership
"(a) The United States Victim Compensation Board is hereby established as

an independent agency within the Department of Justice. The Board shall be
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composed of three members, each of whom shall have been a member of the bar
of the highest court of a state for at least eight years, to be appointed by the

President, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate. Not more than two
members shall be affiliated with the same political party. The President shall

designate one of the members of the Board to serve as Chairman.
"(b) No member of the Board shall engage in any other business, vocation, or

employment.
"(c) The Board shall have an oflBcial seal.

"(d) The term of office of each member of the Board shall be eight years,

except that (1) the terms of office of the members first taking office shall expire
as designated by the President at the time of appointment, one at the end of

four years, one at the end of six years, and one at the end of eight years and
(2) any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration
of the term for which his predecessor was appointed shall be appointed for the
remainder of such term.

"(e) Each member of the Board shall be eligible for reappointment.
"(f) Any member of the Board may be removed by the President for ineffi-

ciency, neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office.

"(g) The principal office of the Board shall be in or near the District of

Columbia, but the Board or any duly authorized representative may exercise any
or all of its powers in any place.

"§ 596. Power of the Board

"(a) The Board is authorized in carrying out its functions to:

"(1) appoint and fix the compensation of an Executive Director and a
General Counsel and such other personnel as the Board deems necessary in

accordance with the provisions of title 5 of the United States Code ;

"(2) procure temporary and intermittent services to the same extent as
is authorized by section 3109 of title 5 of the United States Code, but at
rates not to exceed $100 a day for individuals ;

"(3) promulgate such rules and regulations as may be required to carry
out the provisions of subchapter B of chapter 41 of title 18 of the United
States Code ;

"(4) designate representatives to serve or assist on such advisory com-
mittees as the Board may determine to be necessary to maintain effective
liaison with Federal agencies and mth State and local agencies developing
or carrying out policies or programs.

"Subchapter D.—Parole
"Sec.

"3831. Consideration of a Prisoner for Release on Parole.
"3832. Pre-Parole Reports.
"3833. Parole Interview Procedure.
"3834. Term and Conditions of Parole.
"383.0. Revocation of Parole.
"3S'3(i Appeal from Parole Commission Determination.
"3837. Inapplicability of the Administrative Procedures Act.

"§ 3831. Consideration of a Prisoner for Release on Parole

"(a) Eligibility.—A prisoner who has been committed to the custody of the
Bureau of Prisons to serve a term of imprisonment totaling six months or more
is eligible for release on parole by the Parole Commission :

"(1) upon completion of the service of the term of parole ineligibility if

such a term was imposed by the sentencing court pursuant to the provisions
of sections 2.301(d) and 2302(c) ; or

"(2) at any time after the completion of the first six months of the term
of imprisonment if a term of parole ineligibility was not imposed by the
court.

"(b) First Consideration.—The Parole Commission shall consider the parole
of a prisoner serving a term of imprisonment totaling six months or more at
least sixty days prior to :

"(1) the completion of the service of the term of parole ineligibility if

such a term was imposed by the sentencing court ; or
"(2) the expiration of the term of imprisonment or of the first year of the

term of imprisonment, whichever is earlier, if a term of parole ineligibility
was not imposed by the court.

"(c) Criteria for Release.—Parole may be granted a prisoner who is eligible
for parole if the Parole Commission, having regard for the nature and circum-
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stances of the offense and the history and characteristics of the prisoner, is of

the opinion that :

"(1) his release at that time would not unduly depreciate the serious-

ness of the offense, undermine respect for law, or prevent the administration

of just punishment for the offense ;

"(2) his release at that time would not undermine the affording of ade-

quate deterrence of criminal conduct ;

"(3) there is no undue rislv that he will commit further crimes or other-

wise fail to conform to such conditions of parole as would be warranted
under the circumstances ;

"(4) the continued provision of the educational or vocational training,

medical care, or other correctional treatment that he is receiving at the

prison facility will not substantially enhance his capacity to lead a law-

abiding life
;
and

"(5) his release at that time would not have a substantially adverse effect

on institutional discipline.

"(d) RECoNSiDEBATioisr.—If parole is denied a prisoner, the Parole Commission
shall reconsider parole at least once each year thereafter until parole is granted,
unless it appears clear that a release order after an additional year would be

inappropriate, in which ease the Commission may defer reconsideration for not

more than two years.
"(e) Mandatory Release on Parole at Expiration of Sentence.—A prisoner

serving a term of imprisonment totaling six months or more who is still in

confinement on the date of the expiration of his term of imprisonment shall then

be released on parole.

"§ 3832. Preparole Reports

"(a) Preparole Study and Report by Bureau of Prisons.—An adequate time

prior to the date upon which a prisoner becomes eligible for parole, the Bureau
of Prisons, under such regulations as the Attorney General may prescribe, shall

conduct a complete study of the prisoner, inquiring into such matters as the

prisoner's previous delinquency or criminal experiences ; his social baciij^round :

his capabilities; his mental, emotional, and physical health; and the rehabili-

tative resources or programs that may be available to suit his need.s. At least

ninety days prior to the date upon which the prisoner becomes eligible for

parole, the Bureau shall provide the Parole Commission with a written report

of the results of the study and shall make to the Commission whatever recom-

mendations the Bureau believes will be helpful in determining the suitability of

the prisoner for parole.

"(b) Preparole Report by Probation Officers and Go\'eknment Agencies.—
Upon request of the Parole Commission prior to its c(»nsideration of the parole

of a prisoner or of any other matter within its .iurisdiction, a probation officer

or a government agency shall provide the Commission with whatever informa-

tion is available to such ofiicer or agency concerning a prisoner or parolee and

shall, if not inconsistent vrith the public interest, make to the Commission what-

ever recommendations such officer or agency believes will be helpful with re-

spect to the matter concerning which the request was made.

"(c) Other Preparole Investigation.—The Parole Commission may make
such other investigation as it may consider warranted.

"§ 3833. Parole Interview Procedure

"(a) Interview Required.—A prisoner whom the Parole Commission is re-

quired to consider for parole under the provisions of section 3S31(b) or (d),

shall, within the time specified, be afforded a parole interview unless he signs

a vv-ritten waiver of such an interview.

"(b) Notice and Opportunity for Representation.—Prior to the parole in-

terview, the prisoner :

"(1) shall be given a written notice of the time, place, and purpose of

such interview ; and
"(2) shall be allowetl to select, as a representative to aid him in such

interview, any person v^'ho qualifies under regulations or rules issued by the

Parole Commission, the regulations or rules of which may not exclude at-

torneys as a class.

"(c) Access to Reports.—Following notification that a parole interview is

scheduled, the prisoner shall be afforded reasonable access to such reports and

other materials as are prepared by, or for the use of, the Parole Commission in
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making its determination, except tliat the prisoner sliall not be afforded access

to matters that, if they appeared in a report of a presentence investigation, would
not be revealed to a defendant under the provisions of Rule 32 of the Federal

Rules of Criminal Procedure. If access to any such material is vrithheld from
the prisoner on such grounds, the Commission, or, if the material was withheld
at the request of the Bureau of Prisons or another agency, the Bureau or such
other agency, shall summarize the basic contents of material to tlie extent that

is possible without violating a pledge of confidentiality or endangering any
person, and the Commission shall furnish such summary to the prisoner.

"(d) Record of Interview.—A complete record of a parole interview shall be

retained by the Parole Con.imission. For good cause shown the Commission may
make a transcript of the record available to the prisoner.

"(e) Notification of Determination.—Not later than fifteen working days
after the date of the interview, the Parole Commission shall notify the prisoner
in writing of its determination. If parole is denied, or if discretionary condi-

tions of parole are imposed other than those incorporated by reference in sec-

tion 3834(c), the Commission shall include a statement of the reasons for such

determination and, if possible, a representative of the Commission who par-

ticipated in the parole interview shall hold a conference with the prisoner to ex-

plain such reasons.

"§ 3834. Term and Conditions of Parole

"(a) Setting of Teeji and Conditions.—Upon a determination to release a

prisoner on parole, the Parole Commission shall set the term and conditions of

parole, having regard for :

"(1) the nature and circumstances of the offense and the history and
characteristics of the parolee ; and

"(2) the need:

"(A) to protect the public from further crimes of the parolee; and

"(B) to provide the parolee with such needed educational or voca-

tional training, medical care, or other correctional treatment as can be

provided effectively while he is on parole.

"(b) Term of Parole.—The Parole Commission shall set the term of parole

at not less than one nor more than five years.

"(c) Conditions of Parole.—The Parole Commission shall provide as an ex-

plicit condition of parole, that the parolee not commit another federal, state, or

local crime during the term of parole. The Commission may provide, as further

conditions of parole to the extent that such conditions are reasonably related

to the matters set forth in subsection (a), any conditions set forth as discre-

tionary conditions of probation in section 2103 (b)(1) through (b) (17), and

any other conditions it considers to be appropriate. If an alien prisoner subject

to "deportation is paroled, the Commission may provide, as a condition of parole,

that he be deported and remain outside the United States. The Conmiission shall

provide to a parolee a written statement setting forth all the conditions to which

the parole is subject with sufficient clarity and specificity to serve as a guide
for the parolee's conduct and for such supervision as is required.

"(d) Commencement of Term.—A term of parole commences on the day the

parolee is released from imprisonment.
"(e) Concurrence With Other Sentences.—A term of parole runs concur-

rently with any federal, state, or local term of parole or probation for another

offense to which the parolee is subject or becomes subject during the term of

parole, except that it does not run during any period in which the parolee is

imprisoned in connection with a conviction for a federal, state, or local crime.

"(f) Early Termination.—The Parole Commission may terminate a term of

parole previously ordered and discharge the parolee at any time after expira-

tion of one vear of parole if it is satisfied that such action is warranted by the

conduct of the parolee and the interest of justice. The Commission shall review

the status of a parolee after two years of continuous parole, and after each ad-

ditional vear of parole, to determine the need for his continued parole.

"(g) Extension of Term or Modification of Conditions.—The Parole Com-

mission may extend a term of parole if less than the authorized term was pre-

viously imposed, and may modify or enlarge the conditions of parole, at any time

prior to the expiration or termination of the term of parole.

"(h) Subject to Revocation.—A term of parole remains conditional and sub-

ject to revocation until its expiration or termination.
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"§ 3835. Revocation of Parole

"(a) Warrant for Arrest.—A warrant for the arrest of a parolee who is

alleged to have violated a condition of liis parole may be issued by the Parole

Commission at any time prior to the expiration or termination of the term of

parole. An officer authorized under subchapter B of chapter 30 to execute such

a warrant may arrest the parolee and, upon such an arrest, shall return the

parolee to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

"(b) Preliminary Appearance.—A parolee arrested on a warrant for viola-

tion of a condition of his parole shall be taken, without unnecessary delay, be-

fore the Parole Commission at a place reasonably near the place of the arrest

or of the violation alleged, to determine if there is probable cause to believe

that he has violated a condition of his parole. The parolee shall be given the op-

portunity to admit or deny, in whole or in part, the violation alleged, and to ex-

plain the circumstances of the matter. If the Commission, after a prelimiuai-y

hearing, finds that there is probable cause to believe that the violation occurred,

a revocation hearing before the Commission shall be ordered. If the parolee
admits the violation alleged, the revocation hearing may be limited to matters

concerning disposition.

"(c) Time and Place of Revocation Hearing.—A revocation hearing shall be

held by the Parole Commission, with respect to the parole of :

"(1) a parolee for whom such a hearing was ordered under subsection (b),

immediately upon the finding of probal>le cause or within sixty days there-

after, at a place reasonably near the place of the arre.st or of the violation

alleged ; or

"(2) a parolee who has been convicted of a federal, state, or local crime
committed subsequent to his release on parole and who has been sentenced
for such crime to a term of imprisonment of more than one hundred and
eighty days and who has had placed against him a detainer on a warrant
issued under subsection (a), within one hundred and eighty days of such

placement, at the prison facility in which he is confined.

(d) Revocation Hearing Procedure.—Prior to the holding of the revocation

hearing, the parolee shall be given reasonable notice of the conditions of parole
alleged to have been violated, and of the time, place, and purpose of the scheduled

hearing. At the hearing, the parolee shall be apprised of the evidence against
him and shall be given opportunity :

(1) to be represented by retained counsel, or, if he is unable to retain

counsel, by counsel provided pursuant to the provisions f>f chapter 34 ;

(2) to appear, to testify, and to present witnesses and documentary evi-

dence on his own behalf ; and
(3) to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, if he so requests,

unless the Parole Commission specifically finds good cause for declining to

allow confrontation.

Any relevant evidence may be received at the hearing, regardless of its ad-

missibility under the rules governing admission of evidence at criminal trials.

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission shall determine on the evidence
before it whether the parolee has violated a condition of his parole.

"(e) Disposition.—If the Parole Commis.sion determines that the parolee has
not violated a condition of his parole, the warrant shall be withdrawn. If the
Commission determines that the parolee has violated a condition of his parole,
it may continue him on the existing parole, with or without extending the term
or modifying or enlarging the conditions, or, if such continuation, exten.sion,
modification, or enlargement is inappropriate in its opinion, may revoke parole
and order the parolee imprisoned for :

(1) the term of the original sentence minus the portion of the original
sentence served in confinement prior to the parole ; or

(2) the contingent term of imprisonment provided in section 2303.
In determining the appropriate disposition, the Commission sliall consider
whether the violation was serious and whether the violation had been preceded
by other violations.

"(f) Digest of Proceeding.—In any case in which parole is modified or re-

voked, the Parole Commission shall prepare, and shall give to the parolee, a
digest of the factors considered by the Commission and of the reasons for the
disposition ordered by the Commission.

"(g) Delated Adjudication.—The power of the Parole Commission to revoke
parole for violation of a condition of parole extends beyond the expiration of the
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term of parole for any period reasonably necessary for the adjudication of mat-

tors arising before its expiration if, hearing is made prior to its expiration, a

warrant or summons has been issued on the basis of an allegation of such a

violation.

"(h) Credit Upon Reimprisonment.—Credit shall be given for reimprison-
ment of a parolee beginning on the date he is returned to the custody of the

Bureau of Prisons.

"(i) Reparole.—A prisoner who has been reimprisoned following revocation

of parole may be reparoled by the Parole Commission under the same provisions
of this subchapter that govern initial parole, and such subsequent parole may
be revoked by the Commission under the same provisions of this subchapter that

govern initial revocation. If such a subsequent parole is revoked, the parolee may
be reimprisoned for :

"(1) the term of the original sentence minus the portion of the original
sentence served in confinement prior to the last parole ;

or

"(2) the contingent term of impisonment provided in section 2303 if no

part of such a term was served in the course of his reimprisonment after

the initial revocation.

"§ 3836. Appeal from Parole Commission Determination

"(a) Appeal in General.—In any case in which parole is denied, in which
conditions of parole are imposed other than those set forth or incorporated by
reference in section 3834(c), or in which parole is modified or revoked, the person
to whom any such decision applies may file with the National Appeals Board a
written appeal from such decision not later than thirty days after the decision

is rendered. In any case in which any decision with respect to parole is rendered,
the Attorney General may file with the National Appeals Board a written appeal
from such decision not later than thirty days after the decision is rendered. An
appeal shall be decided by a majority vote of the three commissioners on the
National Appeals Board within sixty days after receipt of the appellant's papers.

"(b) Appeal if Original Jurisdiction Retained.—In accordance with regu-
lations and rules issued by the Parole Commission, in any case in which original
jurisdiction is retained by the Commission the initial decision shall be made by a

majority vote of a panel of five commissioners. The panel's decision may be ap-
pealed on the motion of any commissioner on the panel, or on the application of
the individual to whom such decision applies, or on the motion of the Attorney
General, directly to the National Appeals Board, which shall either affirm the
decision or schedule a review by the full Commission.

"(c) Participant in Prior Decision Barred.—No commissioner may partici-
pate as a member of the National Appeals Board in the consideration of an ap-
peal from a decision in which he had earlier participated.

"§ 3837. Inapplicability of the Administrative Procedure Act
"The provisions of 5 U.S.C. 551 through 559, and 701 through 706, do not apply

to the making of any determination, decision, or order under this subchapter.

Subchapter E.—Death Sentence
"Sec.

".3841. Implementation of a Death Sentence.
"3842. Use of State Facilities.

"§ 3841. Implementation of a Death Sentence
"A person who has been sentenced to death pursuant to the provisions of chap-

ter 24 shall be delivered to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons until the sentence
is to be implemented. The Bureau shall release the person sentenced to death to
the custody of a United States marshal, who shall supervise the implementation
of the sentence in the manner prescribed by the law of the state in which the
sentence is imposed. If the law of such state does not provide for the implementa-
tion of a sentence of death, the court shall designate another state, the law of
which does so provide, and the sentence shall be implemented in the latter state
in the manner prescibed by such law. A sentence of death may not be imple-
mented while the person sentenced to death is pregnant.

"§ 3842. Use of State Facilities

"A United States marshal charged with the supervision of the implementation
of a sentence of death may use appropriate state or local facilities for the pur-
pose, may use the services of an appropriate state or local official or of a person
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he employs for the purpose, and may pay the costs thereof in an amount approved

by the Attorney General.

[S. 1463, 93d Cong., first sess.]

A BILL To establish a Parole Commission and for other purposes

Be it enacted hy the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States

of America in Congress assembled, That (a) this Act may be cited as the "Parole

Commission Act of 1973".

(b) Section 4201 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as follows :

"§ 4291. Parole Commission

"(a) There is hereby created as an independent agency of the Department
of Justice a United States Parole Commission (hereinufrer referred to in this

chapter as the 'Commission'), the members of which shall be appointed by the

President, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate, and which shall

exercise the powers granted in the manner prescribed by this chapter. The term
of office of a member (hereinafter referred to in this chapter as 'Commissioner')
shall be six years, except that the term of a person appointed as a Commissioner
to fill a vacancy shall expire six years from the date upon which such person
was appointed and qualified. Upon the expiration of a term of office of any
member, such member shall continue to act until a successor has been appointed
and quahfied. The President shall from time to time designate from among
the Commissioners one to serve as Chairman. The Attorney General shall from
time to time designate from among the National Commissioners one to serve
as Vice Chairman, and four to serve as National Commissioners.

"(b) The Commissioners sliall meet at least twice annually, and by majority
vote shall—

"(1) consider, promulgate, and oversee a national parole policy;

"(2) promulgate such regulations, adopted in accordance with the pro-
visions of section 553 of title 5, United States Code, as are necessary to carry
out the national parole policy ;

"(3) create such regions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of

this chapter, but in no event less than five ;

"(4) ratify or deny the appointment by the Chairman of the heads of

major administrative units ; and
"(5) ratify, revise, or deny any request for regular, supplemental, or

deficiency appropriations, prior to the submission of the requests to the
Office of Management and Budget by the Chairman, which requests shall
be separate from those of any other agency of the Department of Justice.

Each Commissioner shall have equal responsibility and authority in all such
decisions and actions, shall have full access to all information relating to the

performance of such duties and responsibilities, and shall have one vote.

"(c) The Chairman shall—
"(1) preside at meetings of the Commissioners, pursuant to subsection

(b) of this section ;

"(2) appoint, fix the compensation of, assign, and supervise all personnel
employed by the Commission, except such jiersous who may from time to

time be employed in the immediate offices of Commissioners other than the
Chairman

;

"(3) assign duties among units of the Commission so as to balance the
workload and provides for orderly administration ;

"(4) direct the preparation of requests for appropriations and the use
and expenditure of funds ;

"
( 5 ) provide for research which shall include—

"(A) the systematic collection of the data obtained from studies,
research, and the empircal experience of public and private agencies
concering the parole process and parolees ;

"(B) the dissemination of pertinent data and studies to individuals,
agencies, and organizations concerned with the parole process and
parolees ;

"(C) the publishing of data concerning parole process and parolees;
"(6) perform such administrative and other duties and responsibilities

as are necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.
"(d) The National Parole Commissioners, by majority vote, shall—

"(1) have authority to accept, reject, or modify any decision of any
region, upon motion of any National Parole Commissioner, if the eligible
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person to wbom such decision applies shall have made application for

review ;

"(2) have authority to revievp any decision of any region when the
national well-being so requires, and to accept, reject, or modify such deci-

sion
;
and

"(3) give reasons in detail for their decision in any appropriate case,

including the review of any decision of any region
"(e) The Vice Chairman shall—

"(1) preside at meetings of the National Commissioners;
"(2) assign cases to National Commissioners so as to balance the work-

load and provide for orderly administration ;

"(3) in the absence of the Chairman, carry out the necessary functions
of that office; and

"(4) perform such other duties and responsibilities as are necessary to

carry out the purposes of this chapter.
"(f) A Regional Parole Commissioner shall establish panels which shall be

authorized to—
"(1) grant or deny any application or recommendation to parole or re-

parole any eligible person ;

"(2) specify reasonable conditions or any order granting parole;
"(3) modify or revoke, pursuant to section 4207, any order paroling any

eligible person ;

"(4) establish the maximum length of time which any person whose parole
has been revoked shall be required to serve, but in no case shall such time,

together with such time as he previously served in connection with the
offense for which he was paroled, be longer than the maximum term for

which he was sentenced in connection with such offense ;

"(5) re-parole any person whose parole has been revoked and who is

not otherwise ineligible for parole ; and
"(6) discharge any parolee from supervision or release him from one or

more of the conditions of parole at any time after the expiration of one year
after release on parole, if warranted by the conduct of the parolee and the
ends of jiistice ; except, in those cases in which the time remaining to be
served is less than one year, in which case, such actions may be taken at any
time.

Panels shall consist of either Commissioners or Parole Examiners and decisions
shall be basefl upon concurrence of not less than two members of such panel. A
Regional Parole Commissioner may review the decision of any panel of exam-
iners, and shall have such other powers as are necessary to carry out the purposes
of this chapter.
"(g) (1) The Commission shall have the power to issue subpoenas to require

the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of evidence that
directly relates to any matter with respect to which the Commission is em-
powered to make a determination under this chapter. Any Commissioner or
Parole Examiner may administer oaths to witnesses appearing before the Com-
mission or before a Regional Parole Panel. Subpoenas may be issued under the

signature of any Commissioner or any duly designated official of the Commission
and may be served by any person designated by the chairman or any Commis-
sioner. Witnesses summoned before the Commission or before a Regional Parole
Panel shall be paid the same fees and mileage that are paid witnesses in the
courts of the United States. Such attendance of witnesses and production of
evidence may be required from any place in the United States to any designated
place.

"(2) If a person refuses to obey such a subpoena, the Commission may petition
a court of the United States for the judicial district in which such parole pro-
ceeding is being conducted or in which such person resides or carries on busi-
ness to require such person to attend, testify, and produce evidence. The court
may issue an order requiring such person to appear before the Commission, there
to produce information or a thing, if so ordered, or to give testimony touching
the matter under investigation or in question, when the court finds such informa-
tion, thing or testimony directly related to a matter with respect to which the
Commission is empowered to make a determination under this chapter. Failure
to obey such an order is punishable by such court as a contempt. All process in
such a case may be .served in the judicial district in which such person resides,
does business, or may be found."
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Sec. 2. Section 4202 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4202. Persons eligible
"
(a) A person eominitted pursuant to this title, other than a juvenile delinquent

or a committed youth offender, wherever confined and serving a definite term
or terms of one year or more, may be released on parole after serving one-third

of such term or terms or after serving fifteen years of a life sentence or of a

sentence of over more than forty-five years, except to the extent otherwise pro-

vided in section 4208 of this title. Once a person becomes eligible for parole he

must be given a parole appearance and such additional parole appearances as are

deemed necessary, but in no case shall there be less than one additional parole

appearance every two years.
"(b) If it appears from a report or recommendation by the proper institution

ofiieers and upon application by a person eligible for release on parole, that such

person has substantially observed the rules of the institution to which he is con-

fined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person will live and remain
at liberty without violating the law, and if in the opinion of the Commission
such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society, the Commission may
authorize release of such person on parole.
"Such person shall remain, while on parole, in the legal custody and under the

control of the Attorney General, until the expiration of the maximum term or

terms for which he w^as sentenced.

"(c) In imposing conditions of parole, the Commission shall consider the

following—
"(1) there should be a reasonable relationship between the conditions im-

posed and the person's conduct and present situation ;

"(2) the conditions should provide for only such deprivations of liberty

as are necessary for the protection of the public welfare ; and
"(3) the conditions should be sufiiciently specific to serve as a guide to

supervision and conduct.

Upon release on parole, a person shall be given a certificate setting forth the

conditions of such parole.
"(d) An order of parole or release may require a parolee or a person released

pursuant to section 4164 of this title as conditions of parole or release to reside

in or participate in the program of a residential community treatment center, or

both, for all or part of the period of such parole or release : Provided. That the

Attorney General certifies that adequate treatment facilities, personnel, and

programs are available. If the Attorney General determines that the person's
residence in the center or participation in its program, or both, should be termi-

nated, because the person can derive no further significant benefits from such
residence or participation, or both, or because such residence or participation

adversely affects the rehabilitation of other residents or participants, the Attor-

ney General shall notify the Regional Parole Commissioner who shall thereupon
make such other provision with respect to the person as is deemed appropriate.
"A person residing in a residential community treatment center may l>e required

to pay such costs incident to residence as the Attorney General deems appro-
priate.

"(e) An order of parole or release may require a parolee, or a prisoner released

pursuant to section 4164 of this title, who is an addict within the meaning of

section 4251(a) of this title, or a drug dependent person within the meaning of

section 2(q) of the Public Health Service Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 201), as a

condition of parole or release to participate in the community supervision pro-

grams authorized by section 4255 of this title for all or part of the period of

jiarole: Provided, That the Attorney General certifies a suitable program is

available. If the Attorney General determines that the person's participation in

the program should be terminated, because the person can derive no further

significant benefits from participation or because his participation adversely
affects the rehabilitation of other participants, he shall so notify the Regional
Commissioner, which shall thereupon make such other provision with respect to

the person as is deemed appropriate."
Sec. 3. Section 4203 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4203. Parole interview procedures
"
(a ) Any interview of an eligible person by a Commissioner or parole examiner

in connection with the consideration of an application of parole shall be con-

ducted in accordance with the following procedures—
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"(1) an eligible person shall be given written notice of the time and place
of such interview ; and

"(2) an eligible person shall be allowed to select an advocate to aid him
in such interview. The advocate naay be a member of the institutional staff,

or any other person who qualifies under the rules promulgated by the Com-
mission pursuant to this chapter.

"(b) Following notification that a parole interview is pending, an eligible

person and his advocate shall have reasonable access to progress reports and
such other materials as are prepared for the use of any Commissioner or exami-
ner in making any determination, except that the following materials may be

excluded from inspection
—

"(1) diagnostic opinions which, if made known to the eligible person,

would, in the opinion of the prison administration, lead to a serious disrup-
tion of his institutional program of rehabilitation ;

"(2) any document which contains information which was obtained by a

pledge of confidentiality ;

"(3) any part of any presentence report, except upon agreement of the

court having jurisdiction to impose sentence ; or

"(4) any information that would place any person in jeopardy of life or

limb.

If any document is deemed by either the Commission or the prison administra-

tion to fall within the exclusionary provisions of this section, then it shall be-

come the duty of that agency to summarize the basic contents of the material

withheld, bearing in mind the need for confidentiality or the impact on the in-

mate, or both, and furnish such summary to the inmate and his advocate, in no
case less than four days prior to the parole interview, except that the appropriate
court may retain the discretion to approve any such summary of any presentence
report.

"(c) A summary of every interview shall be prepared and included in the

record of proceedings.
"(d) An eligible person denied parole shall be given a written list of the

reasons for such : and. if possible, a personal conference shall be held between
the eligible person and the Commissioners or parole examiners conducting the

interview. In the case of a grant of parole on other than general conditions

as promulgated pursuant to this chapter, the eligible person shall be given a

statement of reasons for each such additional condition."

Sec. 4 Section 4204 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

«§ 4204. Aliens

"AVhen an alien prisoner subject to deportation becomes eligible for parole,
the Parole Commission may authorize the release of such person on condition

that such person be deported and remain outside the United States.

"Such person, when his parole becomes effective, shall be delivered to the duly
authorized immigration official for deportation."

Sec. 5. Section 4205 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 4205. Retaking parole violator under warrant

"(a) A warrant for the retaking of any person who is alleged to have violated

his parole may be issued by any Commissioner within the maximum term or terms
for which such person was sentenced.

"(b) (1) A person retaken upon a warrant under this section shall be accorded
the opportunity to have a preliminary hearing, as soon as possible, except as

provided in subsection (c), at a place reasonably near the location where the

alleged violation occurred, by an official designated by the Commission (herein-
after referred to as hearing officer) to determine if there is probable cause to

believe that he has violated a condition of his parole.

"(2) Such person shall be accorded the opportunity for a revocation hearing
at a place reasonably near the location where the alleged violation occurred

within sixty days of a finding of probable cause, except that such hearing may
be held at the same time and place as the hearing to determine if there is prob-
able cause.

"(A) notice of the conditions of parole alleged to have been violated, and
the time, place, date and punwses of the scheduled hearing ;

"(B) opportunity for the parolee to appear and testify, and present wit-

nesses and documentary evidence on his own behalf ;
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"(C) opportunity to be represented by retained counsel, or if he is unable
to retnin counsel, counsel may be provided pursuant to section 3006A of title

18, United States Code
;
and

"(D) opportunity for the parolee to be apprised of the evidence and if he
so requests, to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, except in those
cases wherein it is determined by the hearing ofBcer that there is substantial
risk of liarm to any person who would so testify or otherwise be identified.

Following such hearing, a summary shall be prepared by the hearing officer,

setting forth in writing findings and recommendations, stating with particularity
the reasons therefor.

"(c) In the ease of any parolee retaken by warrant under this section who does
not contest any alleged violation of a condition of parole, or who has been con-
victed of a new offense under any law of the United States or any state, such
person shall be accorded the opportunity for an institutional revocation hearing
within ninety days. Such hearing will be conducted by a panel appointed pursu-
ant to this chapter and the parolee shall have notice of such hearing and be
allowed to appear and testify on his own behalf, and to select an advocate to

aid him in such appearance.
"(d) A person retaken pursuant to this section shall be detained pending

dispo.sition of such warrant if, subsequent to a finding of probable cause, the

hearing officer determines that there is reason to believe that such person will

not appear for his disposition hearing, or that he constitutes a danger to himself
or to others."

Sec. 6. 'Section 4206 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4206. Officer executing warrant to retake parole violator

"Any officer of any Federal penal or correctional institution, or any Federal
officer authorized to serve criminal process within the United States, to whom
a warrant for the retaking of a parole violator is delivered, shall execute such
warrant by taking such parolee and returning him to the custody of the At-

torney General."
Sec. 7. Section 4207 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4207. Parole modification and revocation

"(a) An order of parole may be modified or revoked in the case of any parole
convicted of a criminal offense, or where otherwise warranted by the frequency
or seriousness of the parolee's violation of the conditions of his parole.

"(b) A decision to modify or revoke an order of parole may include—
"(1) a reprimand ;

"(2) an alteration of parole conditions ;

"(3) referral—to a residential community treatment center for all or part
of the remainder of the original sentence ;

"(4) formal revocation of parole or mandatory release pursuant to this

chapter ;
or

"(5) any other action deemed necessary for successful rehabilitation of

the violator, and which promotes the ends of justice."
Sec. 8. Section 4208 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 4208. Fixing eligibility for parole at time of sentencing
"
(a ) Upon entering a judgement of conviction, the court having jurisdiction to

impose sentence, when in its opinion the ends of justice and best interests of the

public require that the defendant be sentenced to imprisonment for a term ex-

ceeding one year, may (1) designate in the sentence of imprisonment imposed a

minimum term at the expiration of which the person shall become eligible for

parole, which term may be less than but shall not be more than one-third of the

maximum sentence imposed by the court, or (2) the court may fix the maximum
sentence of imprisonment to be served in which event the court may specify

that the person may become eligible for parole at such time as the Commission

"(b) If the court desires more detailed information as a basis for determining
the sentence to be imposed, the court may commit the defendant to the custody of

the Attorney General, which commitment shall be deemed to be for the maximum
sentence of imprisonment prescribed by law, for a study as described in sub-

section (c) hereof. The results of such study, together with any recommenda-
tions which the Director of the Bureau of Prisons believes would be helpful in
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determinins: the disposition of the case, shall be furnished to the court within
three months unless the court grants time, not to exceed an additional three

months, for further study. After receiving such reports and recommendations,
the court may in its discretion—

"(1) place the person on probation as authorized by section 3651 of this

title, or

"(2) affirm the sentence of imprisonment originally imposed, or reduce

the sentence of imprisonment, and commit the offender under any applicable

provision of law. The term of the sentence shall run from date of original
commitment under this section.

"(c) Upon commitment of any person sentenced to imprisonment under any
law of the United States for a definite term or terms of one year or more, the
Director of the Bureau of Prisons, under such regulations as the Attorney
General may prescribe, shall cause a complete study to be made of the persoia
and shall furnish to the Commission a summary report, together with any rec-

ommendations which in the Director's opinion would be helpful in determining
the suitability of the prisoner for parole. Siich report may include, btit shall

not be limited to, data regarding the prisoner's previous delinquency or criminal

expex'ience, pertinent cii'cumstances of his social background, his capabilities, his

mental and physical health, and such other factors as may be considered pertinent.
The Commission may make such other investigation as it may deem necessary.
In any case involving a pei'son with respect to whom the court has designated
a minimum term in accordance with subsection (a) of this section, such report
and recommendations shall be made not less than ninety days prior to the expira-
tion of such minimum term.

"It shall be tlie duty of the various probation officers and government bureaus
and agencies to furnish the Commission information concei'ning the person and,
whenever not incompatible with the public interest, their views and recommenda-
tions with reswct to the parole disposition of his ca.se.

"(d) The court shall have the authority to reduce any minimum term at any
time, upon motion of the Director of the Bureau of Prisons, upon notice to the

attorney for the government."
Sec. 9. Section 5002 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5002. Advisory Corrections Council

"(a) There is hereby created an Advisory Corrections Council composed of two
United States judges designated by the Chief Justice of the United States and
ex officio, the Chairman of the Parole Commission, the Director of the Bureau
of Prisons, the Chief of Probation of the Administrative Office of the United
States Courts, the Administrator of Law Enforcement Assistance Administration
or his designee at a policy level, the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare
or his designee at a policy level, the Secretary of Labor or his designee at a policy
level, the Commissioner of the Civil Service Commission or his designee at a
policy level, the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or his designee
at a policy level, the Director of the Office of Economic Opportunity or his designee
at a policy level, and the Secretary of Defense or his designee at a policy level.
The judges first appointed to the Council shall continue in office for terms of
three years from the date of appointment. Their successors shall likewise be
appointed for a term of three years, except that any judge appointed to fill a
vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which his predecessor
was appointed shall be appointed only for the unexpired term of such predecessor.
The Chairman shall be designated annually by the Attorney General.

"(b) The Council shall meet quarterly and special sessions may be held from
time to time upon the call of the Chairman.

"(c) The Council shall consider problems of treatment and correction of all
offenders against the United States and shall make such recommendations to the
Congress, the President, the Judicial Conference of the United States, and other
appropriate officials as may improve the administration of criminal justice and
assure the coordination and integration of policies of the Federal agencies, private
industry, labor, and local jurisdictions respecting the disposition, treatment, and
correction of all persons convicted of crime. It shall also consider measures to
promote the prevention of crime and delinquency and suggest appropriate studies
in this connection to be undertaken by agencies both public and private. The
members of the Council shall serve without compensation but necessary travel
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and subsistence expenses as authorized l)y law shall be paid from available

appropriations of the Department of Justice.

••(d) (1) The Council shall appoint an Executive Secretary or an Administra-

tive Assistant and such other personnel as may be necessary to carry out its

functions. The Executive Secretary or Administrative Assistant shall supervise

the activities of persons employed by the Council and shall perform such other

duties as the Council may direct.

"(2) The Council may obtain the services of experts and consultants in accord-

ance with section 3109 of title 5, United States Code, but at rates not to exceed

.$100 per day.
"(e) The Council is authorized to request from any department, agency, or

independent instrumentality of the Government any information or records it

deems necessary to carry out its functions, and each such department, agency,
and instrumentality is authorized to cooperate with the Council and, to the

extent permitted by law, to furnish such information and records to the Council,

upon request made by the Chairman or by any member when acting as Chairman.

'•(f) The first meeting of the Council shall occur not later than thirty days
after the enactment of this legislation."

Sec. 10. Section 5005 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5095. Youth correction decisions

••The Commission may, in accordance with the provisions of chapter 311 of this

title, grant or deny any application or recommendation for parole, modify or

revoke any order of parole of any person sentenced pursuant to this chapter,
and iierform such other duties and responsibilities as may be required by law."

Sec. 11. Section 5006 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§5006. Definitions

"As used in this chapter—
"(a) 'Bureau' means the Bureau of Prisons;
(b) 'Director' means the Director of the Bureau :

"(e) 'Youth offender' means a person under the age of twenty-two years
at the time of conviction ;

"(d) 'Committed youth offender' is one committed for treatment here-

under to the custody of the Attorney General pursuant to section 5010(b)
and 5010(c) of this diapter ;

"(e) 'Treatment' means corrective and preventive guidance and training

designed to protect the public by correcting the antisocial tendencies of

youth offenders ;

"(f) 'Conviction' means the judgment on a verdict or finding of guilty,

a plea of guilty, or a plea of nolo contendere."

Sec. 12. Section 5010 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§5010. Sentence

"(a) If the court is of the opinion that the youth offender does not need

commitment, it may suspend the imposition or execution of sentence and place
the youth offender on probation.

"(b) If the court shall find that a convicted person is a youth offender, and
the offense is punishable by imprisonment under applicable provisions of law
other than this subsection, the court may, in lieu of the penalty of imprison-
ment otherwise provided by law, sentence the youth offender to the custody of

the Attorney General for treatment and supervision pursuant to this chapter
until discharged by the Commission as provided in section 5017(c) of this

chapter.
"(c) If the court shall find that the youth offender may not be able to

derive maximum benefit from treatment prior to the expiration of six years
from the date of conviction it may, in lieu of the penalty of imprisonment
otherwise provided by law, sentence the youth offender to the custody of the

Attorney General for treatment and supervision pursuant to this chapter for

any further period that may be authorized by law for the offense or offenses

of which he stands convicted or until discharged by the Commission as provided
in section 5017(d) of this chapter.
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"(d) If the court shall find that the youth offender will not derive benefit

from treatment under subsection (b) or (c), then the court may sentence the

youth offender under any other applicable penalty provision.

'•(e) If the court desires additional information as to whether a youth offender
will derive benefit from treatment under subsection (b) or (c) it may order
that he be conmmitted to the custody of the Attorney General for observ^ation

and study at an appropriate classification center or agency. Within sixty days
from the date of the order, or such additional period as the court may grant,
the Bureau shall report to the court its findings."

Sec. 13. Section 5014 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read
as follows :

"§ 5014. Classification studies and reports

"The Director shall provide classification centers and agencies. Every com-
mitted youth olfender shall first be sent to a classification center or agency.
The classification center or agency shall make a complete study of each com-
mitted youth offender, including a mental and physical examination, to ascer-

tain his personal traits, his capabilities, i)ertinent circumstances of his school,

family life, any previous delinquency or criminal experience, and any mental or

physical defect or other factor contributing to his delinquency. In the absence
of exceptional circumstances, such study shall be completed within a period of

thirty days. The agency shall promptly forward to the Director and to the Com-
mission a report of its findings with respect to the youth offender and its recom-
mendations as to his treatment. As soon as practicable after commitment, the

youth offender shall receive a parole interview."
Sec. 14. Section 5015 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5015. Powers of Director as to placement of youth offenders

"(a) On receipt of the report and recommendations from the classification

agency the Director may—
"(1) recommend to the Commission that the committed youth offender

be released conditionally under sui)ervision ;

"(2) allocate and direct the transfer of the committed youth offender to
an agency or institution for treatment ;

or

"(3) order the committed youth offender confined and afforded treatment
under such conditions as he believes best designed for the protection of the

public.

"(b) The Director may transfer at any time a committed youth offender from
one agency or institution to any other agency or institution."

Sec. 15. Section 5016 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5016. Reports concerning offenders

"The Director shall cause periodic examinations and reexaminations to be
made of all committed youth offenders and shall report to the Commission as to
each such offender as the Commission may require. United States probation
officers and suijervisory agents shall likewise report to the Commission respect-
ing youth offenders under their supervision as the Parole Commission may
direct."

Sec. 16. Section 5017 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5017. Release of youth offenders

"(a) The Commission may at any time after reasonable notice to the Director
release conditionally under supervision a committed youth offender when it ap-
pears that such person has substantially observed the rules of the institution to
which he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that such person will
live and remain at liberty without violating the law. and if in the opinion of the
Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of society. When,
in the judgment of the Director, a committed youth offender should be released
conditionally under supervision he shall so report and recommend to the Com-
mission.

"(b) The Commission may discharge a committed youth offender uncondi-
tionally at the expiration of one year from the date of conditional release.
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"(c) A youthful offender committed under section 5010 (b) of tliis chapter
shall be released conditionally under supervision on or before the expiration of

four years from the date of his conviction and shall be discharged unconditionally
on or before six years from the date of his conviction.

"(d) A youth offender committed under section 5010 (c) of this chapter shall

be released conditionally under supervision not later than two years before the

expiration of the term imposed by the court. He may be discharged uncondi-

tionally at the expiration of not less than one year from the date of his condi-

tional release. He shall be discharged unconditionally on or before the expiration
of the maximum sentence imposed, computed uninterruptedly from the date of

conviction.

"(e) Commutation of sentence authorized by any Act of Congress shall not

be granted as a matter of right to committed youth offenders but only in accord-

ance with rules prescribed by the Director with the approval of the Commission."
Sec. 17. Section 5018 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5018. Revocation of Parole Commission orders

"The Commission may revoke or modify any of its previous orders respecting
a committed youth offender except an order of unconditional discharge."

Sec. 18. Section 5019 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

§ 5019. Supervision of released youth offenders

"Committed youth offenders permitted to remain at liberty under supervision
or conditionally released shall be under the supervision of United States proba-
tion officers, supervisory agents appointed by the Attorney General, and volun-

tary supervisory agents approved by the Commission. The Commission is author-

ized to encourage the formation of voluntary organizations composed of members
who will serve without compensation as voluntary supervisory agents and
sponsors."

Sec. 19. Section 5020 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 5020. Apprehension of released offenders

"If, at any time before the unconditional discharge of a committed youth
offender, the Commission is of the opinion that such youth offender will be bene-

fited by further treatment in an institution or other facility any member of the
Commission may direct his return to custody or if necessary may issue a warrant
for the apprehension and return to custody of such youth offender and cause
such warrant to be executed by the United States probation officer, an appointed
supervisory agent, a United States marshal, or any officer of a Federal penal or

correctional institution. The Commission may revoke parole, dismiss or otherwise

modify such warrant as provided in section 4207 of this title."

Sec. 20. Section 5021 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5021. Certificate setting aside conviction

"(a) Upon the unconditional discharge by the Commission of a committed
youth offender before the expiration of the maximum sentence imposed upon
him, the conviction shall be automatically set aside and the Commission shall

issue to the youth offender a certificate to that effect. This shall expunge the

record for civil purposes although notliing herein shall be construed to prohibit
consideration of this information in a subsequent criminal proceeding.

"(b) Where a youth offender has been placed on probation by the court, the
court may thereafter, in its discretion, unconditionally discharge such youth
offender from probation prior to the expiration of the maximum period of proba-
tion theretofore fixed by the court, which discharge shall automatically set aside
the conviction, and the court shall issue to the youth offender a certificate to
that effect."

Sec. 21. Section 5037 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as
follows :

"§ 5037. Parole of juvenile offenders

"A juvenile delinquent who has been committed and who, by his conduct, has
given sufficient evidence that he has reformed, may be released on parole at any
time under such conditions and regulations as the Commission deems proper if it

shall appear to the satisfaction of such Commission that there is reasonable
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probability that the juvenile will remain at liberty without violating the law

when it appears that such person has substantially observed the rules of the

institution to which he is confined, that there is a reasonable probability that

such person will live and remain at liberty without violating the law, and if in the

opinion of the Commission such release is not incompatible with the welfare of

society."
Sec. 22. (a) The amendments made by this Act shall not be construed as

affecting or otherwise altering the provisions of sections 401 and 405 of the

Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970 relating to special

parole terms.

(b) The amendment made by section 2 of this Act shall not apply to any
offense for which there is provided a mandatory penalty.

(c) The parole of any person sentenced before June 29, 1932, shall be for

the remainder of the term or terms specified in his sentence, less good time

allowances provided by law.

Sec. 23. Sections 5007, 5008, and 5009 of title 18, United States Code, are

repealed.
Sec. 24. There is hereby authorized to be appropriated such sums as are

necessary to carry out the purposes of these amendments.
Sec 25. Section 3050 of title 18, United States Code, is amended to read as

follows :

"§ 3050. Bureau of Prisons and Parole Commission employees' powers
"An oflBeer or employee of the Bureau of Prisons may make arrests without

warrant for violations of any of the provisions of section 751, 752, 1791, or 1792
of this title, if he has reasonable grounds to believe that the arrested i^erson is

guilty of such offense, and if there (is) likelihood of his escaping before a
warrant can be obtained for his arrest. If the arrested person is a fugitive
from custody, he shall be returned to custody. United States Parole Commission-
ers and such other employees as are designated by the Commission pursuant to

section 4201 of this title, may excute any warrant issued by the Commission
pursuant to section 4205 of this title. Ofiicers and employees of the Bureau of

Prisons, Parole Commissioners, and such employees of the Commission, may
carry firearms under such rules and regulations as the Attorney Greneral may
prescribe.

Sec. 26. (a) The foregoing amendments made by this Act shall take effect

upon the expiration of the ninety-day period following the date of the enact-
ment of this Act.

(b) Upon the effective date of this Act, each person holding office as a

member of the Board of Parole on the date immediately preceding such effective

date shall be deemed to be a Commissioner and shall be entitled to serve as such
for the remainder of the term for which such person was appointed as a member
of such Board of Parole.

(c) All povvers, duties, and functions of the aforementioned Board of Parole

shall, on and after such effective date, be deemed to be vested in the Commis-
sion, and shall, on and after such date, be carried out by the Commission in

accordance with the provisions of this Act, except that the Commission may
make such transitional rules as are necessary to be in effect for not to exceed
one year follov^-ing the effective date.

Sec. 27. The table of sections for chapter 311 of title 18, United States Code,
is amended to read as follows :

"Sec.

"4'201. Parole Commission.
"4202. Persons eligible.
"4303. Parole interview procedures.
"4204. Aliens.
"4205. Retaking parole violator under warrant.
"4206. Officer executing warrant to retake parole violator.
"4207. Parole modification and revocation.
"4208. Fixing eligibility for parole at time of sentencing.
"4209. Young adult offenders.
"4210. Warrants to retake Canal Zone parole violators."

Sec. 28. The table of sections for chapter 402 of title 18, United States Code,
is amended to read as follows:

"Sec.

".5005. Youth correction decisions.
"5006. Definitions.
"5010. Sentence.
"5011. Treatment.
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"5012. Certificate as to availability of facilities.
"5013. Provision of facilities.
"5014. Classification studies and reports.
"5015. Powers of Director as to placement of yonth offenders.
"5016. Reports concerning offenders.
"5017. Release of youth offenders.
"5018. Revocation of Commission orders.
"5019. Supervision of released youth offenders.
"5020. Apprehension of released offenders.
"5021. Certificate setting aside conviction.
"5022. Applicable date.
"5023. Relationship to Probation and Juvenile Delinquency Acts.
"5024. Where applicable.
"502.5. Application to the District of Columbia.
"5026. Parole of other offenders not affected."

Sec. 29. The table of sections for chapter 403 of title IS, United States Code,
is amended by deleting the item
"5037. Parole."

and inserting in lieu thereof the item
"5037. Parole of juvenile offenders".

U.S. Senate,
Committee on the Judiciary,

Subcommittee of Criminal Laws and Procedures,
Washington, D.C., July 8, 1974.

Hon. James O. Eastland,
D irkseti Building,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Senator Eastland : S. l-:!63, the "Parole Commission Act," was recently

reported by the Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries to the full Committee
on the Judiciary, and is presently on the Committee Agenda.
The purpose of this bill is to reorganize the structure of the Federal parole

s.vsteni by replacing the United States Board of Parole with a new United States

Parole Commission and to designate by statute the procedures to be followed
in the granting, modifying, and revoking of parole. As you are well aware, .since

I first entered the Senate over thirty years ago, I have been deeply interested in

our criminal justice system and have devoted a great deal of effort toward
making that system both more effective and more just. As a result of that long
experience, and although the bill represents a commendable effort in the area
of corrections. I am so concerned about several of its features that I feel com-
pelled to offer a number of amendments I hope will be acceptable to the Commit-
tee. A copy of these amendments, with a brief explanation, is attached for your
study. I strongly solicit your support.
My concern with the bill relates primarily to the structure of the proposed

Parole Commission, the u.se of hearing examiners by the Commission, and the

provisions dealing with the appeal of parole decisions.

As S. 1463 was reported by the Subcommittee, the proposed Parole Commis-
sion would consist of nine members appointed, by the President with the advice
and consent of the Senate. The Chairman of the Commission would then be des-

ignated by the Attorney General. My major concern involves the powers with
which the Chairman would be invested. These powers are so sweeping that they
would, in my opinion, effectively destroy the independence of the other Commis-
sioners and permit one man to dictate national parole policy. On the theory that
it will provide for more efficient administration, for example, it is the Chairman
who determines who will serve as Vice-Chairman of the Commission, which of
the other eight Commissioners will remain in Washington to serve on the Na-
tional Appeals Board established by the bill, and which of the Commissioners
will 1)6 assigned to the five regions. The Chairman is also charged with the ap-
pointment, assignment and supervision of all hearing examiners, and it is the

Chairman who assigns duties among all personnel of the Commission, including
the other Commissioners. As I read the bill, neither the commission as a whole
nor the individual Commissioners have any say in this process.

In my judgment, the concentration of such power in the hands of the Chair-
man is unwise. The central issue is whether the Congress should create a
commission structure in which one man on the Commission is given broad
designation and appointment powers over those charged with making the parole
decisions. I believe this is unwise.
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The amendments I proposed would make only two changes in the powers of

the Chairman. The most important would provide insulation and stability for

the members of the National Appeals Board by requiring the President rather
than the Chairman to designate the commissioners to serve on that Board. The
Chairman would retain only the power to make temporary assignments to the

appeals board to prevent interruption of its functions due to death, illness, or
other circumstance making a member of the board unavailable. With this amend-
ment, the Chairman could not dictate policy to this appellate body by shifting
commissioners in and out of Washington at will. Even if not used, such power
can have its subtle effects. The other amendment concerning the Chairman's

powers simply recognizes the full commission's interest in the qualifications of

hearing examiners by making the Chairman's appointments to these positions

subject to approval by the Commission as a whole. Such changes, in my view, are
a minimum necessary to insure independence in the decisionmaking process of

the Commission. If some loss of administrative efficiency is the price to pay for

this independence of judgment, it is well worth it.

My second area of concern relates to the power of the Commission to delegate
the initial decision as to whether parole should be granted, denied, or revoked
to panels of hearing examiners. The use of hearing examiners should certainly
be encouraged in order to provide a clear record on which the decision on the

question of parole can be both made and reviewed. I believe, however, that the
decision itself ought not be made by an examiner but rather by an individual
who has been appointed by the President and confirmed by the Senate. This deci-

sion is not a minor matter. It is the determination of when a criminal, who may
have been convicted of the most serious crime, will be allowed back into society
and upon what conditions. In many respects this power is analogous to the sen-

tencing power of the United States judges. Such a decision should not devolve

upon hearing examiners. If necessary to avoid such a result, the size of the

Commission should be increased.
The amendments I am proposing would retain the free use of hearing examiners

in the parole process, but would require a Commissioner to make the actual

parole decision.

Finally, the appeals process established by the bill contains a serious defect
in providing only for a right to appeal decisions adverse to the prisoner/parolee.
Clearly society has a legitimate interest to protect in the determination of when
a criminal will be given his freedom—the safety of its citizens—and this interest

ought to be protected by allowing access to the appellate process of the Commis-
sion as well. As the bill now stands, decisions favorabe to the prisoner-parolee
with respect to the granting or revoking of parole are final at the hearing ex-
aminer level, unless a Regional Commissioner, on his own initiative, decides to

review a particular case. In the event a Regional Commissioner does review such
a case and upholds the decision of the hearing examiner, there is no provision
for an appeal to the National Appeals Board.

My proposed amendment in this area would permit the Attorney General to

seek a National Appeals Board review of decisions by a Regional Commissioner".

Together with the amendments previously discussed, my proposals would, there-

fore, provide for an initial decision as to parole by a Regional Commissioner,
based upon a record and recommendation prepared by a hearing examiner, with
a right of appeal in both the prisoner/parolee and the Attorney General.

I realize that there are differences of opinion on the issues that I have raised.

In my judgment the issues are serious ones and the amendments suggested nec-

essary to make the bill acceptable. After you have had an opportunity to study
the amendments themselves I would very much appreciate receiving your views
and your support.
With kind regards, I am

Sincerely yours,
John L. McClellan.

Enclosure.

S. 1109 makes no attempt to deal with this integration of sentencing philosophy
and structure and essentially makes no substantive changes over present law in

criteria for release on parole, or in other Federal sentencing statutes. As to other

aspects of the parole provisions of the Code bill, as Senator Burdick noted in his
statement upon the introduction of S. 1109, "in its procedural and administrative

provisions, [S. 1109] is in most ways identical to the code revision bill."

My interest in these procedural and administrative provisions is long standing
apart from the necessity to deal with parole problems in the code revision project.
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Last Congress, the Subcommittee on National Penitentiaries reported a bill

(S. 1463) similar in many ways to S. 1109 but wliich contained a number of

features I strongly felt were unwise and required change before the bill would
be acceptable. On July 8, 1974, I sent a letter to each member of the Judiciary
Committee highlighting my concerns and indicating my intent to offer amend-
ments in the full Committee and, if necessary, on the Senate floor to deal with
these issues. S. 1109 as introduced in the 94th Congress makes changes in the

prior legislation to deal with these concerns, however not completely to my sat-

isfaction with respect to the powers of the chairman of the Parole Commission.
It is my desire to have the record clearly reflect my views on these issues for the
Subcommittee to consider as it proceeds to process a bill for consideration by the

full committee. For this purpose, I would submit for the record a copy of S. 1463
in the 93d Congress and my letter of July 8, 1974, discussing what I believed
were basic defects in that bill.

As the Subcommittee considers S. 1109, I am confident that language can be
retained or worked out within the framework of the language of this new bill

which solves my concerns expressed last Congress without unduly hampering
effective administration of the parole commission.

o


